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CHAIRPERSON’S
MESSAGE

CHAIRPERSON’S
MESSAGE

 Naimbag nga aldaw ti kabuklan ti Board of Directors ti Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya 
agraman metten ti Management nga ida-ulwan ti General Manager ken President Mrs. Marissa Q. Pinkihan, 
kangrunaan na unay kadagiti shareholders ti Kooperatiba tayo. Pudno unay ti ipamatmat ti tema tayo ita 
a maikauppat a pulo ken dua a tawen a naindaklan a panagtitipon (42nd Annual General Assemby), adda 
man Covid-19 Pandemic ken ania pay a peggad kas kuma iti layus, bagyo ken anyaman a kalamidad, 
ti Kooperatiba tayo ket sisasagana a sumaranay babaen iti nadumaduma a Credit Support Policy tapno 
makatulong kadagiti member-borrowers ti Kooperatiba tayo ken kadagiti padak a mannalon nga isu ti 
maysa a strategy ti Gobyerno tapno agtultuloy ti panagdur-as ti Agriculture Sector ti pagilian.

 Worthy to note that the present Board and Management are all working together as a team in 
order to cope up with the needed recovery plan to ensure and sustain financial viability of our bank. 
Regulatory reliefs offered by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas are being implemented in due time to match 
the financial performance of our cooperative. We did our best for the year 2020 but too short to meet our 
projected income. Let us all do our share in order to overcome this economic downturn, the sooner the better. 
We will all again reap the fruits of our labor the days to come with the blessing of the Almighty.

 A meaningful and warm celebration of our 42nd Annual General Assembly.

“Awan lapped ti panagdur-as uray anyaman a peggad”

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL
BOD Chairperson

CHAIRPERSON’S
MESSAGE

“Pandemic Resilient Initiatives Gaining Path to Economic Recovery”

Everyone is a victim of this pandemic otherwise known as COVID-19 which started 
early in CY 2020 and still continue posing threat to the health management capabilities in 
every nation most specially its harm to their respective economic development. 

 
For the year 2020, our Cooperative Net Surplus is only more than 2 million pesos. 

This calendar year 2021, our Net Surplus is 5.7 million pesos which was nearly three times 
as compared to the previous year. 

 
This bank result of operation in CY 2021 was made possible due to the pandemic 

resilient initiatives which were adopted thereby gaining path to economic recovery. The 
board and management implemented regulatory reliefs on credit management and 
delinquency control mechanics. Health concern were not set aside, instead we strictly 
complied with all health protocols for the different quarantine classifications we had gone 
through. Innovative credit appraisal and monitoring were in placed so that the bank as a 
source of capital in our lending activities can get back the loaned amount with the 
corresponding cost of money. The bank regularly conducts a systematic approach for credit 
appraisal process before only loan disposition is affected by the different levels of authority 
approvals based on the amount of loan being applied for. In this manner, the board and 
management are assured of actions consistent to all existing credit policies. 

 
 We in the board want to emphasize that for the year 2021, the needed credit loan 
loss provisioning was fully provided and manage to extend the continuous access to the 
different credit facility we offer. 
 
 Yes, we all experience the worst period (the covid-19 sequel), where everything 
seems to be volatile, uncertain, complex and ambiguous but we now see the bright side 
beginning to shine. 
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At this juncture, I wish to extend my sincere gratitude to everyone for doing your 
share to make things positive for our bank to rebound leading to economic recovery and 
ultimately for our economic prosperity. 

 
Once more, join me in my prayer that with God’s grace we will all succeed in our 

quest to quell all kinds of menace brought by this unprecedented pandemic  
 
Mabuhay tayong lahat! 

 
 
 

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
        Chairperson 

         Board of DIrectors 

CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE
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CORPORATE IDENTITY

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

VISION 
 

“A lead Cooperative Bank 
providing optimum services to 
its stakeholders for inclusive 
growth in the countryside” 

MISSION 
 

“To provide affordable and 
excellent services to its 
stakeholders for sustainable 
countryside development” 
CORPORATE VALUES 

 

From the day CBNV opened its doors in 1980, it has been catering 
the needs of primary cooperative-members, individual 
shareholders, the local businesses and institutions, the farmers in 
the rural communities and the general public - helping them 
successfully grow, prosper and compete. Today, CBNV has 
emerged into the region as steady cooperative bank with four 
branch offices supporting the vital communities it serve.  
 

It prides itself on its continued independence, financial strength 
and organizational ability. Since its organization, it has provided 
millions of loan financing, helping its customers achieve their 
goals. Its consistent and disciplined lending to primary 
cooperatives, local businesses and institutions, the farmers in the 
rural communities and other individuals, help to increase the local 
economy and contribute to the welfare of our community. As part 
of the essential role the bank plays in making a difference in the 
communities it serve, it continues to extend credit and participate 
in community programs designed to meet the unique needs of all 
community members, including those in low and moderate 
income areas.  
 

CBNV's Core Values were developed as guiding principles to 
effectively serve our customers and communities. One of these 
guiding principles is Customer-Focus. Customer Focus is the 
practice of courtesy, respect, joy, care, efficiency and enthusiasm 
to provide world class service to the customers, namely: 
a. Primary customers: borrowers, depositors, shareholders, and 

employees; 
b. Secondary customers: community, environment, and 

government. 
 

Our deep rooted commitment to the community (as it considers 
itself as organized through the grass-root level - farmer based 
Samahang Nayons) is an integral part of our success. Every CBNV 
Banker embraces the values of building vibrant, prosperous 
communities by giving back to a wide range of non-profit 
endeavors. Our directors, officers and employees contribute their 
time and expertise, often in leadership roles, to charitable and 
civic organizations throughout its area of business operation.  
 

Overall, we play an active role in making every community in 
which we operate a better place to live and work.  Extending help 
to our primary cooperative-members by offering free training and 
seminars., assisting them with the preparation of mandatory 
reports and their financial records/books  to comply with 
requirements of regulatory agencies. 
✓ We pride ourselves on continually understanding and 

supporting the credit needs of businesses, primary 
cooperative and individuals in the communities we serve. 

to our primary cooperative-members 
through free training and seminars and 
assisting them with the preparation of 
mandatory reports and their financial 
records to comply with requirements of 
regulatory agencies. 
✓ We pride ourselves on continually 

understanding and supporting the 
credit needs of businesses, primary 
cooperative and individuals in the 
communities we serve. 

✓ We strive to provide specialized 
financial solutions that consistently 
help our valued customers achieve 
their unique financial goals. 

✓ Our ongoing commitment is to 
support the needs of its primary 
member-cooperatives, institutions and 
individuals – most especially the 
farmers and the fisher folks; and those 
in the rural areas- by helping them to 
successfully grow and prosper. 
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CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICES

REGULAR SAVINGS ACCOUNT

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

0001
SAVINGS PASSBOOK

““AAnngg  BBaannggkkoo  NNaattiinn””

Savings is Investing, by just 
maintaining P1,000.00 monthly 
ADB your savings earn at a
fixed interest rate.

TIME DEPOSIT ACCOUNT

Save and Earn. Set aside
your extra money and
enjoy great return.

December

20

FINANCING SERVICES

S
A
LE

OTHER LOAN

AGRICULTURAL
LOAN

• Purchase of Agricultural Land,
   Machineries, and other purpose
   related to agriculture.
• Agriculture Production Loan

TRANSPORTATION LOAN
• Financing of Repairs and
Maintenance

MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM 

ENTERPRISE \ BUSINESS

SALARY
LOAN

Offered to:
  • Public & Private School Teachers \
    Employees
  • LGU (Local Government Unit)
    Employees

Granted for the following purposes:
  • Hospitalization
  • Educational
  • Personal Consumption

LUPA SA ABOT-KAYANG HALAGA 
• A program offering repossessed lot
  for sale at a discounted price.

HOUSING & REAL ESTATE LOAN
• Purchase of Residential, Commercial or 
  Industrial lot.
• Purchase of House & Lot, home
   improvement and  refinancing of 
   existing loans.

LOAN BACK TO BACK LOAN FOR DEPOSITOR
• A loan package offered to clients who
  maintain deposit with the Bank.

LOAN
OVERSEAS • Financing livelihood project for family 

  members/beneficiary of the OFW.
• Placement fee assistance.

• Credit Loan Assistance for Coop
  Members

BEEF BUSINESS, ENTREPRENEUR, EMPLOYEES,
AND FARMERS LOAN FACILITY

Farmers and Farmer-etrepreneurss who have
undergone training on Farmer Entrepreneurship
Program (FEP) conducted by the NLDC & CBNV
or Farm Based School(FBS) conducted by the

CBNV LOAN FOR FARMER - ENTREPRENEURS

by the Department of Agrarian Reform (DAR) or the Department of Agriculture (DA) 
with existing contract to different institutional market like the Organic Option
Incoporated (OOI) Jollibee Foundation and Others.

“Deposits are insured by PDIC up to P500,00.00 per depositor.”

CLAP

PROGRAMS & SERVICES
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 
  
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Particulars/Account (In Million)                                  2021 2020 
Profitability     
  Total Net Interest Income    50.43     48.47  
  Total Non-Interest Income    22.41     15.09  
  Total Non-Interest Expenses    53.52     52.27  
  Pre-provision profit    19.32     11.29  
  Allowance for Credit losses 13.59              8.66  
  Income Tax Expense       0.04        0.05  
  Net Income       5.70        2.58  
Resources at Year-end     
  Liquid Assets  309.24   210.54  
  Gross Loans  459.55   384.26  
  Total Assets  774.44   616.27  
  Deposit Liabilities  493.96  411.16  
  Bills Payable 124.32        51.27  
  Capital  108.00   111.73  
Selected Ratios     
  Return on average equity 2.74% 2.34% 
  Return on average assets 0.60% 0.44% 
  Capital Adequacy Ratio 15.36% 18.61% 
  Non-Performing Loan (NPL) Ratio 13.35% 13.64% 
  NPL Ratio, Net 5.21% 6.29% 
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PRESIDENT’S REPORT
What has been 
for CBNV?

The COVID-19 pandemic that hit the 
world in 2020 is continuously causing 
economic uncertainties and volatilities, 
bringing downtrend to global economy. But 
with optimistic mindset, it was projected that 
global economy would have rebounded 
back beginning year 2021.  Economic 
outlook has always been re-adjusted based 
on performances and optimistic projections, 
still with the lingering effects of the COVID-
19 pandemic.  The emergence of new 
variants of the virus, deadlier than its 
predecessors, brought a setback to 
everyone

Year 2021 started better than the 
previous year, 2020, with overall inflation 
rate at 3.5%, but had not been consistent 
throughout the whole year as it hit the 
highest at 4.9% in August 2021.  This was 
correlated to the surge in COVID cases 
especially when the DELTA variant emerged 
in the country. 

The continuous localized lockdown, 
restricting people of doing business, has 
been prolonged. However, for Cooperative 
Bank of Nueva Vizcaya, after experiencing 
a set-back in 2020, is now on the path to 
recovery. The Bank’s resiliency is 
continuously being tested on how far we can 
stand. The pro-active response of the Bank 
through the continuous guidance of the 
Board of Directors in combating the 
effects of this pandemic is gearing us 
towards the path to economic recovery.  

While the bank belongs to the essential 
services needed by the public and business 
operations continues, operation was not 
spared with the setback. Among these were 
the shortened banking and office hours as 
mechanism to protect our employees, travel 
restrictions to different communities imposed 
by local government units (LGUs), and 
infections among employees.  The Head 
Office and one branch was ordered to 
temporarily close office for a minimum of 
10 days in September 2021 by local 
authorities as some employees reported 
positive.  Somehow, with the pro-active 
guidance of the Board of Directors and 
approved business continuity plan, 
management was able to request 
consideration to shorten the temporary 
closure from 10 days to one day.  The Bank 
followed standard health protocols as 
required by the Inter-Agency Task Force 
(IATF) on COVID-19. Identified employees 
with closed contacts to employees tested 
positive were arranged for home isolation 
with pay, management allowed work-from-
home (WFH) arrangements and skeletal 
workforce on-site in order to continuously 
sustain business and do its mandate of 
serving the public, while keeping its 
employees on a healthy state. 

The Board approved a “vaccination 
leave with pay” for all employees as to
encourage them to be vaccinated.
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As of December 31, 2021, 95% of the 
employees were fully vaccinated as 
protection against the virus.   Employees 
who underwent mandatory quarantine due 
to direct contacts with co-workers and 
clients tested positive with the COVID-19 
were given full pay.  Full monthly pay for 
employees, approved in 2020, continued in 
2021 despite the reduced working days in 
all branches especially when skeletal 
workforce was implemented to observe 
social distancing.  

One of the most important business 
aspects of the Bank which was closely 
monitored in this time is LIQUIDITY. 
Management monitored on day-to-day 
basis its funds and liquid assets, ensuring it 
can immediately respond to any negative 
reaction from the depositing public.  It is 
worthy to note that the Bank is on a healthy 
state when it comes to its liquidity.  Reserve 
requirements are well funded while 
depositors’ needs of cash were immediately 
attended to along with the continuous 
servicing to client-borrowers’ financing 
needs.  The Bank’s liquidity ratio is more 
than 60% as of closing date while BSP 
minimum requirement is 20% with 
temporary relief at 16% due to the 
pandemic. 

The Bank continuously updates and 
enhances its internal policies on risk 
management, using modern type of on-line 
platforms to conduct meetings, the board 
and management were able to develop 
and amend policies, ensuring that we meet 
minimum standards set by regulators. 

The sound credit risk management, 
operational risk management and other 
policies affected by new issuances of 
regulations were immediately reviewed thru 
the active Board Committees and the 
General Assembly Committees.  These 
prompted management to let employees 
join trainings and on-line workshop to equip 
them with knowledge especially on 
assessing creditworthiness of borrowers and 
to improve implementation of internal policy 
on lending. Liquidity risk management and 
stress testing, strengthening internal control 

systems, credit analysis and loan 
packaging, risk-based audit methodology 
and other work-related trainings were 
among those attended and conducted to 
enhance personnel capabilities and 
efficiency. The creation of the Credit Risk 
Department greatly helped the Bank 
improve its loan procedures as evidenced 
by reduced audit findings from the internal 
and external auditors. 

While everyone is battling this 
pandemic, we have to make sure that Coop 
Bank is on the right track and focused of 
growing its business.  In the fourth quarter 
of 2021, the Bank re-visited its five-year 
strategic development goals.  Members of 
the Board along with selected management 
staff conducted series of face-to-face 
strategic planning sessions to develop the 
Bank’s 2022 – 2026 Development Plan. 
This Plan shall be a guiding tool for the 
business direction of the Bank for the next 
five years.  

We look forward to becoming 
“1Bin2026” in terms of assets. With the 
shareholders at helm and of the elected 
Board of Directors’ leadership, this goal is 
an assurance that we are gearing towards 
growth. Combined with all the strategies, 
but most specially, the full support of all 
cooperative members and shareholders, we 
look forward to 2026.   

The assurance to our stakeholders, that 
we uphold the same objective and the 
reason for the existence of Coop Bank, we 
actively participated with government 
programs to help the farmers.  The Bank 
continued to participate with the program 
of the Department of Agriculture through 
the Agricultural Credit Policy Council 
(ACPC).  ACPC downloaded the amount of 
Php90,000.00 million to the Bank in 2021 
for the following programs: a) Php5.00 
million for the Agri-Pinay program for 
women empowerment; b) Php5.00 million 
for the KAYA program for young farmer-
entrepreneurs; c) Php60.00 million for 
ANYO-SFF and MSME; and d) Php20.00 
million for SURE-COVID 19.  This fund 
contributed to the growth of the Bank’s loan 
portfolio for the year. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
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A Glimpse of the Bank’s 
Development Plan 2017-2021 

In 2016, the Bank had crafted its 
five-year Development Plan for 2017 
to 2021.  The chart shows where the 
Bank had become based on its plans 
and targets: 

While there are goals and 
objectives that we have yet to fulfill in 
the five years that has been, there are 
successful endeavors beyond the written 
plan.  The Board of Directors and the 
whole management staff of the Bank 
had maintained balanced on the 
financial stability of the Bank.  It is 
worthy to note that the Bank’s financial 
ratios are within the rural and 
cooperative bank industry levels and 
aspects that may have been with concern 
are closely monitored and acted upon.  

As of September 30, 2021 Cooperative 
Bank of Nueva Vizcaya was among the top 
100 out of the 424 rural and cooperative 
banks in the Philippines, based on BSP 
statistics: 

In terms of Amount Ranking 
Total Assets 734.73 M 64th 
Total Loans, net 407.52 M 54th 
Total Equity (Capital) 110.15 M 85th 
Total Deposit Liab. 444.92 M 72nd 
(source:www.bsp.gov.ph/statistics/Financial 
Statements) 

On the other hand, out of the 24 
Cooperative Banks (from the original more 
than 50 registered), below is the Bank’s 
standing: 

In terms of Amount Ranking 
Total Assets 734.73 M 10th 
Total Loans, net 407.52 M 8th 
Total Equity (Capital) 110.15 M 10th 
Total Deposit Liab. 444.92 M 11th 
* Three in the top 6 coop banks are
consolidated banks.

We hope to have improved the Bank’s 
standing as of December 31,2021 with the 
increase in the Bank’s total asset to Php774 

million and deposit liabilities of Php493.96 
million. 

Towards “1B2026” 

CBNV is journeying towards its GOLDEN 
YEARS in the banking industry full of 
assurance that it is going stronger and 
doing better than its previous performances. 
Amid the Novel Corona Virus Disease 2019 
(nCoVID 2019) that is continuously giving 
fear to everyone and had made the 
economy volatile and uncertain, we commit 
to stand together and always be optimistic 
that we will be better off for what we have 
reached in the last 41 years.  

As we continuously implement policy 
changes on sound credit risk management 
as a result of changes in regulations, 
diversifying our loan products to sectors 
such as the small and medium enterprises 
(SME) rather than focusing to salary-based 
loans has been effective.  Our focus for the 
next three years will still be to farmer-
entrepreneurs, small and medium businesses 
specifically on food production.  Financing 
to property investments such as housing 
loans and acquisition of agricultural lands to 

GOALS December 31, 2021 

1. To increase common and
preferred shares by P30
Million (December 2016
– Php25.936)

(Authorized capital
increased to 60 M) 

Common & Preferred  
Shares         Php51.787 
DSS                  11.538 
Share Div. Dist.    8.374 
Total   Php71.700 M 
(120%) 

2. Total Asset will increase
to Php682 million

Total Asset – Php774.44 M 
(114%) 

3. Increase gross portfolio
to Php480 million

Gross Portfolio –
Php451.54M (94%) 

4. Decrease PDR to 7% PDR 17.28% 

5. Php500M deposit 
liabilities

Php493.96 million (99%) 

6. Two more branches to
open

None 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
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the farmer sectors is a window the Bank is 
developing to expand, as it has piloted the 
same in the last few years.   

The agricultural sector has always been 
the riskiest sector to venture in the lending 
industry, however, the farmers from the 
rural areas - the original owners of CBNV 
are still in the main services of the Bank. 
Our assurance to our primary cooperative-
members, 2022 will again give us another 
good year. We are optimistic that the 
target in the increase in loan portfolio is 
attainable with our fund sources.  The 
program of the government through the 
“Pondo para sa Pagbabago at Pag-asenso 
(P3)” where we are in partnership with the 
SB Corporation is expected to help in 
attaining our mission to cater to the needs 
of our farmers and the micro and small 
businesses in the area. 

We are confident to fulfill our targets 
this 2022 strategically divided among our 
Head Office and the four branches.  With 
the renewed Bank’s five-year development 
plan, as we have done five years ago, we 
are gearing to digitalization.  The 
amendments to the Bank’s Articles of 
Cooperation and By-laws to increase its 
authorized capitalization to P120.00 million 
from its present authorized capital of 
P60.00 million is still on process for 
submission to the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas. Though, it was submitted twice in 
2021, it was returned for review and 
completion of additional documentary 
requirements.  It is among the top priorities 
for year 2022 to be accomplished. 

To all our shareholders, clients, partners, 
supporters and all other stakeholders of 
CBNV, we express our sincerest gratitude 
for your trust and support all through the 
years. To the Board of Directors, our 
officers and staff, we thank you for the 
remarkable efforts that you have exerted.  
We thank every stakeholder for being with 
us despite the many challenges we have 
encountered, for the determination and 
commitment in enhancing the growth and 
stability of COOPERATIVE BANK OF 
NUEVA VIZCAYA. 

And as always, above all of these 
successes and challenges, we give back our 
thanks to our Almighty Father. To Him, all 
the Glory and Honor. 

MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN 
President Concurrent General Manager 

ENDORSED BY:

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
Chairperson, Board of Directors

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
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Business Environment 

was a year that truly tested 
the resiliency of many 

business establishments amid the prolonged 
effect of the COVID-19 pandemic. While 
many had embraced to living to the new 
normal and begun to cope up with the hope 
that the increase in vaccinated populace 
shall relax restrictions to mobility, the 
resurgence of a deadlier variant of the 
corona virus in August and September of 
2021 halted the momentum to recovery. 
Nonetheless, the Philippine Gross Domestic 
Product (GDP) posted a growth of 7.7 
percent in the fourth quarter of 2021, 
resulting in 5.6 percent full-year growth for 
the whole year of 2021  
(https://psa.gov.ph/national-accounts). 

(source:https://psa.gov.ph) 

 The main contributors to the fourth 
quarter 2021 growth were: Manufacturing, 
7.2 percent; Wholesale and retail trade; 
repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles, 
7.4 percent; and Construction, 18.5 percent. 
The same industries also contributed the 
most to the annual growth: Manufacturing, 
8.6 percent; Wholesale and retail trade; 
repair of motor vehicles and motorcycles, 
4.3 percent; and Construction, 9.8 percent. 

 Among the major economic sectors, 
Agriculture, forestry, and fishing, Industry 
and Services all posted positive growths in 
the fourth quarter with 1.4 percent, 9.5 
percent, and 7.9 percent, respectively. On 
an annual basis, Industry and Services 
registered positive growths of 8.2 percent 
and 5.3 percent, respectively. Meanwhile, 
Agriculture, forestry, and fishing posted a 
contraction of -0.3 percent 
(https://psa.gov.ph/national-accounts). 

 Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya 
(CBNV) was able to stand with the new 
normal. The Bank belongs to the Services 
group that posted overall positive growth 
of 5.3 percent, and based on results, it did 
fairly well in year 2021. Total resources 
compared to 2020 increased by 
Php159.36  million from Php616.27 million 
to Php774.43 million or a rate of increase 
of 26% as shown in graph 1.0 

 
 
 Contributory to the increase was from 
the DA-ACPC amounting to Php90.00 
million new funds for the small farmers and 
fisherfolks (SFF) implementing the ANYO 
Program of the government; increase in 
deposits and additional paid subscription of 
the shareholders. 
 

Loan portfolio, at net of allowance for 
credit losses (ACL) and general loan loss 
provisions (GLLP), representing the largest 
portion of our resources grew by Php58.84 
million or 17.1% from Php353.23 million to 
Php412.07 million as shown in graph 2.0.   

 
The DA-ACPC funded ANYO programs 

boosted the releases to the agricultural 
sector and expansion of the SME borrowers 
engaged in agricultural trading.   

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
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The Bank booked provision for 
allowance for credit losses (ACL) and 
general loan loss provision (GLLP) for loans 
alone in 2021 the amount of Php12.4 
million, this contributed to ACL increase by 
Php8.45 million from Php31.03 million in 
2020 to Php39.48 million, while the amount 
of P4.28 million was charged for written-off 
accounts and classified loans under 
litigation to ROPA accounts. 

As we experienced shortfall in 
collection of delinquent accounts due to the 
prolonged pandemic, increased in past due 
loans was recorded from Php52.42 million 
in 2020 to Php78.04 million for the year or 
an increase by Php25.62 million, a 48.88% 
rate of increase. 

The gross loan portfolio (amortized 
cost) for 2021 based on Graph 2.2 is 
Php451.55 million of which Php373.51 
million is current, Php73.00 million is past 

due and Php5.04 million is classified as 
items in litigation.  

Total past due loans composed of 
matured accounts amounting to Php28.52 
million and Php49.61 million technical past 
due (loans with missed payments), 
registering a past due ratio of 17.28% (net 
of amortized cost), an increase of 3.64% 
compared to the 13.64% past due ratio of 
2020. 

The non-collection of past due accounts 
contributed to the increase in non-
performing loans (NPL). These are accounts 
are past due for more than 90 days 
including loan accounts with instalment in 
arrears. As of December 31, 2021, NPL 
registered at Php60.29 million, an increase 
of Php8.52 million compared to year 2020 
or rate of increase of 16.46%. 

The Bank was able to bounce back on 
loan disbursement by Php19.62 million from 
Php409.97 million in 2020 to Php423.33 
million in 2021 or a rate of increase of 5% 
as shown in graph 3.0.   

Agricultural loan shared the highest 
release of 62%, Php262.32 million, SME 
loans of 18%, Php75.00 million, other loans 
at 14%, Php61.98 million and housing loan 

13.22% 13.64%
17.28%

2019 2020 2021

Graph 2.3 Comparative PDR
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at 6%, Php24.03 million as shown in Graph 
3.1. 

REAL AND OTHER PROPERTIES 
ACQUIRED (R0PA) 

The acquired assets of the Bank after a 
court decision on accounts which were 
already past due and under litigation 
termed as Real and Other Properties 
Acquired (ROPA) illustrates an increase in 
2021 per graph 4.0, registering an 
increase of Php2.05 million (net of sold and 
foreclosed for the year) or 32.05% rate of 
increase.  Sale of ROPA for the year 
increased compared to previous year’s 
performance.  This contributed to the 
increase of income. 

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES 
The deposit liabilities for 2021 as 

figured in Graph 5.0 increased by 
Php82.80 million from Php411.16 million in 
2020 to Php493.96 million for the year.  
Despite the decrease in interest rate at one 
percentage point in the third quarter of 
2021, an increase of 20% was registered.   

The increase in deposit liabilities, 
coupled with the fund sources from the DA-
ACPC improved the bank’s liquidity position 
while it increased its loan portfolio without 

resorting to availing rediscounting facilities 
from lending banks. 

Graph 5.1 shows that deposit liabilities 
includes deposits through the ATM which 
shares only less than 1% of the total 
deposits and regular deposits share was 
42% while term deposits or time deposits 
posted a 57% share.  The deposit mixed 
improved compared to the previous year 
where term deposits posted a share of 
66%, which constituted a higher interest 
expense for the Bank.  

The increase in bills payable amounting 
to Php73.05 million is from the DA-ACPC to 
fund the ANYO and COVID-19 programs 
of the government. Bills payable, for year 
2021 increased to Php124.32 from the 
previous year’s Php51.27 million or 
142.49% rate of increase.   
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Capital accounts of Php108.00 million 
decreased by Php3.73 million as compared 
a year ago of Php111.73 million 
registering a negative growth rate of 
3.34%.  Despite the additional payment of 
subscription receivables, the deposit for 
share subscriptions of shareholders were 
reclassified under liabilities due to pending 
submission of the amendments of the Bank’s 
Article of Cooperation and By-Laws to the 
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. 

As shown in graph 9.0 gross income 
rebound from Php76.09 million in 2020 to 
Php84.10 million in 2021, this is almost 
equal to the gross income in 2019.    

Year 2021 registered an increase of 
Php8.01 million in revenues with a rate of 
10.53%. 66% of the gross income was from 
interest on loans, other income connected to 
lending business shared 17% while income 
on sale of ROPA accounts and recoveries of 
charged-off assets combined at 6%. Income 
on excess funds deposited to banks shared 
7% of the overall gross income. 

Total expenses registered an increase 
of 6.66% or Php4.89 million from the
previous year, from Php73.52 million to 
Php78.38 million. Salaries and wages 
including benefits for employees 
registered an increase of 4.41% or 
Php1.42 million from previous year.  

The booked allowance for credit losses 
registered an increase of 57.19% from the 
previous year’s Php8.66 million to 
Php13.62 million for 2021 or an increase of 
Php4.95 million. With this booked required 
allowance for probable losses for loans and 
other receivables, per computation, 
required ACL was 100% covered as of 
December 31, 2021.   

Graph 9.0 Gross Income/Expenses to Net Income (in million) 
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The growth rate of 10.53% (Php8.012 
million) in income and the lower increase in 
expenses at 6.66% contributed to the 
growth rate of net income at 118.73%, 
from Php2.58 million in 2020 to Php5.7 
million in 2021.  
 

 
 

The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), the 
percentage of core and supplementary 
capital against risk weighted assets of the 
Bank, as seen in graph 10.0 decreased 
from 18.61% to 15.39.  The CAR sustained 
by the Bank as of December 31, 2021 was 
inferior to the cooperative and rural 
banking industry average of 19.12% 
based on September 2021 available data. 
(source:www.bsp.gov.ph/statistics) 

 

 
 

The increase in risk weighted assets 
such as the non-performing loans and the 
total loan portfolio contributed to the 
decrease in the capital adequacy ratio of 
the bank, including the increase in 
foreclosed assets which is measured at 
150% risk of its booked value. Due from 
other Banks are classified as 100% risk 
weighted. Current loans are rated 100% 
except loans under the ACPC-ANYO 
programs, as it is fully guaranteed by the 
DA-ACPC, thus zero weighted. 

  

2019 2020 2021

12.99

2.58
5.7

Graph 9.2 Net Income (in Million)

20.80 18.61 15.39

2019 2020 2021

Graph 10.0 Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
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COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
BALANCE SHEET 12/31/2020 12/31/2021
Total Assets 615,072,275  774,435,828  
Cash & Due from Banks 184,507,122 287,765,738 
Loans and Discounts (net) 353,227,836 412,066,758 
Investments (HTM) 26,031,817   21,477,384   
Bank Premises (net) 17,588,057   13,557,155   
ROPA & SCR (net) 6,410,305     8,464,647     
 Other Assets 27,307,138   31,104,146   
Total Liabilities 504,546,782  666,437,363  
Non-reserve Deposit 1,087,223     1,434,502     
Deposit Liabilities 411,156,922 493,960,794 
Bills Payable 51,272,512   124,324,823 
Redeemable Preferred Share 3,130,300     3,130,300     
Others 37,899,824   43,586,944   
Total Capital 111,384,311  107,998,464  
Common shares 36,034,000   36,256,000   
Preferred shares 12,058,000   12,401,000   
Stock Dividends Distributable 8,610,770     8,895,134     
Surplus & Paid-in Surplus 2,000,000     2,000,000     
Retained Earnings 43,693,070   48,446,330   
Deposit for Stock Subscription 8,988,470     - 
Undivided Profits - - 

FINANCIAL RATIOS 2020 2021
A. Financial Strength (Solvency):
1. Capital Adequacy Ratio 18.61% 15.39%
2. Fixed Assets to Net Worth 15.79% 12.55%
3. Past Due Ratio 13.64% 17.28%
4. Deposits to Net Worth 369.13% 457.38%
B. Test of Liquidity
1. Legal Reserves 2.96% 2.04%
2. Primary Reserves 44.88% 58.26%
3. Deposit Quality 1.68% 8.23%
4. Deposit to Total Assets 66.85% 63.78%
5. Minimum Liquidity Ratio (MLR) 51.50% 62.49%
C. Profitability Ratio
1. Gross income to earning assets 12.96% 11.87%
2. Expenses to Gross Income 96.55% 93.21%
3. Net Income to Gross Income 3.39% 6.79%
4. Net Income to Capital Accounts 2.31% 5.28%
D. Financial Growth
1. Deposit Liabilities 4.03% 20.14%
2. Net Worth 4.11% -3.04%
3. Loan Portfolio (Gross) 12.43% 17.51%
4. Resources 13.79% 25.91%
E. Other Financial Indicators
1. Non-Performing Loans 13.64% 13.35%
2. NPL Coverage 53.30% 60.96%
3. NPA to Gross Assets 1.04% 8.44%
4. NPA Coverage 47.44% 57.87%
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
Burgos cor. Gaddang Sts., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA (CBNV) 
OPERATIONAL PLAN AND LOAN BUDGET 

YEAR 2022 

I. RATIONALE

The year 2021 has been another year challenging not only the stability of any business
establishments but its resiliency amidst the prolonged effect of the COVID-19 pandemic.  
The effect of the African Swine Virus (ASF), the rice tariff law in the Philippines, drought in 
the first semester of the year while flashfloods brought by strong typhoons in the second 
semester.  These challenges are testing the capability of not only a single sector but all sectors 
of society.  The effect of the pandemic alone brought so much impact on business 
establishments, not even the banking industry.   

The Philippine economy is forecast to remain on a steady growth path in 2021 and 
2022, supported by acceleration in the government’s coronavirus disease (COVID-19) 
vaccination program and a sharp drop in COVID-19 cases, according to a report released by 
the Asian Development Bank (ADB). The supplement to the Asian Development Outlook
(ADO) 2021 says the Philippine economy will grow 5.1% in 2021 and 6.0% in 2022. 
(https://www.adb.org/news/adb-raises-2021-2022-growth-forecasts-philippines). 

This forecast guides the Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya to be optimistic in its 
own projection for next year. Analyzing its performance for 2021, the bank was not spared 
especially during the prolonged localized lockdowns.  Region II, including the province of 
Nueva Vizcaya, where the Head Office and two of its branches are located, being declared 
either modified enhanced community quarantine (MECQ) or general community quarantine 
(GCQ) and the implementation of localized lockdowns of municipalities, borrowers’ paying 
capacity had been affected. Inflation rates which escalated to as high as 4.9% in August 2021 
before slowing down to 4.2% in November 2021 coupled with prolonged closure of non-
essential businesses affected loan collection performance thus allowance for credit losses has 
to be booked.  

Employees were not spared with the deadly virus that caused the Bank to almost 
temporary closure of its Head Office in September along with one of its branches. With 
contingency measures and business continuity plan, following standard health protocols, the 
Bank was able to minimize the spread of the virus.  Employees were incentivized for a one 
day vacation with pay to get vaccinated.   

Nonetheless, this economic turmoil, proves that while the banking industry is among 
the most affected sector due to the escalation of past due loans, increased requirement for 
allowance for credit losses, implementation of government policies such as the Bayanihan to 
Heal as One Act and the Bayanihan to Recover as One (BARO II), with vigilance and careful 
assessment, the Bank continues to strategize for recovery.   It is confident that it will steadily 
and continuously recover in 2022.  Along with the different industry sector it serves, the 
agriculture and the micro, small and medium enterprises (MSME), household consumers, it 
will pave its way to stabilize again in 2022.  The continuous monitoring and assistance of the 
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Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP), easing up some regulatory issuances, guides the Bank on 
how to manage and mitigate the risks. 

The Bank conducted strategic planning in the last quarter of 2021 for its Five Year 
Development Plan for the years 2022 to 2026.  The identified gaps of the previous five-year 
plan served as the baseline in the development of its 2022-2026 five-year developmental plan 
considering the effect of the pandemic and the continuing impact for the years to come. 

For the Bank 2022 budget, analysis of the credit demands of each area has been 
conducted that prevents over funding in a certain area that tends to sacrifice other areas and 
which also have the intention to benefit to low cost financing. 

This plan and budget is designed to be flexible and adaptable to the constant and 
continuous changes in the economic and social conditions in the market environment.  

II. THE PLAN

Guided by the 2022-2026 Development Plan of the Bank, this operational plan is
aimed to meet “One Billion Asset in 2026 or #1Bin26” 

A. 2022 SPECIFIC OBJECTIVES

Specifically, at the end of the year, it is aimed to meet the following objectives: 
1. To increase membership by five new affiliates.
2. To increase required minimum capital of coops running for elective position from 50,000.00

to 100,000.00.
3. To increase preferred shares of the Board of Directors, General Assembly Committee

members and Officers from P5,000.00 to at least P10,000.00
4. To increase the Loan Portfolio to Php494.00 million (gross loan portfolio);
5. To increase outstanding deposit balance and improve deposit quality:

a. To increase deposit liabilities to P482 million deposits or an increase by P42 million;
b. Decrease interest expense on deposit through 35:65 ratio of regular savings deposits

and time deposits and re-pricing of time deposit rates.
c. Decrease expense on payment of documentary stamp tax (DST) by at least 10% of

the previous year’s expense.
6. To increase net income for the year to not lower than Php12.00 million and maintain a profit

ratio of not lower than 13%;
a. increase gross income by increasing loan portfolio;
b. decrease expense on loan loss provisioning;
c. decrease controllable administrative expenses;
d. increase collection on interest on loans and written-off accounts;
e. to open a window for income-base services such as acceptance of remittances, bills

payments, POS and digitalized services through tie-ups with digital service providers;
7. To maintain Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of not lesser than 15%;

a. Decrease non-performing loans;
b. Decrease non-performing assets;
c. Increase of Capitalization - fresh capital from members;
d. Amend its Article of Cooperation and By-laws to increase the authorized capital to

Php120.00 million.
8. To improve asset quality:

a. Introduce new products & services and re-packaging/enhancing existing loan products:
1. Back to Back Loan Program
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2. Housing and Real Estate Loan
3. CBNV Loan For Farmer-Entrepreneurs Program (CLFF Program)
4. Rediscounting line for primary coops through the Credit Line Assistance Program

(CLAP)
5. CBNV Employees Salary Loan Assistance Program (CESLA Program)
6. Kaagapay sa Kaunlaran (KASAKA) Agricultural Loan Program
7. Offer basic deposit account with competitive interest rate
8. Increase share on MSME through the “Ka-Negosyo Kita” (K na K) Loan Program

under the funding of P3
9. Calamity Response Loan for qualified existing clients
10. Participate in government-funded loan programs for the marginalized sectors
11. Businessmen, Entrepreneur, Employees and Farmers (BEEF) Loan Facility

b. To decrease Past Due Ratio (PDR) to less than 14%  or within the rural and cooperative
bank industry average:
1. Collection of non-performing amortized loans;
2. Collection of past due non-performing loans through the "Enhanced Loan Payment

Scheme";
3. Improve collection rate on current loans and maturing loans to 93%;

c. To fully book loan-loss provisioning as required under Circular 855 and the Revised
Appendix 18;
1. Monthly assessment and monitory of loan-loss provisioning per branch;
2. To book allowance for credit losses (ACL) on a monthly basis;
3. To conduct qualitative review of loans under the defined materiality threshold at least

on semi-annual basis to assess credit risk factors and mitigate the same.
d. ROPA disposal

1. to enhance the ROPA sales promo scheme, “LUPA SA ABOT-KAYANG
HALAGA”, to intensify marketing of acquired assets held for more than five years;

i. To dispose at least five acquired assets held for more than 5 years;
ii. To dispose at least five acquired assets through public auction sale and

negotiated sale (newly acquired accounts);
2. Identification of acquired assets for immediate disposal to increase income.

9. Strong Coop Bank as an organization through:
a. Fully trained staff for full automation (Accounting, Personnel, PPE, etc.);
b. Standard building façade;
c. Continuing professional training on banking operation;
d. Cash reward for outstanding branch

10. No material findings noted by BSP, CDA & other regulatory bodies.
a. Timely and accurate reporting of required documents by all regulatory bodies
b. To conduct annual performance appraisal of Board & elected Committee.
c. To conduct risk-based internal audit;
d. Continuous amendment and updating of existing policies based on BSP and other

regulatory agencies by end of 2022
11. To apply for a branch or branch lite in the province of Nueva Ecija.
12. To increase equity by transferring the shares of non-compliant members to Preferred Shares

“E” compliant to regulatory procedures.
13. To submit application for amendments of the Articles and Cooperation to increase authorized

capital.

The Bank’s total target for the year is distributed to the five (5) banking offices namely: Head
Office (Solano), Bambang Branch, Kayapa Branch, Maddela Branch (Quirino) and Ramon Branch 
(Isabela). The net income for each branch was based on net of expenses sharing for corporate 
expenses based on portfolio size. 
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B. ENVIRONMENTAL SCANNING

a. The Rural Banking industry

Rural banks continue to support countryside development and growth of retail 
banking through financing of rural communities. The industry caters to the needs of the 
agricultural and micro, small and medium enterprise (MSME) borrowers. The industry 
outlook of rural banks remains positive. 

Banks had a subdued optimism on the country’s economic prospect amidst global 
uncertainties and market volatilities, the effect of the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic for 
the last two years (2020 – 2021) and the resurgence of the virus. The results of the 
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ (BSP) latest Banking Sector Outlook Survey (BSOS) in the 
first half of the year showed that most banks, representing 41.9 percent of the 
respondents, expect the country’s gross domestic  product (GDP) growth to range 
between 5 percent and 6 percent within the two-year horizon 
(https://businessmirror.com.ph/2021/07/21/bsp-poll-phl-bankers-subdued-on-economy-but-see-
their-sector-faring-well-in-2021)

Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya experiencing high past due ratio (PDR) ranging 
from 15% to 18.5% for the year 2021, but is expecting decrease in 2022 with the opening 
of business establishments and easing of restrictions that started in last quarter of 2021. It 
has projected a less than 14% PDR and less than 10% non-performing loan (NPL) ratio. 

The province of Nueva Vizcaya, where the Head Office is located, shares almost 94% 
of the bank’s deposit liabilities generated and 75% of loan portfolio is lent, has the 
highest number of rural banks in the region mostly situated in Solano, Nueva Vizcaya. 
Commercial banks and thrift banks alike are venturing into retail lending which is 
synonymous to the rural bank’s business operation.  Multi-purpose cooperatives in the 
region given the authority by the CDA of branching have also aggressively doing 
business of lending and savings generation, giving tight competition among these groups, 
not to mention micro-lending institution. 

b. The Community

Region II where CBNV is doing business has an outstanding loan portfolio
extended to the rural and cooperative banking sector of Php9.72 billion as of June 2021 
(Source: BSP Statistics at http://www.bsp.gov.ph). CBNV’s share of this loan portfolio is 
barely 5%. Likewise, deposit balances for the rural and cooperative banking sector as of 
June 2021 for Region II has been registered at Php12.52 billion. The Bank can expand its 

Branch Loan Portfolio 
(Gross Portfolio) Deposits PDR Net Income 

Head Office  215,087,740 318,669,807.64 17.35%  5,379,562 
Bambang  103,206,871 98,730,038.13 10.16%  4,286,953 
Kayapa  46,000,000 35,901,629.50 11.08%  1,225,796 
Maddela  69,742,688 20,310,492.28 12.93%  1,537,610 
Ramon  60,000,000 9,000,170.47 11.12%  158,464 
Total  494,037,299 482,612,138.02 13.90%  12,588,385 
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market in areas where opportunity is vast.  The area of Isabela can give opportunity for 
growth for its branch established in the municipality of Ramon.  

As of November 30, 2021, CBNV posted a net loan portfolio of P421 million and 
deposit liabilities of Php445.00 million. The Head Office and branches in Nueva Vizcaya 
shares in the market roughly 12% of the total loan portfolio for Nueva Vizcaya and 12% 
on deposit liabilities as well.   

This data shows that CBNV can eventually grow and expand its position in the 
rural and cooperative banking industry in the region through intensive marketing 
programs and proper packaging of financial needs of its clientele and the public. 

Despite the stringent regulatory requirements, competition among rural banks, the 
move of commercial banks doing retail banking through acquisition of rural banks and 
the unrestrained expansion of primary cooperatives and micro-lending, CBNV has a vast 
advantage due to its clientele, which are distributed over the major towns of the provinces 
of Nueva Vizcaya, Isabela, Ifugao, Quirino and Benguet.  Its membership composition is 
diversified and distributed, thus, it clearly implies fresh and potential market for its 
services. With the newly amended Articles of Cooperation and By-laws, the inclusion of 
Nueva Ecija in its area of business operation shall open opportunities for the Bank to 
expand. 

BSP Circular 992 which gives opportunities to the people in the rural communities 
for access to banking transactions is a way to increase market share of the CBNV in 
deposit taking.  This circular encourages banks to reach out to communities to have a 
deposit service that will allow the client to open an account with an opening amount of 
P100.00, no dormancy charge, no maintaining balance requirement, simplified know-
your-customer (KYC) procedure and an incentive for the bank of no legal reserve 
requirement.   

MUNICIPALITY NO. OF BARANGAYS 
NUEVA VIZCAYA
1. Ambaguio  8   barangays 
2. Aritao 21  barangays 
3. Bagabag 17  barangays 
4. Bambang 25  barangays 
5. Bayombong 25  barangays 
6. Dupax del Sur/Norte 30  barangays 
7. Kayapa 35  barangays 
8. Villaverde  9   barangays 
9. Solano 32  barangays 
10. Diadi  8   barangays 
11. Quezon 12  barangays 
12. Sta. Fe 16  barangays 
13. Kasibu  22  barangays 
14. Alfonso Castañeda 3 barangays 
CAR
1. Lamut, Ifugao 3 barangays 
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MUNICIPALITY NO. OF BARANGAYS 
2. Bokod, Benguet 9 barangays 
3. Kabayan, Benguet 5 barangays 
4. Itogon, Benguet 2 barangays 
5. La Trinidad, Benguet 2 barangays 
6. Baguio City 3 barangays 
7. Alfonso Lista, Ifugao 20 barangays 
QUIRINO
1. Aglipay 17 barangays 
2. Cabarroguis 5 barangays 
3. Diffun 4 barangays 
4. Maddela 24 barangays 
5. Nagtipunan 13 barangays 
6. Saguday 7 barangays 
ISABELA
1. San Agustin 4 barangays 
2. Echague 3 barangays 
3. Santiago City 40 barangays 
4. Cordon 3 barangays 
5. San Mateo 33 barangays 
6. Cauayan 2 barangay 
7. Ramon 19 barangays 
8. Benito Soliven
9. Alicia 34 barangays 
Total 370 barangays

The Board of Directors and its Senior Management is continuously developing loan 
products to expand its services to its target market. The renewal of its rediscounting line 
with the SB Corporation for a partnership with the government’s program to accelerate 
financing among the micro and medium enterprises under the Pondo Para sa Pagbabago 
(P3) program is a prospective project that will steady its portfolio.  This will give 
opportunities for growth in the micro and medium businesses and services. 

The NCLEMAP or the Non-Collateralized LGU Employees Assistance Program 
caters to the needs of local government unit (LGU) of the different municipalities in the 
area of operation. This program also caters to the needs of barangay officials and 
executives located at not only lowland areas but even upland barangays. 

The Credit Line Assistance Program (CLAP) was also designed and continuously 
improved to provide additional operating capital of CBNV primary member-cooperatives.  
The Bank foresees additional takers for this facility this coming year. 

The Businessmen, Entrepreneur, Employees and Farmers (BEEF) Loan Facility is 
continuously enhanced to offer affordable interest rates to loyal clients; to convince big 
tickets and to be more competitive to other Financing Institutions (FIs) and to develop 
local entrepreneurs from among Coop Bank existing clients, expansion to finance 
agricultural machineries of clients venturing not only to ordinary farming but 
entrepreneurial farming.  It also opened windows to cater financing needs of these clients 
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for transportation/vehicle-related purposes, thus, an opportunity to market clients that 
prefer to transact business with the local banks.  

These areas will give the bank the flexibility to expand its services among the 
existing clients it already caters and to other areas planning to cater. 

Depositors are also continuously being expanded and loan services available to 
them are also projected. The Back-to-Back Loan Program is continuously being enhanced 
to provide business opportunities to our existing depositors. 

With the stiff competition among the financing institutions (FIs), micro-lending 
institutions and the massive expansion of primary cooperatives in the areas being catered 
by the Bank, the FAIR or the Farmers Affordable Interest Rate Loans for its local clients 
is a result of the Bank’s market sensitivity initiative to maintain its existing clients and to 
attract more new customers.  

The CLFF Program or the Cooperative Loan For Farmer-entrepreneurs launched 
in 2016 is planned to be duplicated to other farmer-entrepreneurs especially farmer 
groups who have undergone the Farmer-Based School (FBS) by the Department of 
Agrarian Reform and Farmer Entrepreneurship Program (FEP) assisted by the Bank in 
cooperation with the then National Livelihood Development Corporation (NLDC). This 
program finances farmers venturing to organic farming and cash crops where demand is 
high. The program is a modified agricultural value chain financing with an existing 
Memorandum of Agreement between the Bank, the farmers and its institutional market, 
the Organic Option, Inc.  This facility running six years in 2021 has been analyzed as 
zero-past due account.  

Extending to the agricultural sector with no securities to offer is classified as high 
risk sectors but is a bankable market. With risk mitigating factors such as the guarantee 
premium approved by the Agricultural Guarantee Fund Pool (AGFP) is the KAagapay SA 
KAunlaran Loan Program (KASAKA Program) which aims to help increase loan 
portfolio. 

Partnering with the Department of Agriculture-Agricultural Credit Policy Council 
(DA-ACPC) shall expand the Bank’s share with the farmers and the agripreneurs. This 
program shall establish partnership with these sectors to expand the market share of the 
Bank in areas where financing is scarce.   

c. CREDIT DEMAND

With the pandemic, the Bank foresees decrease in loan portfolio due to the stimulus 
funds of the government to almost all the sectors of society.  The micro and small 
farmers and fisher folks are heavily concentrated with government funds to recovery, the 
same with the MSME sectors.  Funds with zero interest rate and the social amelioration 
program (SAP) disbursed by the government to boost economy coupled with the 
reluctance of clients to start immediately after the lift of the ECQ/MECQ is contributing 
to the low demand on credit.  The move of the BSP to maintain overnight reverse 
repurchase rate at 2%, while keeping the overnight interest on deposit and lending rates 
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at 1.5% and 2.5%, respectively, requires move from the rural and cooperative banking 
sector for repricing to compete with the big universal and commercial banks. 

New credit facilities or loan product should be crafted in order to capture market, 
calamity loans and start-up capital has been formulated and approved to clinch share on 
market demands.  The decrease in interest rates by one percent (1%) in the second 
semester of 2021 for time deposits and maintaining interest on loans is expected to boost 
loan portfolio to a steady rise. With funding sources from deposits and government 
funded loan programs, loan portfolio was projected to increase as much as 8% by end of 
2022. 

Despite the stiff competition among the different financial institution, primary 
cooperatives including the micro-lending institution in the Region, CBNV is optimistic 
that it still captures widespread clients especially the farmers and fisherfolks in the rural 
areas, though risk is high, these sectors are still bankable with the right and correct loan 
packages and services offered to them. The Bank is maintaining a guarantee line with the 
Agricultural Guarantee Fund Pool (AGFP) to lower the risks of extending loans to these 
sectors.    

To lessen impact of concentration risks, the Bank has loan packages to cater to 
other purposes such as consumer loans (overseas loans, educational and 
auto/transportation loans), business loans to small and medium enterprises, investment 
loans such as lot purchases and housing-related loans.  

Data were gathered and analyzed in the area of operation from the Bureau of 
Agricultural Statistics, National Statistics Office, Department of Trade and Industry, 
Department of Agriculture, Provincial and Municipal Planning and Development Office.  

 This enables the Bank to estimate the actual population, area under cultivation, 
number of livestock producers, market vendors/traders, small business and cottage 
industries credit demand, to position the bank to determine the extent of services required 
to maximize the benefits to its clients and to the bank. 

CBNV is authorized to include in its area of business operation the provinces of 
Ifugao, Quirino, Isabela, Benguet and Nueva Ecija which are adjacent to Nueva Vizcaya. 

d. CREDIT SUPPLY

The Coop Bank has identified the different potential sources of credit supply to
sustain the targeted share in the identified credit demand. 

FUND SOURCES ESTIMATED FUNDS AVAILABLE
Savings Generation Php 482 Million 
Preferred Shares “D & E” Php 12.5 Million 
Common Shares including deposit 
for stock subscription 

Php60.0 Million 

Collection of loans       200.00 Million 
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Borrowings Credit Line 
     Land Bank of the Phil.       

   Small Business Corporation   
     DA-ACPC Funds   
     Development Bank of the Philippines   

 Php5.0 M 
 20.0 M 

130.0 M 
5.0 M     

Increase of deposit liabilities by Php41.00 million for the year shall support the 
projected increase in loans and FFEs to support operation. 

The projected increase on the sources of funds will give the Bank opportunity to 
increase its current market share in the community. This will increase demand on bank’s 
financial services rather than the informal sources of funds which are too costly for the 
clients to avail with. 

C. MARKETING OF SERVICES

 The aggregate function of the Bank is directed in providing services to satisfy 
customers’ financial needs and wants. More effectively, with the awareness of the stiff 
competition and keeping in view the organizational objective, the Bank continuously 
commits to be innovative. 

The Cooperative Bank has a massive advantage in the market. The primary member-
cooperatives, individual stockholders and stakeholders act as its marketing arm in 
providing affordable financial services to the general public.  

The road map of the Bank posts new challenges ahead by expansion and covering 
other towns of the provinces included in its area of business operation focusing on 
structured approach on the wants and needs of customers by improving the quality of 
product and services with the following marketing strategies: 

 Identifying the customer’s financial needs and wants;
 Develop appropriate banking products and services to meet customer’s needs;
 Determine the prices for the products/services developed;
 Advertise and promote the product to existing and potential customer of financial

services;
 Set up suitable distribution channels and bank branches;
 Forecasting and research of future market needs

To retain clients is not only to create and win more and more customers but also to 
maintain them through effective delivery of services.   

Continuous advertisements through radio and involvement in community-based 
programs and the Bank's Community Social Responsibility (CSR) are an effective 
channel of marketing the Bank's programs and services. 
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With the government thrusts and programs, the materials and inputs in the projects
which were planned that Coop Bank would venture on are readily available.  Internet and 
on-line computers per department has been installed to facilitate Bank transactions. 
Agricultural and industrial suppliers of seeds, inputs (fertilizers and pesticides dealers) are 
situated in the identified municipalities.  Other Non-Governmental Organizations (NGOs) 
are also willing to assist in these programs in the form of technical assistance and the like. 

Bank vehicles, motorcycles and other facilities were acquired and additional for these 
were planned to be purchased in 2022 to make the Bank more visible in the community. 

The Bank installed a computerized system namely the CYBERONE ONLINE 
SOLUTION which is fully integrated to enhance Bank’s services in line with its 
corporate values of being Customer Focus.  It is has been continuously improved to meet 
demand of clients while computer facilities are continuously upgraded.  It is targeted to 
have a consolidated server on cloud.  This will improve reporting procedures and 
minimize manual interventions in the preparation of daily transactions and consolidating 
reports from all the branches. 

b. Human Resources

With the target/projection presented in the budget, thorough analysis on the 
management structure to meet the needs is presented, to ensure the proper monitoring of 
the performance of the operations. 

Manpower Current Additional Total
SENIOR MANAGEMENT 5 5
CORPORATE OFFICE (Staff & Heads) 26 26

Office of the General Manager/President 
Compliance Office  

1 
1 

1 
1 

Internal Audit Department 
Credit Risk Department 
Loans and Asset Management Department 
Information Technology Department 
Accounting Department 
Office of the Cooperative Secretary 
Admin & Human Resource Department 

2 
6 
5 
2 
2 
2 
5 

2 
6 
5 
2 
2 
2 
5 

HEAD OFFICE 18 1 19
BAMBANG BRANCH 12 12
KAYAPA BRANCH 6 1 7
MADDELA BRANCH 6 1 7
RAMON BRANCH 6 1 7
TOTAL 79 4 83 

Employees were trained to work as a team so as not to leave a vacuum in the structure 
when there are occasions that employees are out or absent. Continuous in-house trainings and 
seminars aside from seminars conducted by agencies and other organizations are scheduled 
for employees to adapt to the fast changing bank transactions and operations and to be 
productive and competitive individuals. Approved calendar of trainings is in place 

D. THE BANK'S RESOURCES

a. Available Equipment and Technical Inputs and Logistics
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anticipating policy changes for implementation for the year 2022.  The Institutional Capacity 
Building (ICB) partnership with the Agricultural Credit and Policy Council approved in 
December 2020 will enhance employee expertise particularly on portfolio management and 
client monitoring, loan packaging and collection strategies to improve quality portfolio.  

E. LOAN TARGETS

It is kept in mind that after thorough analysis of the internal and external factors 
that affect operations, the need to diversify the loan portfolio was considered to be 
distributed as possible, to maintain the profitability of the Coop Bank, at par with the 
industry.  

a. INCREASE IN CURRENT LOANS
GROSS LOAN PORTFOLIO Projected End 

Balance (2021) 2022 TARGET INCREASE/ 
(DECREASE) 

Rate of 
Increase 

Agrarian Loans 124,997,896.47 140,804,491.08   15,806,595 13% 
Other Agricultural Loans 69,290,088.51 80,942,639.61   11,652,551 17% 
SME 75,494,002.58 86,620,260.58   11,126,258 15% 
Housing 38,705,540.53 43,686,625.51     4,981,085 13% 
Auto/Motorcycle Loan 12,830,904.87 15,021,232.98     2,190,328 17% 

Other Consumption loans Loans 28,218,655.60 31,338,243.04     3,119,587 11% 
Salary-based Loans 11,664,945.04 13,051,272.38     1,386,327 12% 
Loans for Other Purposes 14,002,102.75 15,347,424.85     1,345,322 10% 
Restructured Loans 87,440.51 27,409.23         (60,031) -69%
       TOTAL 375,291,576.87 426,839,599.27   51,548,022 14% 

LOANS AS TO STATUS Projected End 
Balance (2021) 2022 TARGET INCREASE/ 

(DECREASE) 
Rate of 
Increase 

Current Loans  375,291,577  426,839,599  51,548,022 13.74% 
Past Due Loans    78,540,571    60,104,720 -18,435,850 -23.47%
Items in Litigation  4,910,815  7,292,979    2,382,164 48.51% 
Total Gross Portfolio  458,742,962  494,037,299  35,294,336 7.69% 
Unearned Interest Discount  7,914,406  9,217,256    1,302,850 16.46% 
Allowance for Credit Losses/GLLP    45,360,483    47,937,034    2,576,552 5.68% 
NET PORTFOLIO  405,468,074  436,883,009  31,414,935 7.75% 

A detailed loan mix is presented in the loan projection.

Strategies and specific actions to be taken are included in each action plan of all branches 
to meet the projected increase. 

b. REDUCTION OF PAST DUE LOANS

The COVID-19 pandemic accelerated the increase of the Bank’s past due loans and
non-performing loans (NPL) for the year 2021 along with the effect of low prices in 
palay and corn production of farmers and the African Swine Fever (ASF) that impacted 
the livestock prices.  The calamity that hit the country causing floods and landslides in 
the last quarter of 2021 did contribute to the past due accounts especially the agricultural 
sector.  The Bank is expected to register a past due ratio of not lower than 18% for the 
cut-off period December 31, 2021.  Delinquency is indispensable no matter how careful 
and how well credit initiation is being undertaken, especially with the COVID-19 
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pandemic.  Reducing the past due ratio to 13.74% to end of December 31, 2022 is just 
another challenge for CBNV.  

To meet the target and to improve collection performance of employees and to 
increase past due loan collection, the Bank has established a "Performance Evaluation 
System" which shall be used to evaluate performances of employees. The “Enhanced 
Loan Payment Scheme” shall be continuously improved as means of collection strategy 
to waive penalty charges for clients who are willing to pay but had been incapacitated as 
a result of calamities, bankruptcy and other reasons that made their accounts become 
past due.   

Specific targets per Loans Assistant was discussed and clearly disseminated to all 
Branches which are integrated to their individual performance targets. 

Support Departments like the Compliance Department, Internal Audit Department, 
Administrative Department, Accounting Department, Loans Department, Treasury 
Department and the IT Department have laid down different strategies and activities to 
support operations in the attainment of the different objectives and the targets for the 
year. 

F. EXPANSION

Continues membership expansion is among the goals in the development plan of 
the Bank.  The amendments of the Articles of Cooperation and By-laws of the Bank 
approved by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and the Cooperative Development 
Authority (CDA) give the opportunity for management to expand and accept more new 
members.  Strong primary cooperatives in the region as well as associate shareholders are 
marketed to invest with the Bank.   

The Bank's capability of declaring dividends for the last six consecutive years had 
been an instrument for new primary cooperatives to invest and become its members.  It is 
worthwhile to note that existing primary member-cooperatives subscribed to facilitate the 
amendments of the Bank's Article of Cooperation and By-laws. The Bank’s capability of 
recruiting and alluring new investors is being boosted with the approval of the 
amendments. The BSP has approved the amendments of the Bank’s Article of 
Cooperation and By-laws, enabling it to recruit additional membership and increase its 
capitalization. 

The Bank in its Five-Year Development Plan has projected to at least establish a 
branch within its area of business operation.  The approval to include Nueva Ecija in its 
area of operation will be an opportunity of growth and expansion.  It is planned to open a 
branch in Nueva Ecija in the fourth quarter of 2022. 
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(SGD) ROLY D. VALDEZ 
Treasurer 

(SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN 
President 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this 30th day of December 2021 during the Board of Directors 
regular meeting; under Board Resolution No. 401 series of 2021. 

CERTIFIED TRUE AND CORRECT: 

(SGD) FELICIANO P. TIBURCIO 
Secretary to the Board of Directors  

Attested by: 

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
Chairperson of the Board of Directors 

Submitted to the Board of Directors for their appropriate consideration by the following: 

(SGD)VIRGILIO B. LUCQUIAO 
Branch Manager - Bambang Branch 

(SGD) ROLDAN BALBIN A. ROMERO 
Branch Manager - Kayapa Branch

(SGD) SHARON MARIE O. MANAIG 
Branch Manager - Maddela Branch

(SGD) FELISA M.  AMINO
 Accountant 

(SGD) MARY JANE F. ARIZALA 
Administrative Manager 

(SGD) ARLETTE MAE C. ACERET 
Internal Auditor 

(SGD) JOEL R. CARINO 
Branch Manager - Solano Branch

(SGD) HERALD JAY R. LIZARDO 
Acting Branch Manager - Ramon Branch 

(SGD) ZALDY R. GROSPE
LAMD Manager 

(SGD) CRIZALDO B. GORDO 
Systems Administrator 

(SGD) VENER V. CLEMENCIA 
Credit Risk Officer 

(SGD) NIDA T. GUZMAN 
Chief Compliance Officer 
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Increase in Loan Portfolio, Gross of UID 34.5 M
Growth Rate- Current Loans 11.91%
Total Loan Portfolio, Net 440.7 M
Total Deposit Liabilities 482.6 M
Total Resources 786.7 M
Total Capital 142.0 M
Net Income 12.6 M
Past-Due Ratio 13.90%

Gross Income 91,462,623 
Total Expenses 78,873,758 
Net Income 12,588,865 
Profitability Ratio 13.76%
Past Due Ratio 13.90%
Loans Portfolio (Gross) 484,820,043 
Deposit Liabilities 482,612,138 

ASSETS
Cash and Due from Banks 235,775,975 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 
Loans & Receivables, net 440,674,399 
Investment, net 31,435,961 
Bank Premises, net 18,388,040 
ROPA and SCR, net 11,025,497 
Other Assets, net 39,299,683 
Total Assets 786,658,393 

Deposit Liabilities 482,612,138 
Bills Payable 128,239,707 
Other Liabilities 33,829,037 
Total Liabilities 644,680,882 

Share Capitals 73,242,000 
Donated Capital 2,000,000 
Retained Earnings – Free 30,058,964 
 Retained Earnings – Reserve 15,476,911 
Stock Dividend Distributable 8,610,770 
Deposit for Stocks Subscription - 
Net Income 12,588,865 
Total Capital 141,977,511 
Total Liabilities and Capital Accounts 786,658,393 

INTEREST INCOME 67,719,028 
     Interest on Loans & other receivables 62,371,567 
     Interest on Investments 490,713 
     Interest on Deposits with Banks 4,856,748 
Other Income 23,743,595 
Gross Income 91,462,623 

EXPENSES
Interest on Deposits 12,676,781 
Interest on Bills Payable 32,635 
Compensation/Fringe Benefits 36,250,591 
Taxes & Licenses 1,093,711 
Other Administrative expenses 15,990,484 
Depreciation/Amortization 6,716,112 
Provision for Pobable losses 5,543,992 
Provision for Year-end Expenses 445,320 
Total Operating Expenses 78,749,626 
Net Income before Tax 12,712,996 
Less: Income Taxes (124,131) 

FINANCIAL TARGETS FOR 2022

PROJECTED INCOME  STATEMENT

LIABILITIES

CAPITAL

PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

ACCOUNTS ANNUAL BUDGET

Net Income after Tax  12,588,865

Net Income after Tax  12,588,865

FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS
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Increase in Loan Portfolio, Gross of UID 34.5 M
Growth Rate- Current Loans 11.91%
Total Loan Portfolio, Net 440.7 M
Total Deposit Liabilities 482.6 M
Total Resources 786.7 M
Total Capital 142.0 M
Net Income 12.6 M
Past-Due Ratio 13.90%

Gross Income 91,462,623 
Total Expenses 78,873,758 
Net Income 12,588,865 
Profitability Ratio 13.76%
Past Due Ratio 13.90%
Loans Portfolio (Gross) 484,820,043 
Deposit Liabilities 482,612,138 

ASSETS
Cash and Due from Banks 235,775,975 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 
Loans & Receivables, net 440,674,399 
Investment, net 31,435,961 
Bank Premises, net 18,388,040 
ROPA and SCR, net 11,025,497 
Other Assets, net 39,299,683 
Total Assets 786,658,393 

Deposit Liabilities 482,612,138 
Bills Payable 128,239,707 
Other Liabilities 33,829,037 
Total Liabilities 644,680,882 

Share Capitals 73,242,000 
Donated Capital 2,000,000 
Retained Earnings – Free 30,058,964 
 Retained Earnings – Reserve 15,476,911 
Stock Dividend Distributable 8,610,770 
Deposit for Stocks Subscription - 
Net Income 12,588,865 
Total Capital 141,977,511 
Total Liabilities and Capital Accounts 786,658,393 

INTEREST INCOME 67,719,028 
     Interest on Loans & other receivables 62,371,567 
     Interest on Investments 490,713 
     Interest on Deposits with Banks 4,856,748 
Other Income 23,743,595 
Gross Income 91,462,623 

EXPENSES
Interest on Deposits 12,676,781 
Interest on Bills Payable 32,635 
Compensation/Fringe Benefits 36,250,591 
Taxes & Licenses 1,093,711 
Other Administrative expenses 15,990,484 
Depreciation/Amortization 6,716,112 
Provision for Pobable losses 5,543,992 
Provision for Year-end Expenses 445,320 
Total Operating Expenses 78,749,626 
Net Income before Tax 12,712,996 
Less: Income Taxes (124,131) 

FINANCIAL TARGETS FOR 2022

PROJECTED INCOME  STATEMENT

LIABILITIES

CAPITAL

PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT

ACCOUNTS ANNUAL BUDGET

Net Income after Tax  12,588,865

Net Income after Tax  12,588,865
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURE - 2022 TOTAL

1 LONG TABLE FOR LOAN ASSISTANTS 75,000.00
L TYPE TABLE FOR THE CASH SECTION 40,000.00
PARTITION 20,000.00
7 WOODEN CHAIR FOR LOAN ASSISTANT 18,000.00
1 UNIT 2.5  HP SPLIT TYPE AIRCON 60,000.00
1 UNIT CASH BOX W/ COMBINATION 5,000.00
2 UNITS STEEL CABINET FOR CASH DEPT 30,000.00
1 UNIT PRINTER- CASH DEPT 10,000.00
1 UNIT PRINTER( REPLACEMENT FOR LC) 10,000.00
SMS and CCTV security system 15,000.00
1 unit cctv camera HD-( teller) 15,000.00
3 UNITS CPU 120,000.00
3 UNITS UPS 10,000.00
2 UNIT 4 TERABYTE HDD FOR CCTV 20,000.00
EXTERNAL CDROM 2,000.00

Total 450,000.00

2-Drawer Steel Filing Cabinet (2 units for Cash Section) 13,000.00
4-Drawer Steel Filing Cabinet (1 unit for Loan Section) 13,000.00
Client Chair 12,000.00
1 signature card cabinet 65,000.00
1 Unit Office Chair (Loans) 4,000.00
Server Table 5,000.00
Shredder Machine 30,000.00
2 units wallfan / Stand fan 4,000.00
Water Dispenser 10,000.00
Passbook printer - for Cash Section (replacement) 35,000.00
External CDROM 2,000.00
1 unit laptop 50,000.00
1 unit EPSON PRINTER (for accounting section) 10,000.00
2 units scanner 100,000.00
Office repair/improvements (Hanging cabinet) 30,000.00
1 unit Honda XRM- (replacement of XR200) 90,000.00
3 units CCTV camera 10,500.00
1 Unit CPU 50,000.00
2 units UPS 14,000.00
1 Unit 4 Terabyte HDD for CCTV 10,000.00
2 Units Microsoft Office 2019 License 30,000.00
SMS / CCTV Security System 15,000.00

Total 602,500.00

HEAD OFFICE

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
BASIC ASSUMPTION TO BUDGET 2022

BAMBANG BRANCH

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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Generator- Housing 30,000.00
1 unit Paper Shredder 30,000.00
1 SERVER TABLE 5,000.00
2 office table and swivel chair 20,000.00
2 steel filing cabinet 2nd floor 20,000.00
2 swivel chair(replacement 9,000.00
6 pcs Client chair 2nd floor 5,000.00
1 unit laptop 50,000.00
EXTERNAL CDROM 2,000.00
1 UNIT 4 TERABYTE HDD FOR CCTV 10,000.00
1 UNITS CPU(ALLAN 2013,) 50,000.00
2 UNIT CCTV CAMERA & wiring 20,000.00
SMS CCTV SECURITY SYSTEM 15,000.00
2 unit CP for AO 10,000.00

Total 276,000.00

1 unit Bill Counter-replacement 25,000.00
1 server table 5,000.00
1 unit steel Cabinet for LOANS-4 doors 15,000.00
1 unit Table 5,000.00
Installation of cage  with glass  40,000.00
1 unit split type aircon 70,000.00
1 UNIT EXTERNAL CD ROM 2,000.00
1 UNIT PRINTER SCANNER 10,000.00
1 UNIT PRINTER-WIRELESS 10,000.00
1 unit Document Scanner  50,000.00
1 unit Laptop 50,000.00
2 UNIT UPS 8,000.00
1 Unit 4 Terabyte HDD for CCTV 5,000.00
1 unit shredder 30,000.00
2 units CCTV CAMERA 7,000.00
SMS and CCTV Security System 15,000.00
1 Unit MS Office Pro Plus 2019 15,000.00
2 units MC HONDA XRM- COLLECTOR 190,000.00
steel case of generator outside-re entry 10,000.00
ACRYLIC SHIELD 20,000.00

Total 582,000.00

KAYAPA BRANCH

MADDELA  BRANCH

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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2 unit Steel filing cabinet (Cash & Accounting Dep't.) 30,000.00
5 units swivel chair(2 AO,CRR,APPRAISER) 20,000.00
Coop Bank NV signage (Highway)and Bank services signage 20,000.00
2 office table(for clients and 1 working table for new AO) 12,000.00
Server table 5,000.00
1 unit Paper Shredder 30,000.00
2 units Fire Extinguisher 10,000.00
1 unit Stand Fan 4,000.00
3 units cellphone/camera for Account Officers 15,000.00
2 unit Printer 30,000.00
1 unit Monitor (Bookkeeper) 10,000.00
1 unit CPU(Loans clerk) 40,000.00
SMS and CCTV Security System 15,000.00
1 UNIT EXTERNAL CDROM 2,000.00
2 Units CCTV Cameras 7,000.00
laptop charger & battery(BM) 5,000.00
1 Unit UPS (CCTV) 8,000.00
1 unit Backup Terra 5,000.00
2 UNITS UPS 6,000.00
1 unit motorcycle 75,000.00
Building Repair 100,000.00
Teller's Booth 30,000.00

Total 479,000.00

CORPORATE OFFICE 
OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT/GENERAL MANAGER

Building Repair/rooftop improvement 2,500,000.00
1 Unit Printer (President) 10,000.00
2 Unit Monitor for CCTV 20,000.00

Sub-total 2,530,000.00

Cubicle of Corporate Office 250,000.00
1 unit Aircon 3 toner, floor mounted, package type air condition 80,000.00
1 unit Paper Shredder 30,000.00
1 Printer Legal size 20,000.00
1 Unit Biometric Software License 25,000.00

Sub-Total 405,000.00

1 Unit Laptop 50,000.00
1 Unit External Hard Drive – 1 Terabyte 5,000.00

Sub-Total 55,000.00

RAMON BRANCH

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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1 Unit Laptop 50,000.00
1 swivel chair 5,000.00
1 Unit Monitor for CCTV 10,000.00

Sub-Total 65,000.00

1 Laptop  & accessories for System Admin 70,000.00
1 MS office for System Admin 10,000.00
2 Units Office Chair 10,000.00
1 Unit 1TB External HDD 5,000.00
1 Unit Computer Service Tool Kit 4,500.00
1 Unit Printer 10,000.00
CoopBank Web Site 70,000.00
Cyberone Online system 560,000.00

Sub-Total 739,500.00

 2 Units Printer (Ma’am Lisa (2017) & Accounting Clerk (2013))  20,000.00
Sub-Total 20,000.00

1 unit Camera 6,000.00
1 unit MC for RAS XR150 95,000.00
1 unit Hermaco Steel Cabinet 13,000.00
3 units swivel/wood chair (appraisers) 6,000.00
1 executive Chair 5,000.00
1 Unit External Hard Drive (1 Terabyte) 5,000.00
4 Units Office License (For 3 Appraisers and 1 LM)  45,000.00
2 units cellphone with camera for appraisers 10,000.00

Sub-Total 185,000.00

5 Units Office License (4 Loans Officer and 1 CRO) 75,000.00
1 Epson printer 20,000.00
1 Executive chair [re-entry] 5,000.00
1 external hard drive(1 terra)Back up 5,000.00

Sub-Total 105,000.00

1 Unit Printer 10,000.00
1 Unit Laptop 50,000.00

 Sub-Total 60,000.00

TREASURER

COMPLIANCE OFFICE

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

LOANS AND ASSET MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 

ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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7 Unit Laptop (Replacement for BOD) 350,000.00
1 Unit Printer 10,000.00
1 Unit Laptop 50,000.00

Sub-Total 410,000.00
GRAND TOTAL- CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 6,964,000.00

BOD / BOD SECRETARY

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS

12.  Interest income from loans are based on blended rates (refer to supporting 
schedules  …….and computations).

1.     Total Capital outlay shall be more or less Php7.004 Million with straight-line    
…….depreciation method for three years on furniture, fixtures and equipment and  
…….transportation equipment for five years. 
2.     Gross loan portfolio shall increase to Php494.00 Million, with approximately 8% 
…….increase.
3.     Deposit Liabilities will increase by Php41 Million.
4.     Budgeted replacement of IT and transportation equipment shall be subject to 
5.     Income for the year is projected to be not lower than P12 Million.
6.     Total assets shall increase by at least 8% or Php58.00 million.
7.     Additional accident insurance for all employees on field.
8.     Additional manpower shall be four for regular or permanent status and four  
…….contractual employees.
9.     Sources of funds will come from deposit generation, collection on loans and  
…….rediscounting facilities.
10.  Provision for contingencies on operation was budgeted at Php450,000.00.
11.  Additional investment for the retirement of employees is at least P1,500,000.00

21.  Travelling expenses for official business is based on existing policy.

13.  Interest on deposit with local banks is at average rate of 2.5% per annum.
14.  Service charges and fees on loans are included in the computation of interest income  
……on loans (FRP based computation).
15.  Bank commissions on collected insurance premiums are based on percentage offered  
……by insurance companies commissioned by the Bank
16.  Other income includes among others the following:
 ……. …….a.    Inspection fees – average of Php300.00 per borrower for secured 
loans …….…….…….and P200.00 per  borrower for un-secured loans
…….……...b.    Application fee for new loan accounts is P200.00 except BEEF Loan at 
…….…….…….P500.00 per account
…….……...c.     Penalty and other charges on loans

17.   Interest on regular savings deposits is computed at an average rate of 0.5% per 
…….annum based on the average balance during the quarter.

18.  Interest on time deposit is computed based on average rate of 3.0% per annum.
19.  Compensation and fringe benefits for the Board of Directors, Officers and 
……employees is based on the latest approved plantilla per schedule.
20.  Representation and transportation allowances of Department Heads and Officers 
…....including the Branch Managers are based on approved amount from the Board of 
…....Directors.

22.  Management and other professional fees are based on approved contracts
23.  Depreciation expenses of FFEs are based on straight line method.

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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28.  Additional allowances for field employees at P1,000.00 each 
29.  To apply and open for a branch unit in Nueva Ecija with the Bangko Sentral ng 
……Pilipinas.
30.  To dispose at least eight real and other properties acquired (ROPA) for the year.
31.  To recover charged-off asset (written-off accounts) of not less than P1,000,000.00.

24.  Provision for allowance for credit losses (ACL) is based on monthly monitoring 
……schedules and as recommended by the Internal Audit Department. 

25.  Budget for corporate social responsibility program is funded thru the Reserve for 
……Cooperative Development Fund.
26.  Development program for primary cooperative members is funded through the 
……Bank’s Reserve for CETF (local and APEX).
27.  Trainings, seminars and workshops as part of the staff development was budgeted 
……with  the amount of Php500,000.00 

SUMMARY OF ASSUMPTIONS
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No. Name of Shareholders
Type of 
Share

Citizenship 
 No. of 
Shares 

Subscribed 
 Paid-in Capital        

 Subscription 
Receivable 

 Amount 
Subscribed  

Ratio of Paid-
in Capital to 

Total Amount 
Subscribed 

1 Nueva Vizcaya Alay Kapwa Multi-Purpose Cooperative Common Filipino 4,402        4,402,000.00      -                  4,402,000.00      11.58%
2 Diffun Saranay Development Cooperative Common Filipino 4,401        4,401,000.00      -                  4,401,000.00      11.58%
3 St. Vincent Parish MPC Common Filipino 2,190        2,190,000.00      -                  2,190,000.00      5.76%
4 NVSU Multi-Purpose Coop Common Filipino 2,000        2,000,000.00      -                  2,000,000.00      5.26%
5 Cagayan Valley Development Cooperative Common Filipino 1,881        1,881,000.00      -                  1,881,000.00      4.95%
6 Tam-an Banaue MPC Common Filipino 1,530        1,530,000.00      -                  1,530,000.00      4.03%
7 Bonfal West SN Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 1,474        1,474,000.00      -                  1,474,000.00      3.88%
8 Nangalisan Multipurpose Cooperative Common Filipino 1,669        1,361,000.00      308,000.00      1,669,000.00      3.58%
9 St. Patrick Parish MPC Common Filipino 1,032        1,032,000.00      -                  1,032,000.00      2.72%
10 Taggapan Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 939           939,000.00        -                  939,000.00        2.47%
11 Careb Community Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 932           932,000.00        -                  932,000.00        2.45%
12 Uddiawan Sn Savings & Credit Coop Common Filipino 810           810,000.00        -                  810,000.00        2.13%
13 Bone North Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 756           756,000.00        -                  756,000.00        1.99%
14 Aggub Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 747           702,000.00        45,000.00        747,000.00        1.85%
15 Bangaan SN Farmers Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 668           668,000.00        -                  668,000.00        1.76%
16 Sta. Lucia Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 640           640,000.00        -                  640,000.00        1.68%
17 Ibung Farmers Marketing Coop Common Filipino 633           633,000.00        -                  633,000.00        1.67%
18 Mauan SN Multi-purpose Coop Common Filipino 633           633,000.00        -                  633,000.00        1.67%
19 Bone South Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 595           595,000.00        -                  595,000.00        1.57%
20 Magapuy Farmers MPC Common Filipino 560           560,000.00        -                  560,000.00        1.47%
21 Comon Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 549           549,000.00        -                  549,000.00        1.44%
22 Saint Joseph Parish - Kayapa MPC Common Filipino 522           522,000.00        -                  522,000.00        1.37%
23 Kasibu Farmers & Development Coop Common Filipino 520           520,000.00        -                  520,000.00        1.37%
24 Bayanihan Credit Coop (San Juan) Common Filipino 455           455,000.00        -                  455,000.00        1.20%
25 St. Catherine's Parish MPC Common Filipino 521           413,000.00        108,000.00      521,000.00        1.09%
26 Paniki Multi-Purpose Coop Common Filipino 707           395,000.00        312,000.00      707,000.00        1.04%
27 San Luis  Credit Cooperative Common Filipino 532           411,000.00        121,000.00      532,000.00        1.08%
28 Curifang Credit Coop. Common Filipino 324           324,000.00        -                  324,000.00        0.85%
29 Buenavista SN Common Filipino 303           303,000.00        -                  303,000.00        0.80%
30 Timpuyog Ti Solano Credit Coop Common Filipino 300           300,000.00        -                  300,000.00        0.79%
31 Aritao Fruits & Vegetables MPC Common Filipino 299           299,000.00        -                  299,000.00        0.79%
32 La Torre North & La Torre South Marketing Coop. Common Filipino 336           281,000.00        55,000.00        336,000.00        0.74%

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
Consolidated List Of Stockholders And Their Stockholding

As of December 31, 2021

COMMON SHARES

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDINGS AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021



38

33 Mauan Grassroots MPC Common Filipino 273           273,000.00        -                  273,000.00        0.72%
34 Balete Upland Farmers Coop Common Filipino 266           266,000.00        -                  266,000.00        0.70%
35 CBNV Consumers Cooperative Common Filipino 220           220,000.00        -                  220,000.00        0.58%
36 Wigan Settlers CC Common Filipino 230           198,000.00        32,000.00        230,000.00        0.52%
37 Limtuad A Namnama Marketing Coop Common Filipino 190           190,000.00        -                  190,000.00        0.50%
38 Nueva Vizcaya Multi-Purpose Medical Coop (NVMMC) Common Filipino 220           149,000.00        71,000.00        220,000.00        0.39%
39 Villaverde Development Cooperative Common Filipino 136           136,000.00        -                  136,000.00        0.36%
40 Piwong MPC Common Filipino 273           129,000.00        144,000.00      273,000.00        0.34%
41 IDEA MPC Common Filipino 166           121,000.00        45,000.00        166,000.00        0.32%
42 Aritao Central SN Credit Coop Common Filipino 121           121,000.00        -                  121,000.00        0.32%
43 Maddela Integrated Farmers Savings Dev'T Coop Common Filipino 112           112,000.00        -                  112,000.00        0.29%
44 Immaculate Conception Parish MPC Common Filipino 110           110,000.00        -                  110,000.00        0.29%
45 Tricord Multi-purpose Coop Common Filipino 105           105,000.00        -                  105,000.00        0.28%
46 Greengold Farmers MPC Common Filipino 130           93,000.00          37,000.00        130,000.00        0.24%
47 Tuao Saranay SN Common Filipino 86             86,000.00          -                  86,000.00          0.23%
48 Conwap Valley MPC Common Filipino 131           81,000.00          50,000.00        131,000.00        0.21%
49 Munguia MPC Common Filipino 76             76,000.00          -                  76,000.00          0.20%
50 Bambang Grains, Fruits & Veg. Grower MPC Common Filipino 68             68,000.00          -                  68,000.00          0.18%
51 St. Jerome Parish MPC Common Filipino 60             60,000.00          -                  60,000.00          0.16%
52 Giayan Credit Coop Common Filipino 111           55,000.00          56,000.00        111,000.00        0.14%
53 Nueva VizcayaTricycle Operators & Drivers MPC Common Filipino 54             54,000.00          -                  54,000.00          0.14%
54 Nueva Vizcaya Indigenous Peoples MPC Common Filipino 52             52,000.00          -                  52,000.00          0.14%
55 Magat Dam Employees & Community MPCO Common Filipino 50             50,000.00          -                  50,000.00          0.13%
56 Villaverde MPCO Common Filipino 46             46,000.00          -                  46,000.00          0.12%
57 Wesley Savings & Credit Coop Common Filipino 45             45,000.00          -                  45,000.00          0.12%
58 Cooperative For Rural Development Common Filipino 40             40,000.00          -                  40,000.00          0.11%
59 Colocol Irrigators MPC Common Filipino 37             37,000.00          -                  37,000.00          0.10%
60 Runruno Community MPC Common Filipino 36             36,000.00          -                  36,000.00          0.09%
61 Saint Joseph Parish MPC (Belance) Common Filipino 32             32,000.00          -                  32,000.00          0.08%
62 United Cages Credit Coop Common Filipino 100           30,000.00          70,000.00        100,000.00        0.08%
63 Greeners MPC Common Filipino 29             29,000.00          -                  29,000.00          0.08%
64 Malabing Valley MPC Common Filipino 28             28,000.00          -                  28,000.00          0.07%
65 First Novo Vizcayano Travellers Transport Coop Common Filipino 100           26,000.00          74,000.00        100,000.00        0.07%
66 Ifugao Good Shepherd MPC Common Filipino 100           25,000.00          75,000.00        100,000.00        0.07%
67 Maasin Responsible Parents Credit Coop Common Filipino 25             25,000.00          -                  25,000.00          0.07%
68 Ifugao State University Employees MPC Common Filipino 25             25,000.00          -                  25,000.00          0.07%
69 KADASA Agrarian Reform Beneficiaries Common Filipino 40             23,000.00          17,000.00        40,000.00          0.06%
70 Kasibu Transport Cooperative Common Filipino 50             18,000.00          32,000.00        50,000.00          0.05%
71 VISCON Transport Cooperative Common Filipino 25             18,000.00          7,000.00          25,000.00          0.05%
72 Samahang Bisaya Multipurpose Coop Common Filipino 25             13,000.00          12,000.00        25,000.00          0.03%
73 Kasibu Farmers  & Traders Mrktng Coop Common Filipino 25             12,000.00          13,000.00        25,000.00          0.03%

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDING
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74 Osmeña Credit Coop Common Filipino 27             12,000.00          15,000.00        27,000.00          0.03%
75 Quezon Tinig Haranista Credit Coop Common Filipino 25             10,000.00          15,000.00        25,000.00          0.03%
76 Sonday Dam Irrigators Agriculture Coop Common Filipino 40             10,000.00          30,000.00        40,000.00          0.03%

38,000      36,256,000.00    1,744,000.00   38,000,000.00    

1        Development Bank of the Phil. Preferred 487           487,300.00        487,300.00        

2        Land Bank of the Phil Preferred 2,000        2,000,000.00      2,000,000.00      

3         CDA(Formerly DA/CPC) Preferred 643           643,000.00        643,000.00        

8,500.00   8,405,000.00      95,000.00        8,500,000.00      

1 Aliaga SN Credit Coop Preferred Filipino 187           187,000.00        -                  187,000.00        4.68%
2 Almaguer South SN Preferred Filipino 146           146,000.00        -                  146,000.00        3.65%
3 Bakir SN Preferred Filipino 96             96,000.00          -                  96,000.00          2.40%
4 Baliling SN Preferred Filipino 15             15,000.00          -                  15,000.00          0.38%
5 Banganan SN MPCI Preferred Filipino 54             54,000.00          -                  54,000.00          1.35%
6 Bangar SN Preferred Filipino 69             69,000.00          -                  69,000.00          1.73%
7 Barat SN Preferred Filipino 60             60,000.00          -                  60,000.00          1.50%
8 Bascaran SN Preferred Filipino 110           110,000.00        -                  110,000.00        2.75%
9 Beti Preferred Filipino 86             86,000.00          -                  86,000.00          2.15%
10 Bintawan SN Preferred Filipino 208           208,000.00        -                  208,000.00        5.21%
11 Bonfal East SN Preferred Filipino 59             59,000.00          -                  59,000.00          1.48%
12 Bonfal Proper SN Preferred Filipino 286           286,000.00        -                  286,000.00        7.16%
13 Busilac SN Preferred Filipino 199           199,000.00        -                  199,000.00        4.98%
14 Calitlitan MPCI Preferred Filipino 84             84,000.00          -                  84,000.00          2.10%
15 Casat SN Preferred Filipino 6               6,000.00            -                  6,000.00            0.15%
16 Central Vizcaya Cattle Raisers MPC Preferred Filipino 2               2,000.00            -                  2,000.00            0.05%
17 Cutar SN Preferred Filipino 96             96,000.00          -                  96,000.00          2.40%
18 Dadap SN Preferred Filipino 59             59,000.00          -                  59,000.00          1.48%
19 Darapidap SN Preferred Filipino 139           139,000.00        -                  139,000.00        3.48%
20 Dupax East SN Preferred Filipino 13             13,000.00          -                  13,000.00          0.33%
21 Dupax West SN Preferred Filipino 57             57,000.00          -                  57,000.00          1.43%
22 Eastern Inaban Versatile MPCI Preferred Filipino 5               5,000.00            -                  5,000.00            0.13%
23 Indiana SN Preferred Filipino 10             10,000.00          -                  10,000.00          0.25%

Sub-total for Common Shares

Preferred Shares "A"

Preferred Shares "D"

Preferred Shares "C"

Preferred Shares "B"

Preferred Shares "E"

                 Various Individuals

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDING
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24 Ineangan Marketing Coop Preferred Filipino 62             62,000.00          -                  62,000.00          1.55%
25 Katipunam MPC Preferred Filipino 1               1,000.00            -                  1,000.00            0.03%
26 KB Pangangalakal ng N.V. Preferred Filipino 71             71,000.00          -                  71,000.00          1.78%
27 Lamo SN Preferred Filipino 8               8,000.00            -                  8,000.00            0.20%
28 Mabasa SN Preferred Filipino 6               6,000.00            -                  6,000.00            0.15%
29 Mabuslo SN Preferred Filipino 15             15,000.00          -                  15,000.00          0.38%
30 Mantata MPCI Preferred Filipino 2               2,000.00            -                  2,000.00            0.05%
31 Masoc SN Preferred Filipino 2               2,000.00            -                  2,000.00            0.05%
32 Mungia SN Preferred Filipino 41             41,000.00          -                  41,000.00          1.03%
33 Murong Multipurpose Coop Preferred Filipino 176           176,000.00        -                  176,000.00        4.40%
34 Murong SN Preferred Filipino 178           178,000.00        -                  178,000.00        4.45%
35 Nakebega MPCI Preferred Filipino 125           125,000.00        -                  125,000.00        3.13%
36 Namnama  ti Pieza SN Preferred Filipino 64             64,000.00          -                  64,000.00          1.60%
37 Nueva Vizcaya Bayanihan Mpci Preferred Filipino 16             16,000.00          -                  16,000.00          0.40%
38 Nueva Vizcaya MPCI (NUVIMCO) Preferred Filipino 121           121,000.00        -                  121,000.00        3.03%
39 Paglaom MPCI Preferred Filipino 16             16,000.00          -                  16,000.00          0.40%
40 Quezon SN Preferred Filipino 44             44,000.00          -                  44,000.00          1.10%
41 Quirino SN Preferred Filipino 27             27,000.00          -                  27,000.00          0.68%
42 Roxas SN Preferred Filipino 111           111,000.00        -                  111,000.00        2.78%
43 Runruno MPCI Preferred Filipino 13             13,000.00          -                  13,000.00          0.33%
44 Salinas Sn MPCI Preferred Filipino 120           120,000.00        -                  120,000.00        3.00%
45 Sawmill SN Preferred Filipino 153           153,000.00        -                  153,000.00        3.83%
46 Solano Rang-Ay Credit Coop Common Filipino 84             84,000.00          -                  84,000.00          2.10%
47 St. Laurance Integrated Preferred Filipino 2               2,000.00            -                  2,000.00            0.05%
48 Sta. Cruz  SN Preferred Filipino 182           182,000.00        -                  182,000.00        4.55%
49 Tucal SN Preferred Filipino 4               4,000.00            -                  4,000.00            0.10%
50 Tucanon SN Preferred Filipino 30             30,000.00          -                  30,000.00          0.75%
51 Unaon Preferred Filipino 6               6,000.00            -                  6,000.00            0.15%
52 Wacal Sn Preferred Filipino 19             19,000.00          -                  19,000.00          0.48%
53 Villaros Upland Farmers MPCI Preferred Filipino 20             20,000.00          -                  20,000.00          0.50%
54 Manggayang Credit Coop. Preferred Filipino 231           231,000.00        -                  231,000.00        5.78%

3,996        3,996,000.00      -                   3,996,000.00      
15,626      15,531,300.00    95,000.00        15,626,300.00    
53,626      51,787,300.00    1,839,000.00   53,626,300.00    

Sub-total for Preferred Share "E"
Total Preferred Shares
GRAND TOTAL 

LIST OF SHAREHOLDERS AND THEIR SHAREHOLDING
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IMELDA B. BRUAL
LBP Ex-Officio

MORENCIO S. PACIO
Independent Director
Kasibu Farmers Development Cooperave
Chairperson: Corporate Governance Commiee
Chairperson: Audit Commiee
Vice Chairperson: Risk Oversight Commiee

NOEL  S. AMADOR
Regular Director
St. Vincent Parish MPC
Member: Credit Commiee
Member: Educaon & Training Commiee

RICHARD P. CORDERO
Independent Director
Magapuy Farmers MPC
Chairperson: Risk Oversight Commiee
Vice Chairperson: Corporate Governance Commiee
Member: Audit Commiee

Nueva Vizcaya Alay Kapwa MPC
Member: Corporate Governance Commiee
Member: Risk Oversight Commiee

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL
Chairperson

NIETO P. BACENA
Vice Chairperson
NVSU Mulpurpose Cooperave
Chairperson: Educaon & Training Commiee
Chairperson: Gender & Development Commiee

MARCIANA D. FORYASEN
Regular Director
Diffun Saranay Development Cooperave
Vice Chairperson: Educaon and Training Commiee
Vice Chairperson: Audit Commiee

Regular Director
MANOLO A. METCHA 

Nangalisan Mulpurpose Cooperave
Chairperson: Credit Commiee

MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
AND GA COMMITTEES

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ELECTION COMMITTEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

GENDER & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

MEDIATION & CONCILIATION COMMITTEE

ETHICS COMMITTEE

1. Arnel G. Domincel
2. Nieto P. Bacena
3. Noel S. Amador
4. Manolo A. Metcha
5. Richard P. Cordero
6. Morencio S. Pacio
7. Marciana D. Foryasen
8. Imelda B. Brual

- - - Chairperson
- - - Vice Chairperson
- - - Director
- - - Director
- - - Independent Director
- - - Independent Director
- - - Director
- - - Ex-Officio Director

1. Catherine P. Bullong
2. Arnulfo M. Andaya

- - - Chairperson
- - - Vice Chairperson/Secretary

1. Merly S. Pescasio
2. Karen Gay U. Del Rosario

- - - Chairperson
- - - Vice Chairperson/Secretary

1. Nieto P. Bacena
2. Marissa Q. Pinkihan
3. Mary Jane F. Arizala
4. Mengeline M. Valdez

- - - Chairperson
- - - Member
- - - Focal Person
- - - Secretary

1. Cristino A. Manas
2. Benedicta D. Dela Peña

- - - Chairperson
- - - Vice Chairperson/Secretary

1. Betty N. Ramos
2. Juliet P. Lozano

- - - Chairperson
- - - Vice Chairperson/Secretary
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MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
President / Con. General Manager

MICHELLE V. FERIA
Administrave Assistant

GENERAL MANAGER
CRIZEL M. DE VERA

GENERAL MANAGER
RUBEN G. LEGASPI
CI / Property Appraiser GENERAL MANAGER

PRUDENCIO M. CONSOLACION JR.
CI / Property Appraiser GENERAL MANAGER

LEONELO S. NAVARRETE
CI / Property AppraiserGENERAL MANAGER

EDUARDO T. ESPEJO III 
Remedial Acct. Specialist

FELICIANO P. TIBURCIO
Corporate Secretary

ERNESTHELMA T. JALLORINA
Administrave Assistant

MENGELINE M. VALDEZ
Cooperave Dev’t Specialist

ZALDY R. GROSPE
Loans & Asset Manager

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM

Office of the President

Office of the Board of Directors

Loans & Asset Management Department
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MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
GENERAL MANAGER

VENER V. CLEMENCIA
Credit Risk Officer

ROMEL N. TOLENTINO
Credit Risk Reviewer

ALLAN DAVE L. NAUI
Credit Risk Reviewer

BEN JOHN C. ILARDE
Credit Risk Reviewer

ISAGANI  A. OLONAN
Credit Risk Reviewer

WINSTON M. BONITA
Credit Risk Reviewer

MARISSA Q. PINKIHANMICHELLE N. VIDAD
Administrave Assistant

MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
GENERAL MANAGER

NIDA T. GUZMAN
Chief Compliance Officer

AMELITA GRACE M. CALUB
Audit ClerkGENERAL MANAGER

CRIZEL M. DE VERA
Administrave AssistantGENERAL MANAGER

ESTEEH LORAINE P. ALAMANI
Audit Assistant

MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
GENERAL MANAGER

ARLETTE MAE C. ACERET
Internal Auditor

Compliance Department

Internal Audit Department

Credit Risk Management Department

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM
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MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
GENERAL MANAGER

MARY JANE F. ARIZALA
Administrave Manager

GENERAL MANAGER
CRIZEL M. DE VERA
Administrave AssistantGENERAL MANAGER

JAMES ROLAND DE PALMA
Property Custodian GENERAL MANAGER

CRIZELL M. DE VERA
Administrave Assistant GENERAL MANAGER

CHARLIEMAGNE L.  MUECA
Administrave Aide / DriverGENERAL MANAGER

RAFAEL SANDOVAL II
Ulity

MELALAINE S. BARTOLAZO
Bookkeeper II

FELISA M. AMINO, CPA
Accountant

MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN

ROLY D. VALDEZ
Treasurer

CRIZALDO B. GORDO
System Administrator

JESSIE A. CAGURANGAN
Informaon Technologist

Finance
Department Accounting Department

Information Technology Department

Administrative Department

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM
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JOEL R. CARIÑO
Branch Manager II

ROGELIO G. REBUTA
Cashier II

CECILLE GAY S. MALIG-ON
Teller

JOVALENE S. CENTENO
Administrave Assistant

CASH SECTION

MEA-CHICO V. FLORES
Administrave Assistant

THOM HENRY G. SADANG MAR T. RAMIREZ
Account Officer

JERWELL H. WANGDALE
Administrave Assistant Administrave Assistant Account Officer

LOAN SECTION

MARK ANTHONY P. BARTOLOME JOBERTSON J. VALLEJO ALLEN JOHN D.C. CABADINGKENNETH JOHN Q. ACOSTA NED G. ASUNCION
Account Officer Account Officer Account OfficerAccount Officer Account Officer

ACCOUNTING SECTION

MICHELLE C. YUZON
Administrave Assistant

Bookkeeper I Bookkeeper I Administrave Assistant Administrave Assistant
LEILANI G. AGUSTIN MARIETA B. MATEO PRINCESS JOY A. RODRIGO MHARVY B. MAURO

Solano Branch

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM
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ROLDAN BALBIN A. ROMERO

Branch Manager I

SHIRLEY L. ANGEL
Cashier II

CASH SECTION

Bookkeeper II
DAISY B. BAWAS

ACCOUNTING SECTION

RONALD L. COMPALAS
Account Officer

FLORIMOND A. PUGONG
Account Officer

MELDA A. AYADI
Administrave Assistant

LOAN SECTION

Kayapa Branch

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM



48

BABY ALMA S. NAVARRETE
CashierI

JULIE-ANNE A. CADIZ
Administrave Assistant

JOREEN V. BOADA
Administrave Assistant

CASH SECTION

ROQUELYN P. ALIZ
Administrave Assistant

JEROME D.P. BALAGOT
Administrave Assistant Administrave Assistant

LOAN SECTION

JESSIE M. PUMARAS VENER R. ABIJAYJOHN MARK T. PANZA NORDAN S. JAVIER
Account Officer Account OfficerAccount Officer Account Officer

VIRGILIO B. LUCQUIAO
Branch Manager II

ACCOUNTING SECTION

Bookkeeper I Administrave Assistant
JENNIBEE P. VALDEZ TEODELYN C. LOGAN

Bambang Branch

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM
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Cashier I
JOLIE JUFEL M. GRAPIZA

CASH SECTION

Bookkeeper I
RACHEL-ANN JOY J. TALIN

ACCOUNTING SECTION

SHARON MARIE O. MANAIG 

ORVIL B. BLANZA
Collector

ROLAND G. RESURRECCION
Account Officer

LHARA JOYCE A. BERNARDO

Administrave Assistant

LOANS SECTION

Cashier I
MARY JOSEPHINE M. MACUTAY 

CHRISTIAN M. VALDEZ
Account OfficerAdministrave Assistant

APRIL DAWN. C PAUIG

ACCOUNTING SECTION

CASH SECTION

LOANS SECTION

GENERAL MANAGER
HERALD JAY R. LIZARDO

Acng Branch Manager

VACANT

Bookkeeper I

JANUELL P. ANTONIO
Probationer

Branch Manager

Maddela Branch Ramon Branch

CBNV MANAGEMENT TEAM



50

Annex A 
SOCIAL AUDIT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR THE YEAR 2021 
 

A. BASIC INFORMATION OF THE COOPERATIVE 
NAME: COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

ADDRESS: Burgos St., Corner Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
REGISTRATION NO.:  9520-02001528         DATE REGISTERED: November 3, 2009 

B. STATEMENT OF: 
VISION: “A lead Cooperative Bank providing optimum services to its stakeholders for inclusive growth in the 

countryside.” 
 

 
MISSION:“To provide affordable and excellent services to its stakeholders for sustainable countryside development.” 

 

CORE VALUES: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOCIAL GOALS: 
a. To build a relationship with the community and the environment as an opportunity to develop the value of 

“concern for community”. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SOCIAL AUDIT REPORT
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C. POLICIES AND GUIDELINES ON SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT 

TITLE/DESCRIPTION OF 
POLICY/ GUIDELINES SOURCE OF DOCUMENT BOD/GA 

RESOLUTION NO. 
DATE 

APPROVED 

The Corporate Social 
Responsibility Program Policy Manual BR No. 398, series of 2020 12/19/2020 

Medical Assistance Benefits Policy Manual BR No. 279, series of 2021 9/19/2021 
On Job Training Manual Policy Manual BR No. 130, series of 2013 9/21/2013 

Implementing Policy/Guidelines on 
the No Smoking Area within the 

Bank Premises 
9Policy Manual BR No. 164, series of 2021 5/22/2021 

 
D. SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

The social development program of the cooperative focuses on two (2) areas: a) for the cooperative itself; and b) 
for the community. The source of fund for the first area may vary from Cooperative Education and Training Fund 

(CETF), optional fund or outright expense; while the second area is exclusive from the Community Development Fund 
(CDF). 

D.1. COOPERATIVE 
D.1.a. Members (Members are Primary Cooperatives) 

KEY AREAS SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES NO. OF 
ACTIVITIES 

NO. OF BENEFECIARIES AMOUNT 
UTILIZED 

SOURCE OF 
FUND MALE FEMALE TOTAL 

Education; 
Scholarship; 

training 

Coaches’ different member 
cooperatives in the 
preparation of CDA 

Reports 

1 

Assisted 7 primary 
cooperative members in 
preparation of their CDA 

reports 

- - 

Health Program -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Social 
Events/gatherings Annual General Assembly  

1 

Members are primary 
Cooperatives attended by 

36 member coops 

 
184,625.12 

 

Bank 
operation 

Social Protection 
(insurance and 

mutual benefits) 
-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Disaster Risk 
Reduction & 
Management 

-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Gender equality 
and women 

empowerment 
-- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Others, specify        
Subtotal  2 - - - 184,652.12  

 
D.1.b.  Officers 

KEY AREAS SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES NO. OF 
ACTIVITIES 

NO. OF BENEFECIARIES AMOUNT 
UTILIZED 

SOURCE 
OF FUND MALE FEMALE TOTAL 

Education; 
Scholarship; 

training 

Provided different trainings 
to officers of the Bank 
(BODs, GA Committees’ and 
Bank Officers) 

4 2 7 9 29,800.00 CETF 

Health Program Medical Health Benefits 1 10 4 14 64,960.50 Bank 
Operation 

Social Events/ 
gatherings - - - - - -  

Social 
Protection 

(insurance and 
mutual 

benefits) 

The Bank enrolled all officers 
for the Group Basic Life 
Insurance Security system and 
on Country Bankers Life 
Insurance Corp 

1 6 4 10 9,125.00 Bank 
Operation 

Disaster Risk 
Reduction & 
Management 

- - - - - - - 

Gender 
equality and 

1. The Bank maintains to its 
branches a nursing room for 

1 
 - - - - - 
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women 
empowerment 

breast feeding mothers for 
employees and clients  

 2. The Bank maintains Comfort 
Room for  Male and Female 

1 
 - - - - - 

Others, specify 

1. Medical allowance 
of 500/month to BODs, 
Committees & Officers of the 
Bank 

1 10 9 19 72,000 Bank 
Operation 

Subtotal  9 28 24 52 175,885.50  
 

D.1.c. Staff 

KEY AREAS SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES NO. OF 
ACTIVITIES 

NO. OF BENEFECIARIES AMOUNT 
UTILIZED 

SOURCE 
OF FUND MALE FEMALE TOTAL 

Education; 
Scholarship; 

training 

Provided different trainings 
to all staff of the bank 3 4 3 7 9,880.00 CETF 

Health Program All employees are enrolled 
to Medical Health Care  1 - - - - - 

 

Providing safety gears for 
Bank’s Account Officers, 

Utility/Driver and providing 
umbrellas and shoes for 

Solicitors 

1 - - - - - 

 

The Bank maintains medicines 
and first aid kit to all its 
branches for emergency 
purposes 

1 - - - - - 

 Payment of 1 unit BP 
Apparatus & Adaptor 1 - - - 18,250.00 Community 

Dev’t Fund 

 Medicines to all employees to 
fight covid 19 1 - - - 6,825.00 Community 

Dev’t Fund 
Social Events/ 

gatherings        

Social 
Protection 

(insurance and 
mutual benefits) 

The Bank enrolled all staff 
for the Group Basic Life 
Insurance Security system and 
on Country Bankers Life 
Insurance Corp 

1 41 31 72 34,442.93 Bank 
operation 

Disaster Risk 
Reduction & 
Management 

- - - - - - - 

Gender 
equality and 

women 
empowerment 

The Bank maintains to its 
branches a nursing room for 
breast feeding mothers for 

employees and clients 

1 - - - - - 

Others, specify 
1. Donation to the late 
father of one staff of 
corporate 

2 1 - 1 3,452.00 Bank 
operation 

 
2. Donation to the late 
father-in-law of one staff of 
corporate 

1 - 1 1 1,000.00 Bank 
operation 

 
3. Donation to the late 
mother of one staff of 
Maddela Branch  

1 - 1 1 1,000.00 Bank 
operation 

 
4. Donation to the late 
father of one staff of 
Bambang Branch 

1 - 1 1 1,000.00 Bank 
Operation 

 5. Donation to the late 
father-in-law of President 1 - 1 1 1,000.00 Bank 

operation 

 6. Medical allowance for all 
employees 1 40 31 71 319,500.00 Bank 

Operation 
Subtotal  17 86 69 155 396,349.93  
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D.1.d. Community 

KEY AREAS SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES NO. OF 
ACTIVITIES 

NO. OF BENEFECIARIES AMOUNT 
UTILIZED 

SOURCE 
OF FUND MALE FEMALE TOTAL 

Environment 
conservation 

and protection 
1. Solid Waste Management 1 - - - - - 

 2. Participation for not using 
plastics 1 - - - - - 

Health and 
sanitation 

Designate smoking area in the 
bank premises 1 - - - - - 

Partnership 
and 

Community 
Groups 

 
 - - - - - - 

Sports, 
Cultural and 

religious 
Activities 

 - - - - - - 

Gender 
equality and 

women 
empowerment 

Assisted the Timpuyog Iti 
Babalasang Idi Kalman at 
Ambaguio, Nueva Vizcaya to 
register a full pledged 
cooperative and requested a 
Pre-registration Seminar (PRS) 
conducted by the CDA 

1 - 40 40 - - 

Disaster Risk 
Reduction & 
Management 

1. Purchased of 3 units thermal 
scanner to be used in checking of 
temperature of all employees 
and clients of the bank 

1 - - - 11,400.00 Community 
Dev’t Fund 

 2. Purchased of STIHL Fogging 
Machine 1 - - - 27,000.00 Community 

Dev’t Fund 

 
3. Donated 1 box of Globes, 

4pcs PPE & 2 sets of antigen 
kit 

1 - - - 3,600.00 Bank 
Operation 

Inclusivity 
(Membership 
expansion) 

1. Encourage clients to be an 
associate member of the 

bank 
1 - - - - - 

 2. Pre-Membership Education 
Seminar 1 - - - - - 

Support to the 
vulnerable 
sector of 
society 

- - - - - - - 

Children 
and Youth 

1. Donation to Alternative 
Learning System Western 
Kayapa District 4 Bags of 
Cement 

1  1,080.00 Bank 
Operation 

Persons with 
Disabilities 

1. The Bank maintain a priority 
lane for PWD in all of its 

branches 
1 - - - - - 

Elderly The Bank maintain a priority 
lane for senior citizens 1 - - - - - 

Indigenous 
people   - - - - - 

Others specify 
Cooperation 

among 
Cooperativ

es 

Coaching/mentoring of 
member cooperative staff in 
preparation of cooperative 

reports 

28 - - - - - 

Cooperation 
with the 

Community 

 
1. Donation to Billy Martin 
Concert for a Cause. 

1 - - - 500.00 Bank 
operation 
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2. Donation to Youngster of
NV by: Olive Catbagan 1 - - - 500.00 Bank 

Operation 
3. Donation for the Traffic

Enforcer Team 1 - - - 500.00 Bank 
Operation 

4. Donation to MHO solano
medical staff 1 - - - 5,000.00 Community 

Dev’t Fund 
5. Donation to the LGU-Solano
Gift Giving Program 1 - - - 5,000.00 Bank 

Operation 

6. Gift Giving to BJMP Solano 1 455 22 477 48,913.00 Bank 
Operation 

7. Medical allowance given to
the Bank Security Guards 1 8 - 8 18,000.00 Bank 

Operation 
Subtotal 46 463 22 485 121,493.00 

E. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND (CDF)

Accumulated Amount of CDF Amount Utilized for Cooperative 
Social Activities Percentage of Utilization 

77,487.96 68,475.00 88.37% 

Accomplished by: 

  (SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO  (SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN (SGD) RICHARD P. CORDERO 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
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Annex  B 
SOCIAL AUDIT REPORT 

Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya is a duly registered cooperative with the Cooperative Development Authority 
(CDA) under Registration no. 9520-02001528 on November 3, 2009. Its registered office address is Burgos St., corner 

Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya. 
We have audited the social performance of the Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya on February 8, 2022 covering 

the CY 2021to validate the adherence of the cooperative to the seventh cooperative principle, the "Concern for 
Community" and determine whether the cooperative works for the community's sustainable development through policies 

and programs approved by their members. 
This Social Audit is in compliance with Rule 11 of the Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations of RA 9520 and 

Memorandum Circular No. 2018-01 issued by the Cooperative Development Authority. 
Hereunder is the Auditor’s report on the comments/recommendations in major key areas of social performance: 

KEY AREAS COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
(SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT PERSPECTIVE 

A. STATEMENT OF VISION, MISSION, CORE ➢ It shows that the Bank is working on its social 
responsibilities to achieve its social goals. The allotment 
and utilization of the community development fund 
showed that the bank utilized 88.37% of the fund to
extend its social responsibilities.

➢ Most of the social development programs of the bank 
to the Cooperative and to the Community were not
performed due to the COVID 19 pandemic (restrictions 
to travels and social distancing)

VALUES & SOCIAL GOALS 
B. POLICIES AND GUIDELINES ON SOCIAL

DEVELOPMENT 
C. SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

COOPERATIVE 
COMMUNITY 

D. ALLOTMENT AND UTILIZATION OF
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

E. OTHERS, SPECIFY

Prepared by: 

  (SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO  (SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN (SGD) RICHARD P. CORDERO 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Conformed: 

(SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN 
President 

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
 Chairperson
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Annex C 
 

MANAGEMENT SOCIAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN ACTUAL ACCOMPLISHMENT VARIANCE REMARKS  
To conduct at least once a year 
gift-giving to deserving school 

children  

Gave 477 pieces of personal 
necessities (face towel, bath soap, 
toothbrush and toothpaste) to PDL 

(Person Deprived of Liberty) in 
Solano BJMP 

-  

The Bank 
conducted gift 
giving to those 

Persons Deprived 
of Liberty in 
Solano BJMP  

To conduct at least two medical 
missions by 2021 

- 

- 

Not performed due 
to COVID 19 

 
To participate in the yearly 

“Brigada Eskwela” to schools in 
the area of operation of existing 

branches of the bank 

- 

- 

Not performed due 
to COVID 19  

 
To conduct at least three tree 

planting activities for employees 
to identified foreclosed assets of 

the bank 

- 

- 

The plan was not 
performed during 

the year 
 

To sponsor and adopt at least two 
barangays/schools for a feeding 

program by 2021 

- 

- 

The plan was not 
performed during 

the year 
 

To respond immediately to 
medical, food and clothing 

assistance for victims of calamity-
stricken barangay/s within the 
area of operation of the bank 

The Bank gave P500/month 
medical assistance (for vitamins) to 
its Board of Directors, Members of 
Committees and emplyees to fight 
Covid 19.  

- 

 

 
 
 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: 
 

 
    (SGD) MARY JANE F. ARIZALA (SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN 
          Administrative Manager          President 

 
 
                                                   Approved by: 

 
 

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
Chairman 
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Annex A PERFORMANCE AUDIT REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT REPORT

Registration Number
Name of Cooperative

Address
No. of Bldg,/Block/Lot No.
Street Name
Barangay
City/Municipality
Province
Region

Main Business Activity
Other Services, Please Specify

GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT REPORT

1. Presence of approved development plan/strategic plan / Yes No 2 2
2. / Yes No 2 2
3.

3.1 / Yes No 2 2
3.2 / Yes No 2 2
3.3 / Yes No 2 2

4. / Yes No 1 1

5. / Yes No 2 2
6.

/ Yes No 3 3

Yes No
a. Copy of electronically encoded CAPR Yes No
b. Audited Financial Statements Yes No
c. List of Officers and Mandatory Trainings

Undertaken/Completed Yes No

d. Performance Audit Report Yes No
e.

Semi-annual Report on Mediation and
Conciliation Yes No

f. Social Audit Report Yes No

a. Copy of electronically encoded CAPR / Yes No
b. Audited Financial Statement  (with encoded

CAFSIS) / Yes No

c. List of Officers and Mandatory Trainings
Undertaken/Completed / Yes No

d. Performance Audit Report, including copies of
the semi annual Report on mediation and
conciliation

/ Yes No

e. Social Audit Report / Yes No
f. List of affiliates and cooperatives which have

remitted their CETF / Yes No

g. Business Consultancy Assistance including
the nature, cost and the use of CETF Yes No

h. Other training activities undertaken specifying
therein the nature, participants and cost of
each activity.

/ Yes No

7.
/ Yes No 1 1

8. / Yes No NA 1 1

A. Governance Report
A.1 General Assembly

NUEVA VIZCAYA
REGION II

Standard Points RATINGInstruction:  "Tick or put "/" in the circle besides Yes if the following are present/available in your 
cooperative, No, if none and NA, if not applicable."

9520-022001528

QUIRINO
SOLANO

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

BURGOS ST., CORNER GADDANG ST.

COOPERATIVE BANKING BUSINESS

Conduct of Election of officers
Presentation and Acceptance of Required Reports to be 
prepared and/or submitted/to be submitted to CDA
 For Primary Cooperatives

For  Secondary and Tertiary Cooperatives

Writtten policies/rules and procedures in conducting the 
General Assembly meeting
Other Resolutions/Policies requiring approval of the GA, 
including amendments of ACBL, if any

Presence of approved annual plans and budget
Acceptance/approval/confirmation/ratification of the 
following reports of the Board (including BR) and 
Committees

Board Report
Committee Reports
Management Report

Documents showing the Engagement of the external 
auditors

CDA-ReD-FR-029
Revision No. 1
March 5, 2021

`
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1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1

3.
/ Yes No 2 2

3.1 / Yes No
3.2 / Yes No
3.3 / Yes No
3.4 / Yes No
3.5 Proposals / Yes No
3.6 / Yes No
3.7

/ Yes No

3.8 / Yes No
4.

/ Yes No 2 2

4.1
/ Yes No

4.2 / Yes No
4.3 / Yes No
4.4 / Yes No
4.5 / Yes No
4.6 / Yes No

4.7

/ Yes No

5. / Yes No 2 2

6.
/ Yes No 1 1

7.

/ Yes No NA 1 1

8.

8.1 / Yes No 1 1
8.2 / Yes No 1 1

8.3
/ Yes No 1 1

8.4
/ Yes No 1 1

8.5 / Yes No 1 1
8.6

/ Yes No 1 1

8.7 / Yes No 1 1
8.8 / Yes No 1 1
8.9 / Yes No 1 1
8.10

/ Yes No 1 1

8.11 / Yes No 1 1
8.12 / Yes No 1 1

9. / Yes No 2 2
10.

/ Yes No 1 1

11. / Yes No 2 2

A.2  Board of Directors (BODs)

Chairperson's Report
Treasurer's Report

Reference materials or attachments
CDA Assessment/Examination/Investigation 
Reports
Risk Review or Assessment Report

Copies of minutes of meeting with discussions on the 
following:

Duly signed Oath of Office
Compilation of the minutes of the Board of Director's 
Meeting
Copies of the followings documents submitted at least 5 
days before the meeting or as provided in the policy

Management Report
Committee Reports

All unresolved issues identified in the 
examination/audit/assessment/ investigation 
reports are resolved by the Board of Directors 
within the prescribed period.

Copies of Board Resolutions embodying all major 
decisions of the BOD
BR specifying the regular schedule of meetings of the 
Board and the Committees

Presence of an  independent advisors or resource 
persons to assist in its deliberations, when deemed 
appropriate. (This would be dependent on the profile, 
knowledge, skills or expertise  of existing BOD.  For 
example, if no BOD has expertise on IT, then invite an IT 
expert.)

Written Policies/ Rules and Procedures on the following:

Conduct of meeting

Management Reports including the periodic 
financial statement
Budget 
Policy formulation
Policy review and monitoring
Product/Service Review
Discussion of audit findings or recommendations 
(internal and external)

Borrowings
Product/Service Review, Evaluation and 
Performance Assessment of the BOD, Officers, 
Management and Staff
Promotions, Incentives and Rewards

Survey, Feedback Mechanisms
Succession Program of Officers and Management

BOD attendance including sanctions for 
absences, tardiness and proper decorum
Membership acceptance, termination, 
determination of members entitled to vote

Orientation of New Board Members and Other 
Officers
Commmunication Protocols
Submission and Handling of Audit/ Inspection/ 
Risk Review/ Examination Reports  to the BOD

Investments

The Disciplinary Actions on Late/Absences of the BOD 
and proper decorum are implemented
The board does not interfere in the day-to-day operations 
of the cooperative

PERFORMANCE AUDIT REPORT - GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT



59

12.
/ Yes No 1 1

13.
/ Yes No 2 2

14.
/ Yes No 1 1

15.
/ Yes No NA 1 1

16.

16.1 / Yes No 2 2
16.2

/ Yes No NA 1 1

16.3 / Yes No NA 1 1
16.4 / Yes No 1 1
16.5 / Yes No 1 1
16.6 / Yes No 1 1
16.7 / Yes No 1 1
16.8 / Yes No 1 1
16.9 / Yes No NA 1 1
16.10 / Yes No 1 1
16.11

/ Yes No NA 1 1

16.12 / Yes No 1 1
16.13

/ Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 2 2

2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 2 2
4. / Yes No 1 1

5. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 2 2

2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 1 1
5. / Yes No 2 2

6.
/ Yes No 1 1

1.
/ Yes No 2 2

2.
/ Yes No 1 1

3. / Yes No 1 1
4.

/ Yes No 1 1

5. / Yes No 1 1
6.

/ Yes No 2 2

7. / Yes No 1 1
8. / Yes No 1 1
9. / Yes No 1 1

A.3  Election Committee

A.4  Audit Committee

A.5  Education Committee

Awareness  through policies and training/orientation of 
the members of the Board of Director’s are aware of their 
duties & responsibilities under the following:

RA9520
Truth in Lending Act (for cooperatives with credit 
operations only)
Philippine Competition Law
Taxation
Trade Practices Act

The new BOD members and other officers have 
undergone Orientation on ACBL and other regulations, 
coop policies and programs.

The board has acted on the result of feedbacks which 
require prompt action.
The Board implements and imposes sanctions in 
violation of the Confidentiality Agreement Policy.

The election related protest or complaint filed with the 
cooperative are appropriately acted upon.  (Rule 7 
Revised IRR of 9520)

Data Privacy Act
Magna Carta on Women, Solo Parent Act,  
Magna Carta for Senior Citizens, Magna Carta for 
PWD 

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Duly signed Oath of Office
Duly approved election rules and guidelines

Environmental Protection
Workplace Health and Safety Act
Labor Law - Minimum Wage 
Banking laws (for cooperative banks only)
AMLA
Credit Information System Act (for cooperatives 
with credit operations only)

Audit Program 
Internal Audit Report/Audit Committee Report

Monitoring report on the compliance of internal and audit 
recommendations

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Board Resolution appointing the members of the 
Education Committee

Certified List of Members entitled to vote as determined 
by the BOD
Results of Election

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Duly signed Oath of Office
Audit Manual 

Feedback/evaluation tool

Duly signed Oath of Office
Capacity Building Program/Training Plan/Program with 
budget
Training Report
Training modules conducted by the coop e.g. PMES, 
Ownership Serminar, Audio visual presentations
Compilation of Training materials/ paraphernalia
List of pool of trainers

/
/
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1. / Yes No 2 2

2. / Yes No 1 1
3.

/ Yes No 1 1

4. / Yes No 1 1
5. / Yes No 2 2
6. / Yes No 2 2
7. / Yes No 1 1

1.
/ Yes No 2 2

2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 1 1

4. / Yes No 1 1
5. / Yes No 2 2
6. / Yes No 1 1
7. / Yes No NA 1 1
8. / Yes No 2 2

1. / Yes No 2 2

2.
/ Yes No 1 1

3. / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 2 2
5.

/ Yes No 2 2

6. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No NA

2. / Yes No NA
3.

/ Yes No NA

4. / Yes No NA

5. / Yes No NA
6. / Yes No NA
7. / Yes No NA

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1

3. / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 2 2
5. / Yes No 2 2
6. / Yes No 1 1

7. / Yes No 2 2
8. / Yes No 1 1
9.

/ Yes No 1 1

10. / Yes No 1 1
11.

/ Yes No 1 1

12. / Yes No 1 1

A.6  GAD Committee

A.7  Mediation and Conciliation Committee (Medcon)

A.8  Ethics Committee

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Written duties and responsibilities
Board Resolution appointing the members of the GAD 
Committee
Duly signed Oath of Office

Board Resolution appointing the members of the 
Mediation and Conciliation Committee
Duly signed Oath of Office
Conflict resolution policies and procedures
Medcon Plan/program
Pool of Mediators/Conciliators, if any
Medcon Semi-annual Report submitted to CDA

GAD Plan with Budget
Sex disaggregated data of members, officers and staff
GAD Assessment Report

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Written duties and responsibilities

Ethics Committee Plans and Programs

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Written duties and responsibilities

Board Resolution creating the committee/s as prescribed 
in its by-laws
Board Resolution appointing the members of the other 
committees

Compilation of the Minutes and Committee Reports and 
Recommendations
Board Resolution appointing the members of the Ethics 
Committee
Duly signed Oath of Office
Code of Governance and Ethical Standards (CGES)
Policies and Procedures in the conduct of 
investigation/inquiry involving violations of CGES

A.9  Other Committees, specify: __________________________

Duly signed Oath of Office
Registry of Members

Share and transfer book
Cooperative copy of Certificate of Registration, Articles of 
Cooperation and By-Laws, Certificate of Compliance
Compilation of Board Resolutions
Treasurer's and Other Periodic Report

Duly signed Oath of Office
Program of Work
Accomplishment Report

Book of Minutes of meetings of GA and the BOD
Appointment Paper/Renewal of Appointment supported 
by Board Resolution

A.10  Secretary

Certified List of Members entitled to vote as determined 
by the BOD

Cooperative Seal
The BOD's decisions are disseminated in written form 
within  7 days or as stated in the policy.
Contracts, MOA, other docs (specify) ______
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1. / Yes No 1 1

2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 2 2
4. / Yes No 1 1
5. / Yes No 1 1

6. / Yes No 2 2
7. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 2 2
4.

a.  / Yes No 1 1
b. / Yes No 1 1
c. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 1 1

1.

/ Yes No 2 2

2.1 / Yes No 1 1
2.2 / Yes No 1 1
2.3 / Yes No 1 1
2.4

/ Yes No 1 1

2.5 / Yes No 1 1

3.1 / Yes No 2 2
3.2 / Yes No 2 2
3.3 / Yes No 2 2
3.4

/ Yes No 1 1

3.5 / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 1 1
5. / Yes No 1 1
6. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1
3. / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1
2. / Yes No 1 1

Duly signed Oath of Office
Cash Book
Bank Books
Cooperative securities (investment, titles, and other 
negotiable instruments)
Cash Position Report
Petty Cash Book

Appointment Paper/Renewal of Appointment supported 
by Board Resolution

A.11  Treasurer

Risk Management Plan
Communication Protocol

Organizational Chart 
Management Structure

Appointment paper
Policy Implementation Files 
Monthly  and Annual Management report
Implementation of the following:

Board's Decisions

A.12  General Manager / C.E.O. / or its equivalent

B. Management Reports/Record
B.1  Organizational/Operational Structure

Bond of accountable officers
Record preservation (maintenance and 
disposal/archiving plan
Risk Assessment System

Business Operation Manual
Accounting Manual

Functional Statement of each unit/ departments/sections

Complete BIR registered books of accounts or loose leaf 
or computerized accounting system and Copy of 
Certificate of Registration from BIR, if using  
Computerized Recording System

Codified Approving and Signing Authority (CASA)
Imprest System

B.2  Systems and Procedures

2. Internal Control Systems

3. Manual of Operation and Policies, which included among others, the following:

Contract/Certificate of employment
Job Description
Qualification Standards
Personnel File

Human Resource Policy Manual
Access of documents/books/records as required 
under Art. 52 and 83 of RA9520 by the members
Business Continuity/Contingency Manual

Copies of Guidelines implementing the approved policies
Business Continuity/contingency Plan
Communication and Feedback Mechanism

B.3 Human Resource Records

B.4  Performance Evaluation

Standards of measurement

Rating of all officers and management staff

Salary scaling program

Incentive and Reward Program

B.5  Compensation and Benefits
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3. / Yes No 1 1
4. / Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 2 2

2. / Yes No 2 2
3. / Yes No 1 1

4. / Yes No 1 1

5. / Yes No 1 1

6. / Yes No 1 1

7. / Yes No 1 1

8. Annual Tax Incentive Report (CDA) / Yes No NA 1 1

9. / Yes No NA

1.
a. / Yes No 2 2
b.

/ Yes No NA 1 1

c. / Yes No 1 1
2.

/ Yes No 1 1

1. / Yes No 1 1

2.

Yes
/

No 2 0

TOTAL POINTS 100 99

Retirement Plan/Program/Package

Certificate of Compliance (CDA)

Certificate of Tax Exemption (BIR)

Annual Registration with BIR

Registration (SSS)

Leave Incentives Program

B.6  Compliance to Government Requirements

Local special bodies (Not applicable if there are 
no Local Special Bodies in the locality)
Cooperative Development Councils

The board participates and supports  the activities of the 
cooperative federation/union/local special bodies (LGU)  
and Civic Organizations or Peoples Organizations

Presence of at least 10% in new set of officers yearly. 

At least  50% of the total membership 
attended/participated in at least one activity of the 
cooperative, such as seminars/ trainings, community 
programs and activities, etc. except GA Meetings.

Registration (PHILHEALTH)

Registration (PAG-IBIG)

Business Permit (LGU)

Other agencies, specify the document, if applicable BSP
Reports, BIR Reports PDIC Reports

The cooperative is a member of the following: 
Cooperative federation/union

C. Partnership, Networking and Linkaging

D.Membership Participation
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Formula Account Amount
1.2 Quick Asset Legal Policy Reserves 10,058,837
1.3 Solvency Impaired Assets

1.5 Capital Adequacy Rate Unbooked Allowance for 
Impairment of Assets

2.1  Asset turn over,
3.1 Administrative Efficiency,
4.1 Return on Assets

Total Assets, previous year 616,274,331.26 

2.2.1  Accounts Receivable turn-
over

Accounts Receivable, previous 
year 71,463.87

2.2.2 Loan Receivable Turn Over Loans Receivable previous year 392,199,038.74 

2.2.3 Service Receivable Turn Over Service Receivable previous year

3.2  Cost of External Borrowing Rate Loans Payable, previous year 51,272,512.37 

3.3  Cost of Borrowings from 
Members

Other Financing Charges-Interest 
on Revolving Capital Payable

3.3  Cost of Borrowings from 
Members Deposit Liabilities, previous year 411,156,921.57 

3.3  Cost of Borrowings from 
Members

Revolving Capital Payable, 
previous year 8,138,076.64 

3.6 Growth in Members' 
Contribution,
4.2  Return on Member's share

Paid up Capital-Common, 
previous  year 36,034,000.00

3.6 Growth in Members' 
Contribution,
4.2  Return on Member's share

Paid up Capital- Preferred, 
previous  year 12,058,000.00 

3.6 Growth in Members' 
Contribution,
4.2  Return on Member's share

Deposit for Share Capital 
Subcription, previous year 8,988,470.00 

4.2  Return on Member's share Treasury Shares - Common, 
previous year

4.2  Return on Member's share Treasury Shares - Preferred, 
previous year

5.1  Percentage of non-earning 
asset over total assets Other Non-Earning Assets

ANNEX B - FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR PRIMARY AND
OTHER SPECIAL TYPE COOPERATIVES

Summary of fields to be supplied by coop

CDA-ReD-FR-029
Revision No. 1
March 5, 2021
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FORMULA/RATIO TOTAL 
POINTS ACCOUNTS UNDER CAFSIS AMOUNG COOP'S POINT PURPOSE

1 STABILITY
1.1  Liquidity   Current Assets  Above 500% 0 4 Total Current Assets 448,096,592.23

Current Liabilities Above 400% to 500% 1
Above 300% to 400% 2 Total Current Liabilities 497,109,589.45
Above 150% to 300% 3
100% to 150% 4
Below 100% to 95% 3 Liquidity Rate 0.90 2
Below 95% to 90% 2
Below 90% to 85% 1
Below 85% 0

1.2  Quick Asset Liquid assets 200% and above 3 3 Liquid Assets:
150% to below 200% 2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 287,765,737.59
100% to below 150% 1 Financial Assets 21,477,383.53
Below 100% 0 Total Liquid Assets 309,243,121.12

Current Liabilities 497,109,589.45
Less: Legal Policy Reserves 10,058,837.49
Net 487,050,751.96
Quick Ratio 0.63 0

1.3  Solvency 110 and above 5 5 Total Assets 774,435,827.77 

100 to below 110 3 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Accounts Receivable 787,987.12 

Below 100 1 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Loans Receivable 39,478,789.89 

Deposit liabilities + Share 
capital + Deposit for SC 

Subscription 
Allowance for Impaired Assets 46,999.00 

Sub-total 814,749,603.78 
Total Liabilities 665,674,320.16
Less:  Deposit Liabilities 493,960,794.07
Add: Past Due Accounts 
Receivable 2,077,138.21 

         Past Due Loans Receivable 58,870,029.22 

         Accounts Receivable 
Restructured -

         Loans Receivable 
Restructured 14,266,203.72 

         Accounts Receivable under 
litigation -   

         Loans Receivable under 
litigation 4,905,048.35 

Impaired Assets
Sub-total 251,831,945.59 
Total 562,917,658.19 
Deposit Liabilites 493,960,794.07
Paid up Capital- Preferred 12,401,000.00 
Paid up Capital-Common 36,256,000.00 
Total Paid up Capital 48,657,000.00 
Deposit for Share Capital 
Subscription 11,538,620.80 

Total 554,156,414.87 
Solvency Rate 1.02 3

Measures the 
cooperative's ability to 
meet its short term 
obligations as it falls due

Measures the 
cooperative's ability to 
pay its current 
liabilities  using its 
quick assets.

Current Liabilities - Legal Policy 
Reserves

(Assets + Allowances for 
probable losses+Allowance for 

Impaired Assets) - [ (Total 
liabilities - Deposit 

liabilities)+(Past due 

Measures the degree of 
protection that the 
cooperative has for 
members savings and 
share capital    
contribution in the event 
of liquidation of the 
cooperative's assets and 
liabilities

INDICATORS STANDARD POINT
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1.4  Net Institutional Capital

Reserve Fund + [(Allowance for 
Probable Losses on 

Receivables) - (Past Due 
Receivables + Receivables in 

Litigation)]

10% and above 3 3 General Reserve Fund 8,692,718.58 
Measures the level of 
institutional capital to 

absorb potential losses

Total Assets 7% to below 10% 2.5 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Receivable 40,266,777.01 

5% to below 7% 2

3% to below 5% 1.5 Less: Past Due Accounts 
Receivable

1% to below 3% 1 Past Due Loans Receivable 73,136,232.94 

Below 1% 0          Accounts Receivable in 
litigation 2,077,138.21

         Loans Receivable in 
litigation 4,905,048.35 

Total 31,158,923.91-  
Total Assets 774,435,827.77
Net institutional Capital 0.04-    0

8% and above 4 4 Net Worth:
6% to less than 8% 3 Paid up Capital- Preferred 12,401,000.00 
4% to less than 6% 2 Paid up Capital-Common 36,256,000.00 

Risk Assets 2% to less than 4% 1 Deposit for Share Capital 
Subscription 11,538,620.80 

below 2% 0 Total Paid up Capital 60,195,620.80 
Donations and Grants -
Reserve Fund 16,497,584.08
Revaluation Surplus -
Less:  Unbooked Allowances
Total Net Worth 76,693,204.88 

Sufficient Allowance for Probable 
Loss Risk Assets:

Total Assets 774,435,827.77
Less:  Cash on Hand 2,841,695.75 

Petty Cash Fund 5,000.00 
Revolving Fund
Change Fund
Property, Plant and 

Equipment (net of depreciation) 13,557,155.40 

Total Risk Assets 758,031,976.62 
Capital Adequacy Rate 0.10 4
**Unbooked Allowance for 
probable losses on loans
Past Due Loans Receivable - 12 
months past due 45,914,875.30

Past Due Accounts Receivable -
12 months past due 2,077,138.21

Total Past Due Loans - 12 
months 47,992,013.51 

Required Allowance - 12 
months (35%) 16,797,204.73 

Past Due Loans Receivable - over 
12 months past due 32,126,405.99 

Past Due Accounts Receivable - 
over 12 months past due - 

1.5 Capital Adequacy Rate Net Worth (Equity - unbooked 
allowance for probable loss-

unbooked allowance for Measures the 
sufficiency of the 
capital to cover the risk 
assets

35% and 100% of past due 
receivables based on PAR

Unbooked Allowance - 
insufficient provisioning 
of allowance for 
probable losses based 
on PAR
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Total Past Due Loans - over 12 
months 32,126,405.99 

Required Allowance - over 12 
months (100%) 32,126,405.99 

Total Required Allowance 48,923,610.72 
Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Loans Receivable 36,756,992.61 

Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Accounts Receivable 787,987.12 

Total Allowance for Probable 
Losses 37,544,979.73 

Unbooked Allowance 11,378,630.99 

Unbooked Allowance for 
Impairment of Assets -   

Total unbooked allowance 11,378,630.99 
SUB-TOTAL, STABILITY 19 9

2 TURN-OVER RATIO
Gross Revenue Above 10.5 2 2 Gross Revenue 84,100,491.76

Average Total Assets 10.5 and below 1 Average Total Assets
Zero or negative 0       Total Assets, previous year 616,274,331.26

      Total Assets, current year 774,435,827.77
       Average Total Asset (divided 
by 2) 695,355,079.52 

Asset Turn Over 0.12 1

2.2 Receivable turn-over 4 1
Net Credit Sales 8 times and more 4 4 Net Credit Sales

Average Accounts Receivables 6 to below 8 3 Average Accounts Receivable NOT APPLICABLE
(For Consumer, Marketing) 3 to below 6 2 Receivable turn-over 0

0.1 to Below 3 1

Zero or negative 0 Average Accounts Receivable:

Accounts Receivable, previous 
year 71,463.87 

Accounts Receivable, current year 2,258,743.86

Average Accounts Receivable NOT APPLICABLE

2.2.2 Loan Receivable Turn Over Loan Releases 4 times and more 4 4 Loan Releases (from CAPR - 
volume of business) 423,331,098.00

(for Credit, Agriculture & ARB) Average Loans Receivable 3 to below 4 3 Average Loans Receivable 426,459,686.50
2 to below 3 2 Loans Receivable turn-over 0.99 1
above 0 to Below 2 1
Zero or negative 0 Average Loans Receivable:

Loans Receivable previous year 429,588,275.00

Loans Receivable current year 423,331,098.00
Average Loans Receivable: 426,459,686.50

Measures the number of times 
loans receivables are collected 

within the reporting period 

(based on 
csimarket.com/screenin
g/index.php?s=at&page
S=1&fis=)

2.2.1  Accounts Receivable turn-
over Measures the number 

of times accounts 
receivables are 
collected within the 
reporting period 

Measures how 
efficiently the 

cooperative uses its 
asset to generate 

revenue

Measures the number 
of times loans 
receivables are 

collected within the 
reporting period 

2.1 Asset turn over

Measures how efficiently the 
cooperative uses its asset to 

generate revenue

Measures the number of times 
accounts receivables are 
collected within the reporting 
period 
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2.2.3 Service Receivable Turn Over
(For Service  & Labor Service Coop) 9 and above 4 4 Gross Receipts -

Average Service Receivable 8 to below 9 3 Average Service Receivable NOT APPLICABLE

7 to below 8 2 Service Receivable Turn-over 0

Below 7 1

Gross Receipts - refers to the Zero or negative 0 Average Service Receivable:

amount for the year taken from CAPRIS Service Receivable previous year -

Service Receivable current year

Average Service Receivable: NOT APPLICABLE
SUB-TOTAL, TURN-OVER RATIO 6 2

3 EFFICIENCY
Below 10% 4 4 Total Administrative Cost 67,092,620.50 

Average total assets* 10% to below 15% 3 Less      Members Benefit  
Expense

15% to below 20% 2 Social Service Expense
*Average total assets = 
(Beginning Total Asset + Ending
Total Asset)/2

20% to below 25% 1 Total 67,092,620.50 

Above 25% 0
Average Total Assets
      Total Assets, previous year 616,274,331.26
      Total Assets, current year 774,435,827.77
       Average Total Asset (divided 
by 2) 695,355,079.52 

Administrative Efficiency 0.10 4

3.2  Cost of External Borrowing Rate Interest on Borrowings+ Other 
Borrowing Costs Below inflation rate 3 3 Interest Expense on Borrowings 57,087.73 

Average Total Loans Payable Within inflation rate 2 Other Financing Charges

Above inflation rate 1 Total 57,087.73 

Inflation rate as of 12/31/2021 (to be updated annually)3.6% Loans Payable, previous year 51,272,512.37 
(as per CDA) Loans Payable, current year 124,324,822.90

Average Loans Payable 87,798,667.64
Cost of External Borrowing 
Rate 0.00 3

3.3  Cost of Borrowings from 
Members

Interest on Deposits+Interest 
on Revolving Capital Payable Below inflation rate 3 3 Interest Expense on Deposit 

Liabilities 11,207,576.31

Average Total Deposit 
Liabilities + Average Revolving 

Capital Payable
Within inflation rate 2 Other Financing Charges-Interest 

on Revolving Capital Payable

Above inflation rate 1 Total 11,207,576.31

Deposit Liabilities, previous year 411,156,921.57

Inflation rate 12/31/2021 (to be updated annually)3.6% Deposit Liabilities, current year 493,960,794.07
Average Deposit Liabilities 452,558,857.82

Measures the efficiency of 
borrowings in financing its 
operation

Measures the efficiency of 
borrowings from members in 
financing its operation

Measures the 
efficiency of 
borrowings from 
members in financing 
its operation

Gross Receipts 

Administrative cost - (members 
benefit expense+ social service 

3.1 Administrative Efficiency
Measures the cost of 
efficiently managing 
the cooperative's 
assets

Measures the 
efficiency of 
borrowings in 
financing its operation

Measures the cost of efficiently 
managing the cooperative's 
assets
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Revolving Capital Payable, 
previous year
Revolving Capital Payable, 
current year
Average Revolving Capital 
Payable
Total Averages 452,558,857.82
Cost of Borrowing from 
Members Rate 0.02 3

3.4 Cost per volume of Business 25 cents and below 3 3 Financing Cost 57,087.73
26 to 32 cents 2 Selling/Administrative Cost

Total Volume of Business 33 to 39 cents 1 Administrative Cost 67,092,620.50 
40 to 46 cents 0.5 Total Cost 67,149,708.23

47 cents and above 0 Less:  Members' Benefit Expense

Less:  Social Benefit Expense
Net 67,149,708.23

Loan Releases
Net Sales
Gross Service Revenue 84,100,491.76
Total Volume of Business 84,100,491.76

Cost per Volume of Business 0.80 0

Total volume of business 100% and above 5 5 Loan Releases 423,331,098.00
Average Total assets 75% to below 100% 4 Net Sales

50% to below 75% 3 Gross Service Revenue 84,100,491.76
25% to below 50% 2 Total Volume of Business 507,431,589.76
 5%to below 25% 1 Average Total Asset 695,355,079.52

below 5% 0 Extent of Volume of Business 0.73 3

Paid up Capital End - Paid-up 
Capital, Beg. above 12% 5 5 Paid up Capital-Common, current  

year 36,256,000.00 

Paid up Capital Beg. above 10% to 12% 4 Paid up Capital- Preferred, current 
year 12,401,000.00 

avove 8% to 10% 3 Deposit for Share Capital 
Subcription, current year 11,538,620.80

above 6% to  8% 2 Total Paid-up Capital, current year 60,195,620.80

above 4% to  6% 1

4% and below 0 Paid up Capital-Common, 
previous  year 36,034,000.00 

Paid up Capital- Preferred, 
previous  year 12,058,000.00

Deposit for Share Capital 
Subcription, previous year 9,197.00

Total Paid-up Capital, previous 
year 48,101,197.00

Net 12,094,423.80
Total Paid-up Capital, previous 
year 48,101,197.00

Growth in Membership 0.25 5
5% and below 5 5 Past Due Accounts Receivable
above 5% to 10% 4 Past Due Loans Receivable 73,136,232.94

above 10% to 15% 3 Accounts Receivable in Litigation 2,077,138.21

Measures the efficiency in 
managing the cooperative's 
business

Total  Cost - Members' Benefit 
Expenses-Social Service 

3.7  Delinquency Rate Balance of Loans/Accounts 
Receivables with one day 

Total Loans/Accounts 
Receivable Outstanding

Measures the 
efficiency in managing 
the cooperative's 
business

3.5 Extent of Volume of Business

3.6 Growth in Members' Contribution Measures the ability of 
the cooperative to 
encourage members to 
increase  their capital 
contribution

Measures the ability of 
the cooperative to use 
the assets to generate 

businessMeasures the ability of the 
cooperative to use the assets to 

generate business

Measures the ability of the 
cooperative to encourage 
members to increase  their 
capital contribution

Measures the ability of 
the cooperative to 
encourage members to 
increase their capital 
contribution
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above 15% to 20% 2 Loans Receivable in Litigation 4,905,048.35
above 20% to 25% 1 Total 80,118,419.50
above 25% 0

Total Accounts Receivable 2,258,743.86
Total Loans Receivable 451,545,548.08
Total  Receivables 453,804,291.94
Delinquency Rate 0.18 2

Total amount of allowance 100% 5 5 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Accounts Receivable

  80% to less than 100% 4 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Loans Receivable 36,756,992.61 

  60% to less than 80% 3 Total Amount of Allowance 36,756,992.61 
  35% to less than 60% 2

  10% to less than 35% 1 Past Due Accounts Receivable - 
over 12 months

  less than 10% 0 Past Due Loans Receivable - over 
12 months 32,126,405.99 

Total Past Due Receivable over 
12 months 32,126,405.99 

Adequacy of provisioning of 
APLL over 12 months 1.14 5

35% 5 5 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Accounts Receivable 787,987.12 

  25% to less than 35% 4 Allowance for Probable Losses on 
Loans Receivable 13,469,492.37 

  17% to less than 25% 3 Total Amount of Allowance 14,257,479.49 

  9% to less than 17% 2 Less  Total Past Due Receivable 
over 12 months

  1% to less than 9% 1 Amount of Allowance available 
for 1-12 months past due 14,257,479.49 

  less than 1% 0
Past Due Accounts Receivable -
30 to 360 days 2,077,138.21

Past Due Loans Receivable - 30 
to 360 days 45,914,875.30

Total Past Due Loans 
Receivable - 1 to 12 months 
past due

47,992,013.51

Adequacy of provisioning of 
APLL for 1 to 12 months 0.30 4

SUB-TOTAL, EFFICIENCY 38 29

4 PROFITABILITY Net surplus before Other Items 20% and above 5 5 Net Surplus before Other Items 5,706,230.75
Average Total Assets 15% to below 20% 4 Average Total Assets 695,355,079.52

10% to below 15% 3 Return on Assets 0.01 1
 5%  to below 10% 2
Below 5% 1

Average Total Assets
      Total Assets, previous year 616,274,331.26
      Total Assets, current year 774,435,827.77
       Average Total Asset 695,355,079.52 

Amount Allocated for Interest 
on  Share Capital Higher than the inflation rate 5 5 Amount Allocated for Interest 

on Share Capital 3,994,362.00 

Measures the adequacy of the 
allowance for expected losses 
on loans for over 12months 
past due

Measures the capacity of 
assets to generate income

4.2 Return on Member's share capacity of member's 
share capital

3.9  Adequacy of Provisioning of 1 to 
12 months past due

(Total amount of allowance* - 
Required amount of allowance 
for loans over 12 months past 

due using PAR) 
Total outstanding balance of 

loans/accounts receivable 1 to 
12 months past due using PAR

Measures the capacity 
of assets to generate 
income

4.1 Return on Assets

Measures the riks of 
default in the portfolio
or the rate of Total Loans/Accounts

3.8  Adequacy of Provisioning of 
APLL (over 12 months past due)

Measures the 
adequacy of the 
allowance for expected 
losses on loans for 
over 12months past 
due

Total outstanding balance of 
loans/accounts receivable over 
12 months past due using PAR

Measures the riks of default in 
the portfolio or the rate of 
uncollectible accounts

Measures the capacity 
of assets to generate 
income

Measures the ability of 
the cooperative to 
encourage members to 
increase their capital 
contribution
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Average Paid up Share Capital 
+ Deposit for Share Capital 

Subscription - Treasury Shares
Within the inflation rate 4

2 points below the 
inflation rate 3 Paid up Capital- Preferred, 

previous year 12,058,000.00 

3 points or more below 
the inflation rate 2 Paid up Capital-Common, 

previous year 36,034,000.00

Net Loss 0 Deposit for Share Capital 
Subcription, previous year 9,197.00

Less: Treasury Shares - Common, 
previous year

Inflation rate as of _____ (to be updated annually)3.6%         Treasury Shares - Preferred, 
previous year
Total, Previous Year 48,101,197.00

Paid up Capital- Preferred, current 
year 12,401,000.00

Paid up Capital-Common, current  
year 36,256,000.00

Deposit for Share Capital 
Subcription, current year 11,538,620.80

Less Treasury Shares - Common, 
current year
        Treasury Shares - Preferred, 
current year
Total, Current Year 60,195,620.80

Average Paid up Share Capital 54,148,408.90

Return on Member's Share 0.07 5

Net Surplus 30% and above     5 5 Net Surplus 5,706,230.75
Gross Revenue 25% to below 30%     4 Gross Revenue/Margin 84,100,491.76

10% to below 25%     3 Rate of net surplus 0.07 2
5% to below 10%     2
below 5%     1
In case of break-even or 
net loss 0

SUB-TOTAL, PROFITABILITY 15 8

5 STRUCTURE OF ASSETS

Non-Earning Assets 5% and below 5 5 Non Earning Assets
Total Assets above 5% to 8% 4 Cash on Hand 2,841,695.75

above 8% to 10% 3 Petty Cash Fund 5,000.00
above 10% to 12% 2 Revolving Fund
above 12% to 14% 1 Change Fund
above 14% 0 Supplies 516,978.76 

Prepaid Expenses 259,018.75
Property, Plant and Equipment 
(net) 13,557,155.40

Other Non-Earning Assets 8,464,647.18
Total Non-Earning Assets 25,644,495.84
Total Assets 774,435,827.77

Measures the earning capacity 
of member's share capital

Measures the capacity of the 
cooperative to generate surplus

4.2  Return on Member's share

4.3 Rate of Net Surplus Measures the capacity of 
the cooperative to 
generate surplus

5.1  Percentage of non-earning 
asset over total assets

Measures the 
percentage of total 
assets that are not 
producing income

Measures the percentage of 
total assets that are not 
producing income

Measures the capacity 
of assets to generate 
income
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% of Non-Earning Asset over 
total Assets 0.03 5

Total Investments 0% to 5% 4 4
Investments in equity and debt 
instruments (current and long 
term)

21,477,383.53

Net Worth above 5% to 10% 3 Investments Property less ROPA

above 10% to 15% 2 Investments in Subsidiary, 
Associates and Joint Ventures

above 15% to 20% 1 Total Investments 21,477,383.53 
above 20% 0

Net Worth:
Paid up Capital- Preferred 12,401,000.00 
Paid up Capital-Common 36,256,000.00 
Deposit for Share Capital 
Subscription 11,538,620.80 

Total Paid up Capital 60,195,620.80 
Donations and Grants
Reserve Fund 16,497,584.08
Revaluation Surplus
Less:  Unbooked Allowance for 
probable losses on Loans 11,378,630.99 

Total Net Worth 65,314,573.89 

Percentage of Investment 0.33 0

Total Deposit Liabilities 50% and above 5 5 Saving Deposits 210,874,210.16
Total Assets 40% to below 50% 4 Time Deposits 283,086,583.91

30% to below 40% 3 Total Deposit Liabilities 493,960,794.07
20% to below 30% 2 111 Total Asset 774,435,827.77

10% to below 20% 1 Extent of Assets financed by 
Deposit Liabilities 0.64 5

Below 10% 0

External Borrowings + 
Statutory Reserves No borrowings 3 3 Loans Payable - current

Total Assets 15% and below 2 Loans Payable - non-current 124,324,823
above 15% to 40% 1 Finance Lease - current
above 40% 0 Finance Lease - Long term

Total External Borrowings 124,324,822.90

Reserve Fund 8,692,718.58
Cooperative Education Training 
Fund 885,146.33

Community Development Fund 180,199.88
Optional Fund 3,609,219.29
Total Statutory Reserves 13,367,284.08

Total Assets 774,435,827.77
Extent of Borrowings 0.18 1

Measures the extent of assets 
financed by deposit liabilities

Measures the  degree of assets 
devoted to investments

5.2 Percentage of Investment
Measures the  degree of 
assets devoted to 
investments

5.3 Extent of Assets financed by 
Deposit Liabilities

Measures the extent of 
assets financed by 
deposit liabilities

5.4 Extent of Total Assets to 
External Borrowings and Statutory 
Reserves

Measures the extent of 
assets financed by 
external borrowings and 
statutory reserve

Measures the extent of assets 
financed by external 
borrowings and statutory 
reserve
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Paid-up share capital + 
Deposits for capital 

subscription-Treasury Shares
50% and above 5 5 Paid up Capital- Preferred, current 

year 12,401,000.00 

Total Assets 40% to below 50% 4 Paid up Capital-Common, current  
year 36,256,000.00

30% to below 40% 3 Deposit for Share Capital 
Subscription, current year 11,538,620.80

20% to below 30% 2 Total 60,195,620.80
10 % to below 20% 1 Less Treasury shares
below 10% 0 Net 60,195,620.80

Total Assets 774,435,827.77
Extent of Assets financed by 
Members' Share Capital 0.08 0

SUB-TOTAL, STRUCTURE OF 
ASSETS 133 11

5.5 Extent of Assets financed by 
Members' Share Capital

Measures the degree of 
participation of members' 
share to total assets

TOTAL POINTS 211 59
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Summary of observations and findings are found below:

NEEDED ACTION

Increase loan releases and 
increase collection rate on 
past due loans to realized 
income

Decrease assets parked to 
investments and divert to 
higher income such as loans to 
improve structure of asset

Decrease past due loans 
through collection from 
clients/borrowers
lower interest rate on fixed 
deposit to within inflation rate 
to improve efficiency

Increase capitalization 
through capital build-up from 
members and recruitment of 
new members, approval of 
amendments of the Articles of 
Cooperation and By Laws by 
the Bangko Sentral ng 
Pilipinas and CDA.

STANDARD RATING

19

6

38

15

133

211

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA is a duly registered cooperative with the Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) under Registration 
No.9520-022001528 with official postal address at Burgos St., corner Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya engaging in the provision of
cooperative banking business.

The audit was conducted by the Internal Auditor and the Audit Committee last February 8, 2022 to ascertain the documents required by MC No. 2021-
04 Series of 2021 issued by the CDA, a government agency in-charge in the regulation and development of cooperatives. Methodologies employed
include verification of the presence of the documents, whether the document is updated, and whether it is duly approved by the CDA. Prior the conduct
of the audit, a notice was issued to the concerned units/person before the conduct of the audit.

A. Governance and Management

Add more lines, if necessary

AREAS TO BE IMPROVED/FOR COMPLIANCE TIMELINE

Low capitalization that resulted to low net institutional capital

The bank garnered 100 points as shown in the Governance and Management Report-Annex A which means that the presence of all policies, reports 
and documents provided therein is an assessment that the cooperative bank operates with good governance and observing safe and sound banking 

practices.

High volume of investments

Low turn over ratio due to low loan releases that resulted to lower profitability and 
return on asset

11

TOTAL RATING - STEPS 58.5

Add more lines, if necessary

B. Result of Financial Performance

STEPS COOP'S RATING

STABILITY 9

Up to December 31, 
2022

TURN-OVER RATIO 2

EFFICIENCY 29

PROFITABILITY 8

STRUCTURE OF ASSETS

STRONG AREAS

Up to December 31, 
2022

Up to December 31, 
2022

Up to December 31, 
2022

Up to December 31, 
2022

High volume of past due loans required high provision of credit losses

Cost of borrowings from clients/members is high

CDA-ReD-FR-029
Revision No. 1
March 5, 2021

PERFORMANCE AUDIT REPORT - GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT
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x   40%

 x   60%

100%

ADJECTIVAL RATING

 Accomplished by:

 Audit Committee- Chairperson

(SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN 
Audit Committee - Vice Chairperson

(SGD) RICHARD P. CORDERO
 Audit Committee - Member

(SGD) ARLETTE MAE C. ACERET 
Internal Auditor

(SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO

The Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya obtained a total rating of 75.10% which is Needs Improvement

Grand Total 75.10

Total Points

Governance and Management 40

STEPS 35.1

C. Total Points

PERFORMANCE AUDIT REPORT - GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT
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A. Cooperative Identification Number (CIN): 102020068

B. Name of Cooperative as of latest amendment: COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

C. Present Address of Cooperative: BURGOS CORNER GADDANG STS., QUIRINO, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

D. Registration Number (under RA 9520): 9520-02001528

Original Date of Registration : 3/25/1991
Registration Date under RA 9520 : 11/3/2009

F. Business Permit (as of reporting period)

G. Category of Cooperative: Primary Tertiary

H. Type of Cooperative: (click to select) COOPERATIVE BANK

I.  Asset Size of Cooperative: Micro  (with Assets of P3,000,000 and below )
       (Pls. check only one item) Small (with Assets of P3,000,001 to P15 million)

Medium  (with Assets of P15,000,001 to P100 million)
Large  (with Assets over P100 million)

Note:  Land should be excluded from the Total Asset as per CDA MC 2007-07 dated June 5, 2007.

J. Common Bond of Membership:  (click to select) N/A

K. Date of General Assembly: 6/3/2022

L. Quorum Requirement: 50% + 1

M. Fiscal Year: 2021

N. Area of Operation:   National          Others, pls. specify

O. Business Activities:

Business Activity
        Consumer/Canteen & Catering Gross Sales
        Labor Service/deployment of members Total Contract Price
        Lending Total Amount of Gross Loan Releases
        Marketing/Trading (non-agri products)Gross Sales
        Production/Manufacturing Gross Sales
        Training Providers Gross Receipts
         Sale of Agricultural Products Gross Sales

  Regional   Municipal

O1. Annual Volume of Business: (select only business activities undertaken (maybe more than one) and  indicate total amount per 
business activity)

Cooperative Development Authority
Cooperative Annual Progress Report (CAPR)
As of December 31, 2021

INSTRUCTIONS TO COOPERATIVES
1. All blanks shall be filled-up with appropriate information. Do not leave any field blank.  Write 0 for none and N/A for Not Applicable, dates
2. The submission of the duly accomplished Cooperative Annual Progress Report (CAPR) Form shall be done ANNUALLY within 120 days after the 
end of the calendar year.

E. Date Registered:

Business Permit No. 8299299H
Date Issued 11/1/2022

3. Submission to CDA shall be done electronically through www.cda.gov.ph in accordance with MC No. 2014-05. Likewise, the cooperative shall
submit to the Authority, through the Extension Office, one (1) copy of the encoded CAPR Form within 120 days after the end of the calendar 
4. The Authorized Representative of the Cooperative shall encode all the data required in the CAPR Form.
5. The Chairman and General Manager  shall certify to the truthfulness and correctness of the information
contained herein.
6. All Multi-Purpose Cooperatives shall segregate records per economic activity.

GENERAL INFORMATION 

Amount Paid 44,053.76

        Secondary

423,331,098.00 

Bases of Volume of Business Amount

CDA-ReD-FR-003
Revision No.  7 
October 1, 2019

/

/

/

COOPERATIVE ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT
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Provision of Services (please click below)
Practice of Profession, pls. specify 

___________
Gross Service Revenue /Income

Professional Gross Service Revenue /Income
Transportation Gross Service Revenue /Income

BANKING

        O2. Products/Commodities  
Major Products

Crops Banana Corn raw   processed
Aqua Marine Crabs Mussles raw   processed
Livestocks Pig Ducks Goat raw   processed
Metal /Minerals Lime Gold Iron raw   processed
Other Products & Bamboo Copra Flowers raw   processed
Commodities

            O3  Other Financial Services

Money Transfers Foreign Exchange Trading Bills Payment
Remittances         ATM Operations Others, pls. specify

_______________

        O4. Importation Activities, if any, identify:
Import items N/A
Volume of Importation N/A

P. Information on Number of Employees

Number of Personnel Receiving Salaries
Number of Personnel receiving Honoraria 
only

           For honoraria -do not include officers  receiving honoraria

Q. Contact Person (at the time of submission)
a. Name: MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
b. Designation: PRESIDENT CONCURRENT GENERAL MANAGER
c. Phone Number: (078) 326-6133
d. Fax Number: N/A
e. Email Address: coopbanknuevavizcaya@rbap.org

R. Information on Membership
For Secondary For Tertiary

Male  Female Primary Co-ops  Secondary  
Co-ops

  No. of Regular members 76 
  No. of Associate members 3,882 
  Total No. of Members 3,958 

  R1. MEMBERSHIP COMPOSITION:  (Please select composition and indicate number of members in each composition)

Composition No. No.
Agrarian Reform Beneficiaries 133 
Driver / Operators / Conductors 3,825 
Elderly/Senior Citizen
4Ps Beneficiaries
Livestock growers
4Ps Beneficiaries
4Ps Beneficiaries add more

  R2.  AGE GROUP OF MEMBERS
Age bracket No.

     18 - 30 N/A
     31 - 59
     60 and above

Current Year TOTALMale Female

84,100,491.76 

42 37 79

3 0 3

Use drop down to choose Specific Products  Check either products are raw or processed

Composition
JURIDICAL PERSON
PRIVATE INDIVIDUALS

Note:  In case of Workers Cooperative,  all workers are considered direct employees of the cooperative.

  Particulars
For Primary

Other Juridical Persons

/

COOPERATIVE ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT
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  R3. List of Officers - Officers as of the Reporting Period  (Indicate name and address)

R3.a. Board of Directors

R3.b. Other Officers 

R4.c. Committees of the Cooperative

1. BULLONG, CATHERINE P. PUROK 2 KASIBU NUEVA VIZCAYA

2. DELA PEÑA, BENEDICTA DC SAN PEDRO BAGABAG NUEVA VIZCAYA

BONFAL PROPER, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
4. TIBURCIO, FLEICIANO P.

1. BACENA, NIETO P. TUAO SOUTH, BAGABAG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
2. FORYASEN, MARCIANA D.
3. AMADOR, NOEL S. DOPAJ, DUPAX DEL NORTE, NUEVA VIZCAYA

2. CORDERO, RICHARD P. BUSILAC, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
3. DOMINCEL, ARNEL G. OSMEÑA, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA
4. PINKIHAN, MARISSA Q. (Ex-Officio Member) BONFAL PROPER, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. CORDERO, RICHARD P. BUSILAC, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

3. DOMINCEL, ARNEL G. OSMEÑA, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA
4. PINKIHAN, MARISSA Q. (Ex-Officio Member) BONFAL PROPER, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. BACENA, NIETO P. TUAO SOUTH, BAGABAG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
2. PINKIHAN, MARISSA Q. BONFAL PROPER, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
3. ARIZALA, MARY JANE F. LA TORRE, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. PESCASIO, MERLY S. MAUAN, BAMBANG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
2. DEL ROSARIO, KAREN GAY U. HOMESTEAD, BAMBANG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

S. Information on Cooperative Branches/Satellites

PAMPANG, KAYAPA, NUEVA VIZCAYA

BUGALLON PROPER, RAMON, ISABELA
POBLACION NORTH, MADDELA, QUIRINO
BANGGOT, BAMBANG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

B. ELECTION COMMITTEE

C. MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION COMMITTEE

D. ETHICS COMMITTEE

E. CREDIT COMMITTEE

F. EDUCATION & TRAINING COMMITEE 

G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

H. RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

I. GENDER & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

J. AUDIT COMMITTEE (GA)

1. CHAIRMAN - DOMINCEL, ARNEL G. OSMEÑA, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA
2. VICE- CHAIRMAN BACENA, NIETO P. TUAO SOUTH, BAGABAG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
3. FORYASEN, MARCIANA D. RIZAL, DIFFUN, QUIRINO

NAME ADDRESS

7. AMADOR, NOEL S. DOPAJ, DUPAX DEL NORTE, NUEVA VIZCAYA
8. LBP- EX OFFICIO BRUAL, IMELDA B. BETTER LIVING SUB., PARAÑAQUE CITY

4. METCHA, MANOLO A. PANIKI, BAGABAG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
5. CORDERO, RICHARD P. BUSILAC, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
6. PACIO, MORENCIO S. POBLACION, KASIBU, NUEVA VIZCAYA

TREASURER - VALDEZ, ROLY D. SAN LUIS, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

NAME ADDRESS

POBLACION, KASIBU, NUEVA VIZCAYA

NAME ADDRESS
PRESIDENT/GM - PINKIHAN, MARISSA Q. BONFAL PROPER, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA
SECRETARY - TIBURCIO, FELICIANO P. AGGUB, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. MANAS, CRISTINO A.

2. ANDAYA, ARNULFO M. AGGUB, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

OSMEÑA, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. PACIO, MORENCIO S.
2. FORYASEN, MARCIANA D. RIZAL, DIFFUN, QUIRINO
3. CORDERO, RICHARD P. BUSILAC, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

  No. of Branches: 4
  No. of Satellites: N/A

1. RAMOS, BETTY N.
2. LOZANO, JULIET P. BONFAL WEST, BAYOMBONG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

2. AMADOR, NOEL S. DOPAJ, DUPAX DEL NORTE, NUEVA VIZCAYA
3. PINKIHAN, MARISSA Q.

BAMBANG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. METCHA, MANOLO A. PANIKI, BAGABAG, NUEVA VIZCAYA

1. PACIO, MORENCIO S. POBLACION, KASIBU, NUEVA VIZCAYA

2. PACIO, MORENCIO S. POBLACION, KASIBU, NUEVA VIZCAYA

S1. Details of Cooperative Branch/es

Name/Address of Branch Office Date of Issuance  Certificate of Authority No.

AGGUB, SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA

RIZAL, DIFFUN, QUIRINO

COOPERATIVE ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT
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S2. Details of Cooperative Satellite

N/A

T. Laboratory Cooperative

Student Non- Student Student Non- Student
N/A

T1. Activities of Laboratory Cooperative

N/A

T2. Information on Deposit Liabilities of Laboratory Cooperative

Savings deposits
Time deposits
Other types of deposits, please specify

T o t a l

U. Information on Number of Units Owned/Managed by Transport Cooperatives

Number of Units

Amount of Gross Sales/Receipts

W. Certificate of Compliance (COC)

2-2021-6188

X. Certificate of Tax Exemption/Ruling

Y. Information on Deposit Liabilities

No. of 
Members 

with deposit 
accounts

No. of Accounts Total Amount
No. of Members 

with deposit 
accounts

No. of 
Accounts Total Amount

Savings deposits (Regular) 675 663       30,849,361.00 1,907          1,922      94,663,496.14 
Time deposits 145 180     132,922,213.00 43 84   106,293,776.81 
ATM 95 95 868,680.43 
Basic Deposit Account -                             -   -   79 79            180,357.61 

T o t a l 820 843     163,771,574.00 2,124          2,180   202,006,310.99 

Expanded Withholding Taxes
VAT Payments / Percentage Taxes

Activities /Services

Name and Address of Laboratory 
Cooperative

No. of Members Recognitio
n No. Date IssuedMale Female

Name/Address of Satellite Office Date of Issuance Letter of Authority No. 

Type of Deposits No. of Members with deposit 
accounts No. of Accounts Total Amount

N/A

N/A
N/A

V. Information on Transactions to Members/Non-Members

Gross Sales / Receipts Members Non-Members Total

66,347,754.64 17,752,737.12 84,100,491.76 

Units/Vehicles Units Owned by the Transport 
Coop

Units Owned by Members and 
Managed by Cooperative Total

N/A

12/23/2020
Validity: 12/23/2025

TIN 001-751-225-000

COC No. Date of Issue Valid Until

06/29/2021 04/30/2022

CTE No. COOP-086-20-RR-03-RDO-014
Date Issued:

Taxes withheld and remitted for Honorarium 0

Income Taxes Paid 36,976
Final Taxes 381,934

Type of Deposits

Regular Members Associate Members

Z. Information of  Actual Taxes Withheld/Remitted to BIR (Total for the whole year) Total Amount
Taxes withheld and remitted for Employees Salary/Compensation 215,696

310,538
721,385

COOPERATIVE ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT
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AA.  Affiliations
Name of Federations/Unions

RURAL BANKERS ASSOCIATION OF THE PHIL.
COOPERATIVE BANK FEDERATION OF THE PHIL.
NV BANKERS ASSOCIATION SOLANO, NUEVA VIZCAYA
NORLUC-CEDEC BAGUIO CITY
CAGAYAN VALLEY DEV'T COOP REINA MERCEDES, ISABELA
CONFEDERATION OF CAGAYAN VALLEY RURAL BANKS

AA1.  Information on the Utilization of CETF - LOCAL
Name of Activity/ies

WEBINAR- BASIC CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1KIN WEBINAR
VARIOUS WEBINARS VARIOUS DATE SELECTED EMPLOYEES 25,350.00 

OFFICERS AND HEADS 72,641.50 
RBAP SYMPOSIUM & ANNUAL 
CONVENTION      

AA2.  Information on the Remittances of CETF to Federations/Unions 

NORLU-CEDEC

AA3.  Information on the Utilization of Community Development Fund
Name of Activity/ies

BP APPARATUS
THERMAL SCANNER
VITAMINS 6,825.00 
CASH DONATION & FOGGING MACHINE MHO SOLANO

AA4.  Information on the Utilization of Optional Fund

N/A

AB.  Risk Pooling Activities (activities that 
cover protection against death, injury and 
illness, loss of property, and other 
contingent events.

Name of Program No. of member-
beneficiary

N/A

Prepared By:

Accountant
Bookkeeper
Compliance Officer

(SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN
President

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL
  Chairman

Beneficiaries Date of Activity Amount Utilized

CBNV EMPLOYEES/CLIENTS 8/31/2021 11,400.00 

06-Oct-21 32,000.00 
CBNV EMPLOYEES 13-Sep-21

Position
(SGD) FELISA M. AMINO

6/22/2021

128,829.76 

Name of Project/Activity Date of Project/Activity Amount Utilized

Partner/Insurance Provider Amount

SAN MATEO, ISABELA

QUEZON CITY

Address

11/8/2021

CBNV EMPLOYEES 7/13/2021 18,250.00 

Certified True and Correct:

Date of Activity No. of Members Benefitted Amount Utilized
BOD AND OFFICERS 16,800.00 

8/17/2021 SELECTED EMPLOYEES 2,580.00 

11/18/2021 SELECTED EMPLOYEES 6,000.00 

Name of Federations/Union Amount Remitted

INTRAMUROS, MANILA

/
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PERIOD 
COVERED

NO. OF COMPLAINTS/ 
REQUESTS RECEIVED

GENERAL CATEGORY 
OF COMPLAINTS 

RECEIVED

APPROPRIATE 
STANDARD OF 

CONDUCT

STATUS OF 
THE 

COMPLAINT
Quarter 1 None
Quarter 2 None
Quarter 3 None
Quarter 4 None
Total 0

Outstanding 
Complaints

None

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

STATISTICS OF RECEIVED COMPLAINTS/REQUESTS FROM CLIENTS FOR YEAR 2021

Burgos St. Cor. Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya

FINANCIAL CONSUMER COMPLAINTS REPORT
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TYPE NATURE OF TRANSACTION RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES TRANSACTION DATE ORIGINAL BALANCE TERMS JUSTIFICATIONS

Juridical A Primary Cooperative availment of loan 5/3/2021 10,000,000.00                                           5 years CBNV granted the loan purposely for 
their re-lending

Juridical Rent of Training Hall 7/3/2021 5,000.00                                                     1 day Venue for the Bank's 42nd Annual 
General Assembly

Juridical Stall Rental (Bank Stall)
The CBNV Consumers is a thrust for 
employee benefits; and the Manager is an 
officer of the Bank 

1/8/2021 36,000.00                                                   1 year for the CCC to put up their store/office

Juridical A Primary Cooperative availment of loan The Bank's director is also the Chairman of 
the Primary Cooperative

9/29/2021 10,000,000.00                                           5 years CBNV granted the loan purposely for 
their re-lending

Individual Availment of Fringe Benefit Loan (FBL) Program Bank Chief Compliance Officer 12/22/2021 100,000.00                                                3 years
FBL is a benefit granted to all regular 
employees after complying all the 
requirements

The Bank's chairman is also the Chairman 
of the Primary Cooperative; also already 
owns at least 10% of the outstanding 
voting shares of the Bank at the time of 
the loan application.

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR 2021

REPORT ON MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
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Nueva Vizcaya Alay Kapwa Multi-Purpose Cooperative    10,000,000.00 003 January 23, 2021
Villaverde Development Cooperative 500,000.00 003 January 23, 2021
Conwap Valley Multi-Purpose Cooperative 1,300,000.00 149 May 22, 2021
Magapuy Farmers Multi-Purpose Cooperative 10,000,000.00 260-A September 19, 2021
Villaverde Development Cooperative 455,000.00 349 December 19, 2021
Giayan Multipurpose Cooperative 2,000,000.00 404 December 30, 2021

TOTAL AMOUNT GRANTED: 24,255,000.00

Prepared by:
 

(SGD) FELICIANO P. TIBURCIO 
Cooperative Secretary 

Noted:

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
Chairperson, Board of Directors

Name of Cooperative/Director Amount of Loan BOD Res. No. Approved

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
Gaddang Street Corner Burgos Street, Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 

DOSRI/Related Party Transaction Loans/Non-DOSRI/Non-RPT for confirmation by the General Assembly

REPORT ON APPROVED DOSRI LOANS
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NAME OF OFFICERS
POSITION / DESIGNATION 

IN THE COOPERATIVE
SEX    
M/F

TERM OF OFFICE 
(Inclusive Years)

MANDATORY TRAINING
DATE/SCHEDULE OF 

TRAINING
TRAINING PROVIDER

ACCREDITATION 
NUMBER

REMARKS

Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 29-30, 2021 RBAP

Accounting for Non-Accountants Nov. 9-10, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Liquidity Risk Management and Stress 
Testing Seminar

Aug. 3-4, 2018 RBAP

Values Formation Dec. 22, 2017 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Training on GAD Mainstreaming in Co-ops 
Using the Computerized GAD Assessment 
Tool

Nov. 27-28, 2019 GERC

Accounting for Non-Accountants Nov. 9-10, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Effective Writing Oct. 5-6, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Conflict Management Jul. 5-6, 2019 NORLU-CEDEC CTPRO 012
Policy Development Jun 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Gender and Law: Your Guide to Gender  
Based Policy Formulation Seminar

Aug. 30-31, 2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022

Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 15-16, 2018 RBAP

Parliamentary Procedures Dec. 13-14, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Policy Development Jul. 20-21, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Effective Writing (Plain English) Oct. 5-6, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Strategic Planning Jul.12-13, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 15-16, 2018 RBAP

Liquidity Risk Management and Stress 
Testing Seminar

Aug. 3-4, 2018 RBAP

Cooperative Management and Governance Nov. 9-10, 2017 NATCCO CTPRO 002

Credit Management Nov. 10, 2017 NATCCO CTPRO 002
Basic Policy Formulation Mar. 1-3, 2017
Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Basic Corporate Governance for Bank 
Directors

Apr. 4-5, 2019 RBAP

Credit Union CEO's Competency Course 
(CUCCC)

Nov. 8-10, 2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022

Credit and Risk Management Aug. 22, 2018 QFC CTPRO 047
Gender Sensitivity Training with Gender and 
Development Planning

Aug. 23-25, 2017 GERC

Policy Development Jul. 20-21, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022

REPORT ON THE LIST OF OFFICERS AND TRAININGS UNDERTAKEN/COMPLETED
As of December 31, 2021

NAME OF COOPERATIVE: COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
Address: Burgos St. corner Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya
Assets of the Cooperative: ₱784,747,058.00 

RICHARD P. CORDERO Director M 2021-2023

2021-2023FDirectorMARCIANA D. FORYASEN

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL Chairperson M 2020-2022

2020-2022MDirectorNOEL S. AMADOR

NIETO P. BACENA Vice Chairperson M 2020-2022

Page 1 of 3

REPORT ON THE LIST OF OFFICERS AND TRAININGS UNDERTAKEN/COMPLETED
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2021
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NAME OF OFFICERS
POSITION / DESIGNATION 

IN THE COOPERATIVE
SEX    
M/F

TERM OF OFFICE 
(Inclusive Years)

MANDATORY TRAINING
DATE/SCHEDULE OF 

TRAINING
TRAINING PROVIDER

ACCREDITATION 
NUMBER

REMARKS

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL Chairperson M 2020-2022

Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 29-30, 2021 RBAP

Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Strategic Planning Oct. 30-Nov.1, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Basic Corporate Governance for Bank 
Directors

Apr. 4-5, 2019 RBAP

Basic Acounting for Non-Accountants Mar. 14-15, 2019 CDA
Credit Management Deliquency Control and 
Collection

Jul. 16, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022

Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Credit and Risk Management Aug. 22, 2018 QFC CTPRO 047
Parliamentary Procedures Dec. 13-14, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Strategic Planning Dec. 4-5, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Policy Development Jul. 20-21, 2017 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Basic Acounting for Non-Accountants Mar. 14-15, 2019 CDA
Internal Control Sep. 26-27, 2018 NATCCO CTPRO 002
Credit and Risk Management Aug. 22, 2018 QFC CTPRO 047
Gender Sensitivity Training with Gender and 
Development Planning

Aug. 23-25, 2017 GERC

KAREN GAY U. DEL ROSARIO
Audit Committee,                  
Vice Chairperson

F 2021-2022
Cooperative Governance and Policy 
Development

Jan. 22-23, 2021 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016

Succession Planning Nov.     2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Leadership and Govenance Mar. 24, 2018 NATCCO CTPRO 002
Governance and Management of 
Cooperative

Mar. 27, 2017 CDA, IPDC

Fundamentals of Cooperatives May 24, 2016 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016

JULIET P. LOZANO
Ethics Committee,             Vice 
Chairperson

F 2021-2022
Fundamentals of Cooperatives, Governance 
and Management of Cooperative

Aug. 26-28, 2016 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016

Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Liquidity Risk Management and Stress 
Testing Seminar

Aug. 3-4, 2018 RBAP

Legal Aspects on Loan Collection and Credit 
Management

Oct. 13-14, 2017 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016

Corporate Governance and Risk 
Management Seminar

Apr. 28-29, 2017 BANGKOOP

Conflict Management Aug. 30-31, 2019
Basic Acounting for Non-Accountants Mar. 14-15, 2019 CDA
Internal Control Sep. 26-27, 2018 NATCCO CTPRO 002

2021-2023MDirectorMANOLO A. METCHA

MORENCIO S. PACIO Director M 2021-2023

CRISTINO A. MANAS
Mediation/Conciliation, 
Chairperson

M 2020-2021

2021-2023FELECOM, ChairpersonCATHERINE P. BULLONG

ARNULFO M. ANDAYA ELECOM, Vice Chairperson M 2021-2023

MERLY S. PESCASIO Audit Committee, Chairperson F 2021-2022

2021-2022FEthics Committee, ChairpersonBETTY N. RAMOS

FELICIANO P. TIBURCIO Cooperative Secretary M 2011-Present
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NAME OF OFFICERS
POSITION / DESIGNATION 

IN THE COOPERATIVE
SEX    
M/F

TERM OF OFFICE 
(Inclusive Years)

MANDATORY TRAINING
DATE/SCHEDULE OF 

TRAINING
TRAINING PROVIDER

ACCREDITATION 
NUMBER

REMARKS

ARNEL G. DOMINCEL Chairperson M 2020-2022

Policy Development Jun. 7-8, 2019 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016
Basic Acounting for Non-Accountants Mar. 14-15, 2019 CDA
Advance Corporate Governance Course for 
Bank Directors

Aug. 16-18, 2017 RBAP

Seminar on BSP Circular # 941 Jul. 28-29, 2017 RBAP
Gender Sensitivity Training with Gender and 
Development Planning

Aug. 23-25, 2017 GERC

Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 29-30, 2021 RBAP

Customer Care and Personality Development Sep. 29, 2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022

Fundamentals of Cooperatives, Governance 
and Management of Cooperative

Aug. 26-28, 2016 AGRIZKAYA CTPRO 016

Fundamentals of Cooperatives Jul. 30-31, 2016 NELCCO CTPRO 022
Corporate Governance Course for Rural 
Bank Directors and Officers

Jun. 29-30, 2021 RBAP

Customer Care and Personality Development Sep. 29, 2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022

ARLETTE MAE C. ACERET Internal Auditor F 2016 - Present Customer Care and Personality Development Sep. 29, 2018 NELCCO CTPRO 022

(SGD) NIETO P. BACENA
    Chairperson, EDTRACOM   Chairperson, Board of Directors

(SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL(SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN

Prepared by Education and Training Committee:

Note: All Board of Directors have attended the training on Cooperative Management and Governance required by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP).

Certified True and Correct:

President, Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya
(SGD) NOEL S. AMADOR
      Secretary, EDTRACOM

(SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN

MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN President F 2021 - Present

NIDA T. GUZMAN Chief Compliance Officer F 2014 - Present

       Vice-Chairperson, EDTRACOM

ROLY D. VALDEZ Treasurer M 2019 - Present
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

ETHICS COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR 2021 

 
 The Committee conducted one meeting for the calendar year 2021 dated December 2, 
2020, due to IATF restrictions brought about by COVID 19 pandemic. 
 

It was agreed unanimously by the Committee that the Chairperson is Ms. Betty N. Ramos, 
Manager of Nueva Vizcaya Multipurpose Medical Cooperative and Ms. Juliet P. Lozano, Director 
of CBNV Consumers Cooperative will be the Vice-Chairperson/Secretary. 
 

The Committee thoroughly reviewed the Ethics Charter and found that some items contained 
need detailing to be presented to the Board of Directors for comments. 
 

The Committee also reviewed the Code of Governance and Ethical Standards. Upon 
reviewing the code, the Ethics Committee found no concerns that require attention except for the 
amendments of changing terminologies as follows: 

- from stocks to Share;  
- from stockholder to shareholders 
- from corporate to cooperative; except the corporate governance mandatory seminar 

required by BSP. 
And reminded the Secretary to affect the same. 
 

The Committee formulated the Action Plan and Budget for CY 2022. No action plan for 
2021 was carried out because of the pandemic and lockdown. The review of the committee action 
plan as reviewed requires the following revisions: 
 
a. For KRA strengthening the organization:  create instrument - to create assessment tool 

Decision: to add/ insert the schedule of special meeting to finish/update the proposed 
“assessment tool”; from one (1) meeting for the first quarter to two (2) meetings: one (1) regular 
meeting and one (1) special meeting. 
 

b. For KRA : Manifest involvement in Coop affairs 
Decision: to propose for an increase in budget of ₱500.00 per member to ₱1,000.00 per 
member: 

 
Summary prior budget of ₱1,500.00 to 3,000.00 
 
 The Committee attended the meeting on January 26, 2022 (via zoom) with the Governance 
Committee and the Election Committee to deliberate about consolidation of the Code of 
Governance and Code of Ethics and make parallel with the BSP directives. It was resolved that 
the committee will have its own Code but has to be in consonance with the Code of Governance 
and Ethical Standards. 

 
The committee agreed to start the drafting of the proposed assessment tool and revised 

Code of Ethics and present the first draft for finalization during the next ethics committee 
meeting for the year 2022. 

  
Prepared and Submitted by: 

 
 

    
(SGD) BETTY N. RAMOS                             (SGD) JULIET P. LOZANO           
Chairperson, Ethics Committee           Vice-Chairperson/Secretary, Ethics Committee 

 

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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Name of Cooperative: COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
Address: Burgos St. corner Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya
Registration No: 9520-02001528

NAME OF  
COMPLAINANT/s 
or REQUESTING 

PARTY

NAME OF RESPONDENT/s 
or RESPONDING PARTY

Prepared & Submitted by: Noted by:

   (SGD) BENEDICTA D. DELA PEÑA          (SGD) CRISTINO A. MANAS
Member, Mediation & Conciliation Committee Chairperson, Mediation & Conciliation Committee

NONE TO REPORT

REPORTS ON  MEDIATION/CONCILIATION CONDUCTED
For the Semestral ending, June 30, 2021

Ref./s 
No.

NATURE OF CONTROVERSIES/ ISSUES 
MEDIATED/CONCILIATED

NAME OF 
MEDIATOR/CONCILIATOR

RESULTS/AGREEMENT REMARKS

PARTIES INVOLVED

CDA-ReD-FR-009
Revision No. 3
October 1, 2019Office of the President

COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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Name of Cooperative: COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA
Address: Burgos St. corner Gaddang St., Quirino, Solano, Nueva Vizcaya
Registration No: 9520-02001528

NAME OF  
COMPLAINANT/s 
or REQUESTING 

PARTY

NAME OF RESPONDENT/s 
or RESPONDING PARTY

Prepared & Submitted by: Noted by:

   (SGD) BENEDICTA D. DELA PEÑA          (SGD) CRISTINO A. MANAS
Member, Mediation & Conciliation Committee Chairperson, Mediation & Conciliation Committee

NONE TO REPORT

REPORTS ON  MEDIATION/CONCILIATION CONDUCTED
For the Semestral ending, December 31, 2021

Ref./s 
No.

NATURE OF CONTROVERSIES/ ISSUES 
MEDIATED/CONCILIATED

NAME OF 
MEDIATOR/CONCILIATOR

RESULTS/AGREEMENT REMARKS

PARTIES INVOLVED

CDA-ReD-FR-009
Revision No. 3
October 1, 2019Office of the President

COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

   
EDUCATION AND TRAINING COMMITTEE 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR 2021 

 
➢ On membership expansion, there is only one primary cooperative recruited this year, the 

Maddela Auto Savings Multi-Purpose Cooperative. 
➢ Reviewed and amended the EDTRACOM charter and submitted the amended charter to the 

Board of Directors for approval. 
➢ Reviewed the Internal Control Policy. 
➢ Reviewed the proposed amendments of the Articles of Cooperation and By-laws to be 

submitted to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and Cooperative Development Authority 
(CDA). 

➢ Reviewed the compliances of the non-compliant cooperatives and samahang nayons. 
➢ Prepared the Training Plan and Budget for the year 2022. 
➢ Board of Directors and Officers active participation on different trainings, summits, forums, 

cooperative month activities and general assembly meetings. 
➢ Sent management staff to trainings/seminars to enhance their competencies in banking 

through webinars.  
➢ Initiated the mental health and wellness for officers and employees. 
➢ Information dissemination of the memorandum circulars from Cooperative Development 

Authority (CDA) to our primaries. 
➢ Coaching and mentoring on the preparation of the Performance Audit Report – Governance 

and Management Report new template attended by micro and medium affiliates which was 
conducted by the CDA. 

➢ Assisted the Timpuyog Iti Babalasang Idi Kalman at Ambaguio to register for a full-fledged 
cooperative and requested a Pre-Registration Seminar (PRS) conducted by the CDA. 

➢ Attended the 2-day Strategic Planning assessment of the bank to come up for the 5-year 
Development Plan. 

➢ Our Corporate Social Responsibility complied with the provision on the COVID 19 contingency 
plan by:  

1. Providing vitamin c, face mask, and alcohol to every employee and guard.  
2. Funded the thermal scanner for the Bambang, Maddela and Solano branches.  
3. Funded the rapid test of all the employees and guards.  
4. Funded the BP apparatus and fogging machine 
5. Provided P500.00 medical allowance every month for the year 2021 to sustain 

COVID exposure to officers and employees. 
6. Provided calamity relief to the victims of Typhoon Odette. 
7. Conducted gift giving to the 477 Person Deprived of Liberty (PDL) at BJMP 

Solano which was fully documented. 
 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: 
 
 
 

(SGD) NIETO P. BACENA  (SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN     (SGD) NOEL S. AMADOR 
        Chairperson, EDTRACOM          Vice Chairperson, EDTRACOM            Secretary, EDTRACOM 

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMNT REPORT
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COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

GENDER AND DEVELOPMENT (GAD) COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORTS 
 FOR THE YEAR 2021 

 
1. The Committee was organized with the following officers: 

Chairperson  - Nieto P. Bacena 
Member  - Marissa Q. Pinkihan 
Secretary  - Mengeline M. Valdez 
Focal Person  - Mary Jane F. Arizala 

 
2. The Committee drafted its GAD Annual Action Plan and Budget. 

 
3. The Committee reviewed and amended the existing Charter reformatting of the introduction 

including the legal bases and the monitoring was enhanced. 
 

4. Submitted the amended GAD Charter to the Board of Directors for approval. 
 

5. Reviewed the GAD Plan and Integrated the activities taken within the year 
 

 People 
➢ The gender deepening awareness training for officers, staff and members was deferred 

due to COVID19 Pandemic. 
 

 Policy 
➢ On monitoring compliance of the member cooperatives, the Committee will require 

submission of GAD Tool. 
➢ Qualification of applicants: gender and age were omitted.  
➢ Sex-disaggregated data where established/documented to monitor the equal 

distribution of women and men participation in all the activities of Coop Bank and its 
loans and savings programs. 

 GE Program 
➢ Under climate/environment change awareness, symposium of climate change for our 

employees and officers was programmed but not implemented due to health protocols.  
➢ To established 3 trash bins per department/section for easy monitoring in the compliance 

of solid waste management. 
➢ Every officer and employee will be given a seed to plant to their respective area. 
➢ Lactating area was already established to promote health consciousness for maternal 

and childcare. 
➢ Provision of PPEs to the different municipality where branches of Coop Bank located 
➢ Provision of Vitamin C to officers and employees 
➢ P500.00 medical allowance every month for the year 2021 to sustain COVID exposure. 
➢ Purchased of 1 unit BP apparatus and fogging machine 
➢ Thermal scanner of Bambang branch, Maddela branch and Head office 
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Enabling Mechanism 
➢ The current managerial and supervisory qualifications have already been made generic 

in nature. 
➢ Gift giving to the 477 Person Deprived of Liberty (PDL) at the BJMP Solano on December 

20, 2021 which was fully documented.  
 

Prepared and Submitted by: 
 
 
 

(SGD) NIETO P. BACENA    (SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN  
   Chairperson, GAD Committee              Member, GAD Committee   
 
 
 

(SGD) MARY JANE F. ARIZALA   (SGD) MENGELINE M. VALDEZ 
             Focal Person, GAD Committee            Secretary, GAD Committee 

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

ELECTION COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR 2021 

 
The Election Committee member would like to inform the assembly that 2021 is another successful year. 
We performed our duties and responsibilities as stipulated in the Election Committee Charter and 
adhere to the approved Coop bank election Rules and Guidelines. The activities and accomplishment 
are as follows: 

 
1. Set dates for the conduct of various election activities in the Cooperative to be included in the 

notice of AGA. 
 

2. Determined vacant position to be filled up for the 42nd Annual General Assembly which are 
two (2) vacant positions for Regular Director, Two (2) vacant position for the Independent 
Director, three (3) vacant position for the Election Committee  and three (3) vacant position for 
Audit  Committee (GA). 

 
3. Screened jointly with the Corporate Governance Committee through face to face and virtual 

meeting validated the Certificate of Candidacy (COC) based on Article II of CBNV Election 
Rules and Guidelines and MORB Nos. 1 and 2. The result are as follows: 

    
Regular  Directors: 

NAME COOPERATIVE  REPRESENTED 
MARCIANA D. FORYASEN Diffun Saranay Development Cooperative 

MANOLO A. METCHA Nangalisan Multi-Purpose Cooperative 
 

        Independent Director: 
NAME COOPERATIVE  REPRESENTED 

MORENCIO PACIO Kasibu Farmers Development Cooperative 
RICHARD P. CORDERO Magapuy Farmers Multipurpose Cooperative 

 
        Election Committee: 

NAME COOPERATIVE REPRESENTED 
ARNULFO M. ANDAYA Aggub Credit Cooperative 

CATHERINE P. BULLONG St. Patrick Parish Multi-Purpose Cooperative 
 
        Audit Committee (GA): 

NAME COOPERATIVE REPRESENTED 
BENEDICTA DELA PEÑA St. Jerome’s Parish Multipurpose Cooperative 

 
Of the two (2) candidates for Regular Directors and two (2) candidates for Independent 

Director were qualified, and for the two (2) candidates for Election Committee and one (1) candidate 
for audit Committee (GA) were also qualified. 

 
Prepared and Submitted by: 
 
        
                 

(SGD) CATHERINE P. BULLONG   (SGD) ARNULFO M. ANDAYA 
                      Chairperson, ELECOM               Vice-Chairperson/Secretary, ELECOM 
 
 

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
AUDIT COMMITTEE (GA ELECTED) ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR 2021 
 
The Audit Committee of our very own Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya gladly informed the 
officers, members and depositors that it had successfully accomplished the following duties and 
responsibilities: 

PARTICULARS PLACE 

 
➢ Cash Count on Petty Cash Fund and 

General Fund 
 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

 
➢ Inventory of Bank Premises 

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

 
➢ Sampling Inventory of all kinds of 

loan window 
 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

 
➢ Personnel Audit including on leave 

credits subsidiary ledger 
 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

➢ Oversee the financial reporting 
framework of the bank 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

➢ Submitted report on the result of 
our audit to the Board of Directors 

Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
Ramon, Isabela 
Madella, Quirino 

 
The task seemed overwhelming as there were several factors and obstacles along the way specially 
this time of pandemic, nevertheless, the task which seemed insurmountable was conquered with a 
soaring and roaring pride. It is with great hope and joy that this work be done accordingly. 
 
Prepared and Submitted by: 
 
 
 
 (SGD) MERLY S. PESCASIO   (SGD) KAREN GAY U. DEL ROSARIO  
         Chairperson, Audit Committee            Member, Audit Committee 
 

COMMITTEE ACCOMPLISHMENT REPORT
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KEY RESULT 
AREAS AREAS

STRATEGIES ACTIVITIES TIME FRAME PERSON/S RESPONSIBLE
COST / 
INPUTS

MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION

Prepare, draft of assessment tool    9,000.00 
Presence of assessment 
tool

Review of the proposed tool    3,000.00 
Attend/present at the BOD meeting first 
quarter for approval

Committee, Chairperson BOD Resolution

Accomplished summarized Coop Policies Committee Members    9,000.00 
Compare with notable Accomplishment Committee, Chairperson

Present updates and findings on 
various ethics and governance 
concerns

Preparation of updates and clear reports 
regarding Committee accomplishments

2nd Quarter Committee Members    9,000.00 
Committee quarterly 
reports

To Enhance Capabilities

Attend seminars related to Ethical 
Standards and Governance and other 
trainings to enhance capabilities of 
Committee Members

As management will Schedule Committee Members CETF local
Schedule of training / 
Seminar to be attended                           
Training Certificates

Manifest involvement in Coop Affairs
Attendance to to all prescribed  CBNV 
Activities

As management will Schedule Committee Members    3,000.00 
Listing of Coop 
Activities

Prepared and Submitted by:

              (SGD) BETTY N. RAMOS (SGD) JULIET P. LOZANO
               Chairperson, Ethics Committee Vice Chairperson, Ethics Committee

Strengthening the 
Organization

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

ETHICS COMMITTEE PLAN ANG BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR 2022

1st Quarter
Design/create instrument to improve 
committee performance

Determine compliance with Coop 
approved Policies

March
Repoprts 2020 vs 2021 
Performance

Committee Members

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

 
MEDIATION AND CONCILIATION COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET 

FOR THE YEAR 2022 

ACTIVITIES TIME FRAME PERSON/S 
RESPONSIBLE COST / INPUTS MEANS OF 

VERIFICATION 
1. Submit CDA Report for 2nd semester 
2021 1st Quarter 

(January) 
Committee 
Members 

₱ 9,000.00 
(₱3,000.00/member 
per quarter) 

Minute Book/Minutes of 
meeting/report to CDA 

2. Prepare/submit  CDA Report for  1st  
Semester 2022 3rd Quarter Committee 

Members 

₱ 9,000.00 
(₱3,000.00/member 
per quarter) 

Minutes of Meeting/ 
Minute Book/ Attendance 

logbook 
3. Review of Mediation and Conciliation 
Committee Charter and formulation of 
Policies 

1st  to 4th 
Quarter 

Committee 
Members 

₱ 9,000.00 
(₱3,000.00/member 
per quarter) 

Minutes of Meeting/ 
Minute Book/Attendance 

logbook 
4. Prepare Mediation and Conciliation 
Committee Plan and budget, and  MEDCON 
Annual Report to the General Assembly. 

4th quarter Committee 
Members 

₱ 9,000.00 
(₱3,000.00/member 
per quarter) 

Minutes of meeting and 
Attendance Logbook. 

5. Attend BOD meeting when its presence is 
required  As directed Chairman ₱4,000.00 

(₱1,000.00/quarter) 
BOD memo/ Board 

resolution 
6. Attend Seminar/trainings related to 
Mediation and Conciliation and others 
required by the bank and CDA 

As scheduled Committee 
Members 

Travel allowance as 
per approved policy 
on budget 

Certificate of attendance 

7. Accept and Conduct Mediation and 
Conciliation proceedings and issues brought 
to the committee 

As issues 
submitted to the 
committee for 

necessary action 

Committee 
Members 

Special meeting 
₱1,000.00/member 
(every first month of 
semester) 

Minutes of meeting and 
Decision/ Attendance 

Logbook 

                             TOTAL: ₱46,000.00 
Prepared and Submitted by: 

 

 
(SGD) CRISTINO A. MANAS  (SGD) BENEDICTA D. DELA PEÑA 

                   Chairperson, CONMED     Vice Chairperson/Secretary, CONMED   

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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Begin by Complete by
Prepare required trainings for the 
officers of the Coops
Draft / Prepare letter
Identify Coops
Mail / Send or Deliver letters

Business Continuity Plan               
Target Participants (60)                
1. Board Directors                              
2. Manager

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents
GAD Mainstreaming in Coops 
using the computerized GAD 
Assessment Tool                                                    
Target Participants (60)                                         
1. GAD Committee                                                  
2. Focal Person

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

Financial Management     Target 
Participants (60)                                                     
1. Board of Directors                                                               
2. Treasurer

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents
Risk Management and Internal 
Control System                               
Target Participants (60)               
1. Board of Directors                       
2. Manager

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents
Effective Writing of Coop 
Documents (Resolution, Minutes, 
Policies & Guidelines and 
Demand Letters)                             
Target Participants (60)                          
1. Board of Directors                            
2. Manager                                      
3. Secretary

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

EDUCATION AND TRAINING COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET

ACTIVITIESKEY RESULT AREAS COST / INPUTS
TIME FRAME PERSON/S 

RESPONSIBLE
Communication Letters, 

Attendance Sheets, 
Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

July 2022

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

FOR THE YEAR 2022
MEANS OF 

VERIFICATION
STRATEGIES

Continuous  
Education of 

Affiliates

Strengthening the 
Organization

August 2022

June 2022

May 2022

March 2022

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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Begin by Complete by

Strengthening the 
Organization

Continuous  
Education of 

Affiliates

Loans Security Appraisal                              
Target Participants (60)                        
1. Board of Directors                        
2. Manager                                   
3. Loans Officer                                 
4. Loans Appraiser                                 
5. Loans Collector

CDS / 
EDTRACOM

 60,000.00 
Charge to CETF 

due to APEX 

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

Roles & Responsibilities of
Committee on Investigation
& Discipline (CID) (WEBINAR)
all members of CID
Officers, BMs & DHs
2 staff per branch
Roles & Responsibilities of
Grievance Machinery Comm.
(WEBINAR)
all members of the GM
Officers, BMs & DHs
2 staff per branch
Virtual seminar on how to
conduct Mgt. Trainee Program
intended for qualified 
successors.

3 staff per branches

& 2 staff per dept.

Noted by: 

(SGD) NIETO P. BACENA
    Chairperson, EDTRACOM

(SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN (SGD) NOEL S. AMADOR(SGD) MENGELINE M. VALDEZ

September 2022

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION

STRATEGIES ACTIVITIES
TIME FRAME PERSON/S 

RESPONSIBLE
COST / INPUTSKEY RESULT AREAS

      Cooperative Dev't Specialist

Occupational Safety & Health 
Seminar (WEBINAR)

Human Resource 

To develop 
training 

program for 
employees

3rd Quarter

Prepared and Submitted by:

      Secretary, EDTRACOM       Vice Chairperson, EDTRACOM

3rd Quarter

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

Communication Letters, 
Attendance Sheets, 

Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents
Communication Letters, 

Attendance Sheets, 
Training Certificates, 
Pictures and Other 

Documents

Administrative 
Manager

4th Quarter

4th Quarter

Administrative 
Manager

Administrative 
Manager

Administrative 
Manager

15,000.00 

15,000.00 

17,250.00        

15,000.00        

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

GENDER AND DEVELOPMENT (GAD) COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET 
FOR THE YEAR 2022 

GAD ISSUES / 
CONCERN OBJECTIVES ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
TIME 

FRAME BUDGET 

1. PEOPLE Gender Deepening 
awareness for officers, 
staff & members 

GAD Mainstreaming in Coops using the 
computerized GAD Assessment Tool  
 

GAD Committee 
EDTRACOM 

May 2022 70,000.00 

2. POLICY To mainstream GAD 
equality in the CBNV 
personnel policy & 
cooperative members  

1. Monitoring compliance of member cooperatives 
(Committee will require submission of GAD Tool) 
 
2. Integration of GAD to bank policies. Submission 
of resolutions that is reflective of the equal gender 
opportunities in the board, officers & personnel. 
 
3. Sex-disaggregated data to monitor equal 
distribution of women and men participation in all 
the activities of Coop Bank and on the loans and 
savings system 

GAD Comm. 
Secretary - for 
coop members 
 
 
 
 
GAD committee 
 
 
 

Continuing 
activity 

 
 
 

10,000.00 

3. GE 
Program 

Employee 
Empowerment 
 
Climate/Environment 
Change Awareness 
(symposium of climate 
change for our 
employees and 
officers should be 
conducted) 
 
Promote health 
consciousness for 
maternal & childcare 

Retooling of personnel to be included in the staff 
development  
 
Solid waste management 
(To established 3 trash bins per 
department/section for easy monitoring in the 
compliance of solid waste management) 
 
Conduct Tree planting  
(All officers and employees will be given a seed to 
plant their own tree in their respective area) 
 
Improve the nursing room observing its compliant to 
DOH/DOLE standards 
 

GAD Committee  
Admin Manager 
 
GAD Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GAD Committee 

 20,000.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
20,000.00 
 
 
 
 
10,000.00 
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GAD ISSUES / 
CONCERN OBJECTIVES ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
TIME 

FRAME BUDGET 

4. Enabling 
Mechanism 

Public-Private 
Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 
Appoint women and 
men who are given 
equal qualification to 
managerial executive 
positions. 

MOA Tie-up with DepED (Nueva Vizcaya/Isabela 
and Quirino)  
1. Brigada Eskwela 
2. Gift giving  
a. Pupils 
b. Indigent Family/Calamity victims 
 
- Inclusion in the qualifications of managerial & 
executive positions in the policy.  

GAD Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GAD Committee 
 
 

1st sched - 
Last week 
of May, 
2021 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
40,000.00 
50,000.00 
 
 
 

 
 
     Prepared and submitted by: 
 
 
 

(SGD) MENGELINE M. VALDEZ  (SGD) MARY JANE F. ARIZALA   
               Secretary, GAD Committee          Focal Person, GAD Committee  

 
 
  

(SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN  (SGD) NIETO P. BACENA 
                  Member, GAD Committee                       Chairperson, GAD Committee 
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KEY RESULT 
AREAS

OBJECTIVE ACTIVITIES TIME FRAME
PERSON/S 

RESPONSIBLE
COST / 
INPUTS

MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION

Determined calendar year days/period and 
vacant positions for dissemination

January 13
Committee 
Member

    9,000.00 Election Calendar

Screen candidates of various elected positions February 18
Committee 
Members

    9,000.00 Minutes of meeting

Send notice to qualified and disqualified 
candidates

February 21
Committee 
Members

Receiving copy of 
Notice

Resolve appeal of disqualified  Candidate/s February 23
Committee 
Members

    9,000.00 
Copy of appeal, 

minutes of the 
proceedings

Orient and screened qualified candidates March 3
Committee 
members

    9,000.00 
Minutes of meeting 

Election 
paraphernalia

Conduct election and proclaim winning 
candidates

March 6
Committee 

Chairperson
    9,000.00 

Copy of tally votes 
Pictures 

Hold special/regular meetings to address 
concern relative to the Election Rules and 
Guidelines

March 9
Committee 
Members

    9,000.00 Minutes of meeting

Attend required training/seminar being 
scheduled and conducted by the CBNV

January to 
December

Committee 
Members

    1,500.00 Training certificate

Attend affair of CBNV December
Committee 
Members

    1,500.00 Attendance sheet

                        Chairperson, ELECOM
ARNULFO M. ANDAYA

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

ELECTION COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR 2022

                  Vice Chairperson/Secretary, ELECOM

To Maintain safe 
and sound election

Strengthening the 
Organization

Enhance 
Capabilities

Prepared and Submitted by:

                  CATHERINE P. BULLONG 

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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KEY RESULT AREAS / TARGET ACTIVITIES
PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE
TIME 

FRAME
MEANS OF 

VERIFICATION
BUDGET

1. Monitor  and evaluate the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the cooperative's 
management and control system.

a. The Committee will conduct review of implementation of internal 
control policies and activities.                                                                                                               
b. Ensure periodic assessment of the internal control system to 
identify weaknesses and evaluate Bank's profile and strategic 
reaction.

Audit 
Committee 
Members

Monthly
Result of the 

Review/ Minutes of 
Meeting

36,000.00 per diem of the 
Committee for the year during 
its regular meeting every 
quarter                                                        
3000.00 each of the member                                   
3000.00 x 4 quarter

2. Audit the performance of the 
Cooperative and its various responsibility 
centers.

a. Perform Inventory of Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment of all 
branches.                                                     b. Other Audit 
procedures will be determined by the Committee in the conduct of 
audit.

Audit 
Committee 
Members

Quarterly
Minutes of Meeting 

/ Report of the 
Committee

3. Submit reports on the result of the internal 
audit and recommend necessary changes on 
policies and other related matters on 
operation to the Board of Directors and 
General Assemby.

a. Attend BOD meeting to present the reports on the result of the 
audit or to the general assembly during the scheduled meeting or 
General Assembly.

Audit 
Committee 
Members

Quarterly 
or Annually

Audit Result/Minutes 
of General 
Assembly

4. Oversee the financial reporting 
framework, external audit function, 
implementation of corrective actions.

a. Review on financial reporting process, practices and controls.                     
b. Ensure reporting framework which provide accurate information 
and reports.                                                      c. Review on 
external audit functionn concerning appointment, fees,       
engagement contract that ensure the scope of audit and areas 
prescribed by the BSP and other regulators.                                                                                       
d. Ensure that corrective actions is timely address as identified by 
auditors and regulators.

Audit 
Committee 
Members

Quarterly 
or Annually

Audit Result/Minutes 
of General 
Assembly

5. Investigate significant issues / concerns 
raised with the  ambit of Audit Committee.

a. Authority to investigate matters within its term of reference.
Audit 

Committee 
Members

Quarterly 
or Annually

Audit Result/Minutes 
of General 
Assembly

Prepared and Submitted by:

           (SGD) MERLY S. PESCASIO            (SGD) KAREN GAY U. DEL ROSARIO
             Chairperson, Audit Committee                        Member, Audit Committee

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA

AUDIT COMMITTEE (GA ELECTED) PLAN AND BUDGET
FOR THE YEAR 2022

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN AND BUDGET 
FOR THE YEAR 2022 

KEY RESULT 
AREAS/TARGET ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
TIME 

FRAME 
MEANS OF 

VERIFICATION BUDGET 

1. To conduct regular meeting to oversee the following: 
The financial reporting 
framework.   
 

a. The committee shall oversee the financial reporting 
process, practices, and controls. 

b. It shall ensure that the reporting framework enables the 
generation and preparation of accurate and 
comprehensive information and reports.   
 Audit 

Committee 
Members 

Monthly 

Minutes of 
Meeting 

P36,000.00 
(AC Members) 

12,000.00 
(Res. Persons) 

Monitor and evaluate 
the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
internal control system. 

a. The committee shall oversee the implementation of 
internal control policies and activities.   

b. It shall also ensure that periodic assessment of the 
internal control system is conducted to identify the 
weaknesses and evaluate its robustness considering the 
Bank’s risk profile and strategic direction.   
 

Monthly 

The internal audit 
functions.   
 

a. The committee shall be responsible for the 
appointment/selection, remuneration, and dismissal of 
internal auditor.   

b. It shall review and approve the audit plan, audit scope, 
frequency and budget. 

 The committee shall ensure that the scope covers the 
review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal 
controls, including financial, operational and compliance 
controls, and risk management system. 

c. Ensuring that the internal audit function maintains an 
open communication with senior management, the audit 
committee, external auditors, and the supervisory 
authority; 
 

 Monthly   
 

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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KEY RESULT 
AREAS/TARGET ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
TIME 

FRAME 
MEANS OF 

VERIFICATION BUDGET 

 d. Reviewing the internal audit reports and the 
corresponding recommendations to address the 
weaknesses noted, discussing the same with the head of 
the internal audit function and reporting significant 
matters to the board of directors; 

    

The external audit 
functions.   
 

a. The committee shall be responsible for the appointment, 
fees, and replacement of external auditor.   

b. It shall review and approve the engagement contract 
and ensure that the scope of audit likewise cover areas 
specifically prescribed by the BSP and other regulators. 

 

Annually 

  

Implementation of 
corrective actions.   
 

a. The committee shall receive key audit reports, and 
ensure that senior management is taking necessary 
corrective actions in a timely manner to address the 
weaknesses, non-compliance with policies, laws, and 
regulations and other issues identified by auditors and 
other control functions. 
 

Monthly 

Investigate significant 
issues/concerns raised. 
 

a. The committee shall have explicit authority to investigate 
any matter within its terms of reference, have full access 
to and cooperation by management, and have full 
discretion to invite any director or executive officer to 
attend its meetings 
 

As the 
need 
arises 

2. To attend BOD meeting monthly to report result of Committee meeting and to attend meeting as the need arises - 
 P 48,000.00 
 
Prepared and submitted by: 
 
             (SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO                         (SGD) MARCIANA D. FORYASEN                     (SGD) RICHARD P. CORDERO 
                           AC Chairperson      AC Vice Chairperson                                                          AC –Member                   

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET
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COOPERATIVE BANK NUEVA VIZCAYA 

CREDIT COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET 
FOR THE YEAR 2022 

KEY RESULT 
AREAS/TARGET ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE TIME FRAME MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION BUDGET 

1. To conduct regular meeting to oversee the following: 
Review of the Credit 
Committee Charter 
 

a. Review of existing Committee Charter 
and related CDA and BSP 
regulations, issuances or circulars to 
align the same, if any. 

b. Recommend to the Board any 
amendments, if applicable. 

c. Seek approval for the review or 
amendments, if any. 

Credit  
Committee 
Members 
Loans Manager 

January to June 
2022 

Minutes of 
Meeting 

Board 
committee per 
diems as per 
budget  
 
 
 
 
 
Supplies 
(incorporated 
in the budget 
of the whole 
Board) 

Review of policies and 
guidelines related to 
lending and ROPA 
management  

a. Review of the policy on lending, 
existing guidelines  and BSP issuances 
or other regulatory issuances to align 
the same, if applicable; 

b. Recommend to the Board for 
appropriate action any amendments, 
if applicable; 

Credit  
Committee 
Members 
Loans Manager  

Twice a month 
based on 
schedule  
(January to 
December 
2022) 

Minutes of 
meeting and 
amended 
policies and 
guidelines. 

Act on loan application 
or recommendations  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

a. Review loan application or 
recommendations from the office of 
the Loans Manager based on existing 
credit risk management and policy on 
lending; 

b. Approve loans within the authorized 
limit of approval; or 

c. Recommend the same to the Board of 
Directors for proper action loans 
beyond the limit of the Committee; 

c. Recommend for proper action, which 
the committee deems appropriate to 
be acted upon by the Board. 

Credit  
Committee 
Members 
Loans Manager 

Twice a month 
based on 
schedule 
(January to 
December 
2022) 

Loan releases, 
committee 
resolutions and 
minutes of the 
meeting 
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KEY RESULT 
AREAS/TARGET ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE TIME FRAME MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION BUDGET 

Review, assess and 
evaluate individual 
accounts of borrowers 
recommended for write-
off and submit reports to 
the BOD for their 
appropriate action. 
 

a. Review recommended accounts for 
writing-off based on existing policies; 

b. Recommend the loan accounts for 
writing-off; 

c. Report to the Board for appropriate 
action the total loan accounts for 
writing-off. 

 
 

Credit  
Committee 
Members 
Loans Manager  

At least every 
quarter or as 
per 
recommendation 
from 
management 

  

Review and evaluate 
recommended remedial 
measures to reduce past 
due and delinquent 
accounts.  

a. Review and discuss remedial 
measures to reduce past due loans 
and improve quality portfolio of the 
Bank. 

b. Recommend incentive-based 
guidelines for bank collectors to 
reduce past due accounts and 
increase income of the bank; 

c. Recommend for appropriate action 
to the Board of the crafted 
guidelines. 

d. Impact assessment of the incentive-
based collection strategy 

 

Credit  
Committee 
Members 
Loans Manager 

January 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 2022 and 
December 
2022 

Minutes of the 
meeting, 
Guidelines for 
the incentive-
based 
collection 
strategy. 

 

2. To attend BOD meeting monthly to report result of Committee meetings and to attend meeting as the need arises 
 
     Prepared and Submitted by: 
 
 
          (SGD) MANOLO A. METCHA        (SGD) NOEL S. AMADOR         (SGD) MARISSA Q. PINKIHAN   (SGD) FELICIANO P. TIBURCIO 
                     Committee Chairperson                  Committee Vice-Chairperson                           Permanent Member                           Committee Secretary  
 
 

COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET



106

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

RISK OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET 
FOR THE YEAR 2022 

KEY RESULT 
AREAS OBJECTIVE ACTIVITIES FREQUENCY 

/ DEADLINE 
PERSON/S 

RESPONSIBLE 
COST/ 
INPUTS 

MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION 

Risk 
Management 
of the Bank 

• To identify and 
evaluate potential 
and existing risks in 
the Bank’s operation 
 
• To mitigate risks 
that the bank may 
encounter 
 
• To ensure that 
supervisory issues 
are addressed on a 
timely manner 

1. Review and act on the report 
of the Compliance Department 
and Credit Risk Department Monthly 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

P 68,000.00 
 

Minutes of 
meeting 

2. Approve prices of ROPA and 
other Bank’s assets that will be 
offered for sale 

If there will 
be plan to sell 

ROPA and 
other assets 

          Minutes of 
meeting 

3. Witness disposal of Bank’s 
records Annually 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

4. Evaluate the major risk of the 
Bank: Credit, Liquidity, 
Operational and Market Risk 
 

Monthly 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

5. Review and endorse 
amendments to existing policies 
and study newly proposed 
policies 
 

As needed 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

6. Discuss matters relating to risks 
related activities including 
  

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

a. Any regulatory rating from 
agencies especially with of 
BSP and CDA 

 

If applicable    
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 KEY RESULT 
AREAS OBJECTIVE ACTIVITIES FREQUENCY 

/ DEADLINE 
PERSON/S 

RESPONSIBLE 
COST/ 
INPUTS 

MEANS OF 
VERIFICATION 

  
 

b. Emerging risks to the Bank Annually    
c. New or proposed products, 

services or business 
If there are 

new products 
/ services 

   

7. Receive ad review report from 
Bank’s management 
 Monthly 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

8. Make an assessment of the 
overall status of the Bank’s 
adherence to its risk appetite 
statements 
 

Annually 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

9. Conduct meeting regularly 

Monthly 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

10. Report to the board the 
result of its meetings 
 Monthly 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

11.  Review the Risk Oversight 
Committee Charter, and 
introduce amendments if 
necessary 

Annually 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

12. Administer the bidding 
process in connection with sale of 
bank’s assets 

If there are 
assets for sale 

Committee 
Members and 

Resource 
Persons 

 Minutes of 
meeting 

     Submitted and Prepared by:  

 

(SGD )RICHARD P. CORDERO   (SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO                (SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
Chairperson, ROC               Vice Chairperson, ROC               Secretary, ROC 
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COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET

COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE PLAN AND BUDGET 
FOR THE YEAR 2022 

KEY RESULT AREAS / 
TARGET SPECIFIC ACTIVITIES PERSON 

RESPONSIBLE 
TIME 

FRAME MEANS OF VERIFICATION BUDGET 

Regularly conduct CGC 
meetings with agenda on 
policy review & amendments. 

With prepared agenda 
With quorum 
Submit policies for 
approval to BOD  

CGC 
Resource Person Monthly 

Minutes of CGC meetings 
Attendance Sheet 
Board Resolution for the 
submitted policies 

P36,000.00 
P12,000.00 

Evaluate regularly the 
Individual & BODs Assessment 
form & monitor attendance 
during Board meetings 

Evaluate the periodic 
individual & BOD 
assessment 
Monitor perfect attendance 
of BOD  

CGC Quarterly 

Minutes of CGC meeting 
Individual & BOD Assessment 
Form 
Summary of BOD Attendance 
Sheet for the year 

 

Ensure that first time directors 
attended the Corporate 
Governance Seminar  

Monitor attendance of first 
time Director in attending 
Corporate Governance 
Seminar 

CGC 
BOD Secretary 
Admin Manager 

Annually 

Certificate of completion of 
the concerned director 

 

Evaluate nominated Board, 
AIC & ELECOM 

Review & evaluate the 
qualifications of all persons 
nominated to the Board, 
Audit & Inventory 
Committee & Election 
Committee 

CGC Annually 

Minutes of CGC meeting  

 

Prepared and submitted by: 

 

  (SGD) MORENCIO S. PACIO     (SGD) RICHARD P. CORDERO  (SGD) ARNEL G. DOMINCEL 
                                   CGC Chairperson       CGC Vice Chairperson                      CGC Secretary 
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*RCTISAFS0352* 
Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co., a Philippine professional partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK Bank Limited by guarantee.   
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO member firms. 

2nd Floor Multinational Bancorporation Centre 
6805 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1226 Philippines 
www.bdo-roxascruztagle.ph 
Tel: + (632) 8844 2016 
Fax: + (632) 8844 2045 

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0005, 
   August 1, 2021, valid until March 17, 2024 
CDA Accreditation No. 062-AF, 
   March 31, 2020, valid until March 30, 2023 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
The Members and the Board of Directors 
Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya 
Burgos St., cor. Gaddang St., Quirino, 
Solano, Nueva Vizcaya 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya  
(the “Cooperative Bank”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at  
December 31, 2021, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Cooperative Bank as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 
(PFRS), taking into consideration Cooperative laws, rules, regulations and principles, and as modified 
by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and 
approved by the Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) in response to COVID-19 pandemic, as 
described in Note 2 to the financial statements. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Cooperative 
Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of 
Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which indicate that the financial statements 
have been prepared in accordance with PFRS, as modified by the application of the financial reporting 
reliefs issued by the BSP and approved by CDA in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The impacts of 
the application of the financial reporting reliefs on the 2021 financial statements are discussed in 
detail in Note 2. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 
 
Other Matter 
 
The financial statements of the Cooperative Bank as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020 
were audited by another auditor who expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements on 
April 15, 2021. The opinion of such other auditor, however, excludes the restatements and 
reclassifications adjustments discussed in Note 28 to the financial statements. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with PFRS taking into consideration Cooperative laws, rules, regulations and principles, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Cooperative Bank’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Cooperative Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Cooperative Bank’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative Bank’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cooperative Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Cooperative Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on the Supplementary Information Required by the BSP and Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
taken as a whole. The supplementary information as disclosed in Notes 29 and 30 to the financial 
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the BSP and BIR, respectively, and is not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial 
statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO. 

Christian Francis S. Felismino 
Partner 
CPA Certificate No. 0111361 
Tax Identification No. 237-332-255 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-016-2019, issued on November 05, 2019, 

effective until November 04, 2022 
SEC Accreditation No. 111361-SEC, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
BSP Accreditation No. 111361-BSP, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
PTR No. 8876904, issued on January 24, 2022, Makati City 

February 23, 2022 
Makati City 
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STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATION 

TO THE COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 

In connection with my examination of the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank of Nueva 
Vizcaya (the “Cooperative Bank”) covering the year ended December 31, 2021 that are herewith 
submitted, I hereby represent the following: 

1. That the financial statements herewith attached are prepared and presented in conformity
with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) taking into consideration
Cooperative laws, rules, regulations and principles;

2. That in the conduct of audit, I adhered to the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA);
3. That I am qualified as provided for in Section 8 of the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified

Public Accountants and Article 80 of R.A. No. 9520 (Philippine Cooperative Code of 2008);
4. That I am fully aware of my responsibility as an independent auditor for the audit report

issued and attached to the financial statements and the sanctions to be bestowed on me for
my misrepresentations that they may have willingly or unwillingly committed;

5. That I nor any member of my immediate family do not have any direct or indirect financial
interest with the Cooperative Bank;

6. That I am not an employee nor an officer of a secondary cooperative or tertiary cooperative
of which this Cooperative Bank is a member;

7. That I am not an employee of the Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) nor have I
engaged an employee of the CDA in the course of audit;

8. That I make this representation in my individual capacity; and as partner in the accounting
firm of Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co.

9. That I am a member of the SMC Chapter of the PICPA.

It is however, understood that my accountability is based on matter within the normal coverage of an 
audit conducted in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and the Standard Audit Systems 
for Cooperatives. 

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO. 

Christian Francis S. Felismino 
Partner 
CPA Certificate No. 0111361 
Tax Identification No. 237-332-255 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-016-2019, issued on November 05, 2019, 

effective until November 04, 2022 
SEC Accreditation No. 111361-SEC, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
BSP Accreditation No. 111361-BSP, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
PTR No. 8876904, issued on January 24, 2022, Makati City 

February 23, 2022 
Makati City
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Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co., a Philippine professional partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK Bank Limited by guarantee. 
BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO member firms. 

2nd Floor Multinational Bancorporation Centre 
6805 Ayala Avenue, Makati City 1226 Philippines 
www.bdo-roxascruztagle.ph 
Tel: + (632) 8844 2016 
Fax: + (632) 8844 2045 

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0005, 
   August 1, 2021, valid until March 17, 2024 
CDA Accreditation No. 062-AF, 
  March 31, 2020, valid until March 30, 2023 

STATEMENT OF REPRESENTATION 

TO THE COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: 

In connection with my examination of the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank of Nueva 
Vizcaya (the “Cooperative Bank”) covering the year ended December 31, 2021 that are herewith 
submitted, I hereby represent the following: 

1. That the financial statements herewith attached are prepared and presented in conformity
with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) taking into consideration
Cooperative laws, rules, regulations and principles;

2. That in the conduct of audit, I adhered to the Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA);
3. That I am qualified as provided for in Section 8 of the Code of Professional Ethics for Certified

Public Accountants and Article 80 of R.A. No. 9520 (Philippine Cooperative Code of 2008);
4. That I am fully aware of my responsibility as an independent auditor for the audit report

issued and attached to the financial statements and the sanctions to be bestowed on me for
my misrepresentations that they may have willingly or unwillingly committed;

5. That I nor any member of my immediate family do not have any direct or indirect financial
interest with the Cooperative Bank;

6. That I am not an employee nor an officer of a secondary cooperative or tertiary cooperative
of which this Cooperative Bank is a member;

7. That I am not an employee of the Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) nor have I
engaged an employee of the CDA in the course of audit;

8. That I make this representation in my individual capacity; and as partner in the accounting
firm of Roxas Cruz Tagle and Co.

9. That I am a member of the SMC Chapter of the PICPA.

It is however, understood that my accountability is based on matter within the normal coverage of an 
audit conducted in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing and the Standard Audit Systems 
for Cooperatives. 

ROXAS CRUZ TAGLE AND CO. 

Christian Francis S. Felismino 
Partner 
CPA Certificate No. 0111361 
Tax Identification No. 237-332-255 
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001682-016-2019, issued on November 05, 2019, 

effective until November 04, 2022 
SEC Accreditation No. 111361-SEC, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
BSP Accreditation No. 111361-BSP, Group A, issued on February 4, 2020, 

effective until February 3, 2023 
PTR No. 8876904, issued on January 24, 2022, Makati City 

February 23, 2022 
Makati City
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(With comparative figures as at December 31, 2020) 

Note 2021 

December 31, 
2020 

(As Restated - 
Note 28) 

January 1, 
2020 

(As Restated - 
Note 28) 

ASSETS 
Cash on hand 5 P=2,841,696 P=3,392,298 P=4,173,722 
Due from Bangko Sentral ng 

Pilipinas (BSP) 6 10,058,837 12,178,535 12,297,853 
Due from other banks 7 274,865,204 168,936,289 123,411,262 
Investments at amortized cost 8 21,477,383 26,031,817 40,208,562 
Loans and other receivables, net 9 414,270,440 354,502,256 313,594,571 
Investment properties, net 10 15,084,759 10,418,725 13,312,318 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures 

and equipment, net 11 13,557,156 17,588,057 22,243,159 
Right-of-use asset 12 3,672,264 1,539,105 769,161 
Other assets 13 28,919,319 27,235,674 18,285,406 

P=784,747,058 P=621,822,756 P=548,296,014 

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
Deposit liabilities 14 P=493,960,794 P=411,156,922 P=395,241,313 
Bills payable 15 124,324,823 51,272,512 11,555,477 
Accrued interest, taxes and other 

expenses payable 16 5,059,149 5,088,639 5,628,393 
Income tax payable - 33,260 19,828 
Lease liability 12 3,749,070 1,529,814 786,676 
Other liabilities 17 43,021,401 37,219,763 21,832,854 

Total Liabilities 670,115,237 506,300,910 435,064,541 

MEMBERS’ EQUITY 
Preferred share capital 18 12,401,000 12,058,000 9,751,000 
Ordinary share capital 18 36,256,000 36,034,000 34,207,000 
Additional paid-in capital 18 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Stock dividends distributable 18 8,892,832 8,610,771 - 
Deposit for stock subscription 18 - 8,988,470 18,720 
Surplus free 18 38,676,011 32,653,033 51,234,578 
Surplus reserves/statutory funds 18 16,405,978 15,177,572 16,020,175 

Total Members’ Equity 114,631,821 115,521,846 113,231,473 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ 
EQUITY P=784,747,058 P=621,822,756 P=548,296,014 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(With comparative figures for the year December 31, 2020) 

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated - 

Note 28) 

INTEREST INCOME 
Due from other banks 7 P=5,728,996 P=4,994,249 
Investments at amortized cost 8 491,005 686,581 
Loans and other receivables 9 55,473,875 55,316,598 

61,693,876 60,997,428 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Deposit liabilities 14 (11,207,576) (12,356,548) 
Lease liabilities 12 (138,582) (43,975) 
Bills payable 15 (57,088) (175,668) 

(11,403,246) (12,576,191) 

NET INTEREST INCOME 50,290,630 48,421,237 
Provision for credit losses 9 (13,568,333) (8,661,753) 

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION 36,722,297 39,759,484 
Other operating income 19 25,475,091 15,090,762 
Other operating expenses 20 (53,930,155) (53,991,088) 

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 8,267,233 859,158 

INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) 21 3,320 (82,420) 

NET SURPLUS 8,270,553 776,738 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 8,270,553 776,738 

Other items: 
Gain on real properties acquired (3,122,749) - 
Other prior period adjustments 533,202 1,793,422 

NET SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR P=5,681,006 P=2,570,160 

DISTRIBUTION OF NET SURPLUS 
Interest on share capital and patronage refund 

payable P=3,976,704 P=1,799,112 
General reserve fund 568,101 257,016 
Cooperative education and training fund 568,101 257,016 
Community development fund 170,430 77,105 
Optional fund 397,670 179,911 

UNDISTRIBUTED NET SURPLUS P=- P=- 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(With comparative figures for the year December 31, 2020) 

Note 
Preferred 

Shares Ordinary shares 
Additional Paid 

In Capital 
Stock Dividends 

Distributable 

Deposit for 
Stock 

Subscription 

Surplus 
Reserves/ 

Statutory Funds Surplus Free Total 
Balance at January 1, 2020, 

as previously reported P=9,751,000 P=34,207,000 P=2,000,000 P=- P=18,720 P=16,020,175 P=45,297,507 P=107,294,402 
Prior period adjustments 28 - - - - - - 5,937,071 5,937,071 

Balance at January 1, 2020, as restated 9,751,000 34,207,000 2,000,000 - 18,720 16,020,175 51,234,578 113,231,473 
Total comprehensive income, as 

previously reported - - - - - - 2,570,160 2,570,160 
Prior period adjustments 28 - - - - - - (1,793,422) (1,793,422) 
Total comprehensive income, 

as restated - - - - - - 776,738 776,738 
Transaction with members: 

Issuance of shares 19 2,305,750 1,827,000 - - – - - 4,132,750 
Stock subscription 19 - - - - 8,971,000 - - 8,971,000 
Transfer from stock subscription 19 1,250 - - - (1,250) - - – 
Appropriations during the year 19 - - - - - 771,048 (771,048) - 
Dividends declared 19 - - - - - - (10,074,227) (10,074,227) 
Patronage refund 19 - - - 8,513,008 - - (8,513,008) - 
Reclassification and other 

adjustments 19 - - - 97,763 - (1,613,651) - (1,515,888) 

Balance at December 31, 2020 12,058,000 36,034,000 2,000,000 8,610,771 8,988,470 15,177,572 32,653,033 115,521,846 
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - 8,270,553 8,270,553 
Transaction with members Issuance of 

shares 343,000 222,000 - - - - 565,000 
Stock subscription – - - - - - - - 
Transfer from stock subscription - - - - - - - – 
Appropriations during the year – - - - - 1,704,302 (1,704,302) - 
Dividends declared – - - - - - (475,619) (475,619) 
Patronage refund – – – 518,557 – – (518,557) – 
Reclassification and other 

adjustments – – – (236,496) (8,988,470) (475,986) 450,903 (9,249,959) 

Balance at December 31, 2021 P=12,401,000 P=36,256,000 P=2,000,000 P=8,892,832 P=- P=16,405,978 P=38,676,011 P=114,631,821 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(With comparative figures for the year December 31, 2020) 

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated- 

Note 28) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Income before income tax P=8,267,233 P=859,158 
Adjustments for: 

Provision for credit losses 9 13,568,333 8,661,753 
Depreciation  20 6,425,601 6,437,172 
Interest income 7,8 (6,220,001) (5,680,830) 
Gain on foreclosure on investment properties 19 (3,122,749) - 
Gain from sale/derecognition of assets 19 (2,512,544) (2,152,625) 
Impairment of investment properties 20 359,500 1,945,674 
Interest on lease liabilities 12 138,581 43,975 

Operating income before working capital changes 16,903,954 10,114,277 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Loans and other receivables (76,524,927) (51,757,498) 
Other assets (1,664,791) (8,950,268) 

Decrease (increase) in: 
Deposit liabilities 82,803,872 15,915,609 
Accrued interest, taxes and other expenses payable (29,490) (539,754) 
Other liabilities (6,273,048) 7,086,454 

Cash generated from (used in) operations 15,215,570 (28,131,180) 
Interest received 6,220,001 5,680,830 
Income taxes paid (48,794) (68,988) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 21,386,777 (22,519,338) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from investments at amortized cost 8 27,603,449 85,604,225 
Acquisition of investments at amortized cost 8 (23,049,015) (71,427,480) 
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 10 3,566,483 3,200,418 
Acquisition of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 11 (1,323,281) (1,018,365) 
Proceeds from sale of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 

equipment 11 54,811 142,437 

Net cash provided by investing activities 6,852,447 16,501,235 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Availment of bills payable 15 81,171,344 50,137,700 
Settlements of bills payable 15 (8,119,033) (10,420,665) 
Lease payments 12 (947,028) (791,017) 
Issuance of preference shares 18 343,000 2,305,750 
Issuance of ordinary shares 18 222,000 1,827,000 
Expenditures from statutory reserves 18 (191,846) (1,387,380) 
Proceeds from deposit for stock subscription 18,26 2,540,954 8,971,000 

Net cash provided by financing activities 75,019,391 50,642,388 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 103,258,615 44,624,285 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT JANUARY 1 184,507,122 139,882,837 
Cash on hand 3,392,298 4,173,722 
Due from BSP 12,178,535 12,297,853 
Due from other banks 168,936,289 123,411,262 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT DECEMBER 31 
Cash on hand 2,841,696 3,392,298 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 12,178,535 
Due from other banks 274,865,204 168,936,289 

P=287,765,737 P=184,507,122 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

(With comparative figures for the year December 31, 2020) 

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated- 

Note 28) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Income before income tax P=8,267,233 P=859,158 
Adjustments for: 

Provision for credit losses 9 13,568,333 8,661,753 
Depreciation  20 6,425,601 6,437,172 
Interest income 7,8 (6,220,001) (5,680,830) 
Gain on foreclosure on investment properties 19 (3,122,749) - 
Gain from sale/derecognition of assets 19 (2,512,544) (2,152,625) 
Impairment of investment properties 20 359,500 1,945,674 
Interest on lease liabilities 12 138,581 43,975 

Operating income before working capital changes 16,903,954 10,114,277 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Loans and other receivables (76,524,927) (51,757,498) 
Other assets (1,664,791) (8,950,268) 

Decrease (increase) in: 
Deposit liabilities 82,803,872 15,915,609 
Accrued interest, taxes and other expenses payable (29,490) (539,754) 
Other liabilities (6,273,048) 7,086,454 

Cash generated from (used in) operations 15,215,570 (28,131,180) 
Interest received 6,220,001 5,680,830 
Income taxes paid (48,794) (68,988) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 21,386,777 (22,519,338) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from investments at amortized cost 8 27,603,449 85,604,225 
Acquisition of investments at amortized cost 8 (23,049,015) (71,427,480) 
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 10 3,566,483 3,200,418 
Acquisition of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 11 (1,323,281) (1,018,365) 
Proceeds from sale of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 

equipment 11 54,811 142,437 

Net cash provided by investing activities 6,852,447 16,501,235 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Availment of bills payable 15 81,171,344 50,137,700 
Settlements of bills payable 15 (8,119,033) (10,420,665) 
Lease payments 12 (947,028) (791,017) 
Issuance of preference shares 18 343,000 2,305,750 
Issuance of ordinary shares 18 222,000 1,827,000 
Expenditures from statutory reserves 18 (191,846) (1,387,380) 
Proceeds from deposit for stock subscription 18,26 2,540,954 8,971,000 

Net cash provided by financing activities 75,019,391 50,642,388 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 103,258,615 44,624,285 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT JANUARY 1 184,507,122 139,882,837 
Cash on hand 3,392,298 4,173,722 
Due from BSP 12,178,535 12,297,853 
Due from other banks 168,936,289 123,411,262 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT DECEMBER 31 
Cash on hand 2,841,696 3,392,298 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 12,178,535 
Due from other banks 274,865,204 168,936,289 

P=287,765,737 P=184,507,122 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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COOPERATIVE BANK OF NUEVA VIZCAYA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Reporting Entity

Cooperative Bank of Nueva Vizcaya (the “Cooperative Bank”) was registered with
Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) on March 25, 1991 and as amended, pursuant to the CDA
Memorandum Circular (MC) No. 2010-05 was granted a new CDA Registration No. 9520-02001528.
On December 18, 1979, the Cooperative Bank was authorized by the Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas (BSP) to engage in cooperative banking business.

The Cooperative Bank started with a capitalization of P=430,000 at its inception. As at
December 31, 2021, the Cooperative Bank’s total equity reached P=116.27 million and has four (4)
branches located as follows:

Branches Address 
1. Kayapa Branch Pampang, Kayapa, Nueva Vizcaya 
2. Bambang Branch Bambang, Nueva Vizcaya 
3. Maddela Branch Maddela, Quirino 
4. Ramon Branch Ramon, Isabela 

The Cooperative Bank’s registered office address is located at Burgos St., cor. Gaddang St., Quirino, 
Solano, Nueva Vizcaya. The Cooperative Bank is domiciled in the Philippines. 

The financial statements were approved and authorized for issuance in accordance with a 
resolution by the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 23, 2022. 

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) taking into consideration Cooperative laws, rules,
regulations and principles, and as modified by the application of the following financial reporting
reliefs issued by the BSP in response to the COVID-19 pandemic:

i. Staggered booking of allowance for credit losses over a maximum period of five years;
and

ii. Exclusion of eligible loans from past due and non-performing classification until
December 31, 2021.

a. The impact on the affected financial statement line items as at December 31, 2021 is as
follows:

Amount with 
relief 

Impact of relief 
Increase 

(decrease) 
Amount 

without relief 
Loans and receivables P=412,066,758 (P=7,648,838) P=404,417,920 
Allowance for credit losses 39,478,790 7,648,838 47,127,628 
Surplus 41,879,304 (7,648,838) 34,230,466 

*RCTISAFS0352*

b. Balance of allowance recognized or amortized for the period and balance of unrecognized
allowance as at December 31, 2021:

Total 
unrecognized 

allowance 
Amortized for 

the period 
Balance of 

unrecognized 
Allowance for credit losses P=9,561,047 P=1,912,209 P=7,648,838 

Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements of the Cooperative Bank have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis. 

Functional and Presentation Currency 
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the functional currency 
of the Cooperative Bank. All values are rounded off to the nearest Philippine Peso (P=), except 
when otherwise indicated. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Cooperative Bank adopted
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021:

 Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases – COVID-19-Related Concessions beyond June 30, 2021. As a
practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent
concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts
for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession the
same way it would account for the change under PFRS 16, if the change were not a lease
modification.

Following the amendment, the practical expedient now applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank.

New and Amended PFRS Issued but Not Yet Effective 
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended 
December 31, 2021 and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are 
summarized below. 

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022: 

 Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use. The
amendments prohibit the entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment, any proceeds of the sale items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Management. Instead, the entity recognizes such sales proceeds and any related costs in
the profit or loss.
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b. Balance of allowance recognized or amortized for the period and balance of unrecognized
allowance as at December 31, 2021:

Total 
unrecognized 

allowance 
Amortized for 

the period 
Balance of 

unrecognized 
Allowance for credit losses P=9,561,047 P=1,912,209 P=7,648,838 

Basis of Measurement 
The financial statements of the Cooperative Bank have been prepared on the historical cost 
basis. 

Functional and Presentation Currency 
The financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the functional currency 
of the Cooperative Bank. All values are rounded off to the nearest Philippine Peso (P=), except 
when otherwise indicated. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except
for the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Cooperative Bank adopted
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021:

 Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases – COVID-19-Related Concessions beyond June 30, 2021. As a
practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVID-19 related rent
concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts
for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 related rent concession the
same way it would account for the change under PFRS 16, if the change were not a lease
modification.

Following the amendment, the practical expedient now applies to rent concessions for which
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
June 30, 2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank.

New and Amended PFRS Issued but Not Yet Effective 
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended 
December 31, 2021 and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are 
summarized below. 

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022: 

 Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment – Proceeds before Intended Use. The
amendments prohibit the entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment, any proceeds of the sale items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Management. Instead, the entity recognizes such sales proceeds and any related costs in
the profit or loss.
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 Amendments to PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - Onerous
Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract. The amendments specify the costs a company
includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making and is therefore recognized
as an onerous contract. The amendments apply a “directly related approach”. The costs that
relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and
an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities.

 Annual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018 – 2020 Cycle

o Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Fees in the ’10 Per Cent’ Test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities. The amendment clarifies which fees an entity
includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of PFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognize a financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received
between the entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the entity or the lender on the other’s behalf.

o Amendments to PFRS 16, Leases - Lease Incentives. The amendment to Illustrative
Example 13 Accompanying PFRS 16 removes from the example the illustration of the
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how
lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023: 

 Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes – Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities from
a Single Transaction. The amendments require companies to recognize deferred tax on
transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible
temporary differences. The amendments will typically apply to transactions such as leases for
the lessee and decommissioning obligations. According to the amended guidance, a temporary
difference that arises on initial recognition of an asset or liability is not subject to the initial
recognition exemption if that transaction gave rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

 PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts. This standard will replace PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts. It
requires insurance liabilities to be measured at current fulfillment value and provides a more
uniform measurement and presentation approach to achieve consistent, principle-based
accounting for all insurance contracts. It also requires similar principles to be applied to
reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretionary participation features
issued. In June 2020, the IASB issued amendments to the standard, including a deferral of its
effective date to January 1, 2023.

 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current. The amendments to PAS 1 specify the requirements for classifying
current and noncurrent liabilities. The amendments will clarify that a right to defer must
exist at the end of reporting period and the classification is unaffected by the likelihood that
an entity will exercise its deferral right. The issuance of amendments was deferred until
January 1, 2023, as a result of COVID-19 pandemic.

 Amendments to PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors -
Definition of Accounting Estimates. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. The
amended standard also clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an
input or a change in a measurement technique are changes in accounting estimates if they do
not result from the correction of prior period errors. The previous definition of a change in
accounting estimate specified that changes in accounting estimates may result from new
information or new developments. Therefore, such changes are not corrections of errors.
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 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2,
Making Materiality Judgements - Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies. The amendments
aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by (a) replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies, and (b) Adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not 
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Date of Recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in 
the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a 
financial instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition 
and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, 
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a 
liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost. 

“Day 1” Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value 
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Cooperative Bank 
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in 
profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Cooperative Bank 
deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1” difference 
in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For 
each transaction, the Cooperative Bank determines the appropriate method of recognizing the 
“Day 1” difference. 

Classification. The Cooperative Bank classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the 
following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost and 
(c) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial liabilities,
on the other hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at
amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely depends on the Cooperative
Bank’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are either classified 
as held for trading or designated at FVPL. A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if 
it meets either of the following conditions: 

 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term;

• on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments which the Cooperative Bank had not irrevocably elected 
to classify at FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows 
are not “solely for payment of principal and interest” assessed at initial recognition of the assets, 
or which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash 
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell. 
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 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and PFRS Practice Statement 2,
Making Materiality Judgements - Disclosure Initiative - Accounting Policies. The amendments
aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by (a) replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies, and (b) Adding guidance on how
entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not 
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Date of Recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in 
the statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a 
financial instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition 
and derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting. 

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, 
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a 
liability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair 
value through profit and loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost. 

“Day 1” Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value 
of other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the Cooperative Bank 
recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in 
profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Cooperative Bank 
deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1” difference 
in profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For 
each transaction, the Cooperative Bank determines the appropriate method of recognizing the 
“Day 1” difference. 

Classification. The Cooperative Bank classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the 
following categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amortized cost and 
(c) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial liabilities,
on the other hand, are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at
amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely depends on the Cooperative
Bank’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at FVPL. Financial assets and liabilities at FVPL are either classified 
as held for trading or designated at FVPL. A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if 
it meets either of the following conditions: 

 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term;

• on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument).

This category includes equity instruments which the Cooperative Bank had not irrevocably elected 
to classify at FVOCI at initial recognition. This category includes debt instruments whose cash flows 
are not “solely for payment of principal and interest” assessed at initial recognition of the assets, 
or which are not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash 
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell. 
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The Cooperative Bank may, at initial recognition, designate a financial asset or financial liability 
meeting the criteria to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as a financial asset or financial 
liability at FVPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces accounting mismatch that would 
arise from measuring these assets or liabilities. 

After initial recognition, financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealized gains or losses arising from the fair valuation of 
financial assets at FVPL and held for trading financial liabilities are recognized in profit or loss. 

For financial liabilities designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the amount of change in fair 
value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized in other 
comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch. 
Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or 
loss. 

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank does not have financial assets and 
liabilities at FVPL. 

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of 
the following conditions are met: 

 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized 
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any. Amortized cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an 
integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when 
the financial assets are derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets at 
amortized cost are included under current assets if realizability or collectability is within 12 months 
after the reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets. 

As at December 31, 2021and 2020, the Cooperative Bank’s cash on hand, due from BSP, due from 
other banks, investments at amortized cost, loans and other receivables and other assets are 
included under this category (Notes 5, 6, 7, 8, 9 and 13). 

Financial Assets at FVOCI. For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristic 
and are not designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured 
at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met: 

 the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For equity instruments, the Cooperative Bank may irrevocably designate the financial asset to be 
measured at FVOCI in case the above conditions are not met. 
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Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial 
recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method), foreign 
currency gains or losses and impairment losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI are 
recognized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative 
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a 
reclassification adjustment. 

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right 
to receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of 
the cost of the investment. Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or losses from 
equity instruments are recognized in OCI and presented in the equity section of the statements 
of financial position. These fair value changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

The Cooperative Bank has no financial assets carried at fair value as financial assets at FVOCI. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities 
at amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Cooperative 
Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to 
settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. 

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable 
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized 
or through the amortization process. 

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank’s deposit liabilities, bills payable, 
accrued interest, taxes and other expenses payable and other liabilities are included under this 
category (Notes 14, 15, 16 and 17). 

Reclassification 

The Cooperative Bank reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business 
model for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the 
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification 
date). 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost 
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost 
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at 
amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets 
at amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the 
new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life 
of the investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently 
impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss. 
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Financial assets at FVOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial 
recognition, interest income (calculated using the effective interest rate method), foreign 
currency gains or losses and impairment losses of debt instruments measured at FVOCI are 
recognized directly in profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative 
gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a 
reclassification adjustment. 

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCI are recognized in profit or loss when the right 
to receive payment is established, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of 
the cost of the investment. Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or losses from 
equity instruments are recognized in OCI and presented in the equity section of the statements 
of financial position. These fair value changes are recognized in equity and are not reclassified 
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

The Cooperative Bank has no financial assets carried at fair value as financial assets at FVOCI. 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities 
at amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Cooperative 
Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to 
settle the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial 
asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. 

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable 
transaction costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective 
interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized 
or through the amortization process. 

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank’s deposit liabilities, bills payable, 
accrued interest, taxes and other expenses payable and other liabilities are included under this 
category (Notes 14, 15, 16 and 17). 

Reclassification 

The Cooperative Bank reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business 
model for managing those financial assets. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the 
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification 
date). 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost 
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial 
assets at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from a difference between the previous amortized cost 
of the financial asset and fair value is recognized in OCI. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at 
amortized cost, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets 
at amortized cost, any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the 
new amortized cost and maturity amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life 
of the investment using the effective interest method. If the financial asset is subsequently 
impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss. 
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In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be 
recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is 
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss. 

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at 
FVOCI, its fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. Meanwhile, 
for a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at 
FVPL, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification date. 

Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 

Overview of the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) principles 

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise on a 12-month duration if there 
has been no significant increase in credit risk of the financial asset since origination. Otherwise 
if a significant increase in credit risk is observed, then the ECL estimation is extended until the 
end of the life of the financial asset. The 12-month ECL represents the losses that result from 
default events on a financial asset which may happen within 12 months after the reporting date. 
The Lifetime ECL on the other hand represents the losses that result from default events on a 
financial asset which may happen over its life. Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are 
calculated on either an individual basis or a collective basis, depending on the nature of the 
underlying portfolio of financial instruments. 

The major portfolios of financial assets identified upon initial analysis of the Cooperative Bank’s 
credit exposure are loan receivables, treasury accounts, and other receivables. Loan receivables 
may be availed by specific individuals, corporations or organizations. Hence, these portfolios can 
be further segmented to commercial and consumer portfolios. After segmentation, financial 
assets are grouped into Stage 1, Stage 2, and Stage 3 as described below. 

Definition of “default” and “cure” 

The Cooperative Bank defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully aligned with the 
definition of credit impaired, in all cases when the borrower becomes 31 days past due on its 
contractual payments. As a part of a qualitative assessment of whether a customer is in default, 
the Cooperative Bank also considers a variety of instances that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. 
When such events occur, the Cooperative Bank carefully considers whether the event should result 
in treating the customer as defaulted. An instrument is considered to be no longer in default 
(i.e. to have cured) when it no longer meets any of the default criteria and has exhibited a 
satisfactory track record. 

Treasury exposures are considered in default upon occurrence of a credit event such as but not 
limited to bankruptcy of counterparty, restructuring, failure to pay on agreed settlement date, 
or request for moratorium. 
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Significant increase in credit risk 

In order to determine whether an instrument is subject to 12-month or Lifetime ECL, the 
Cooperative Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by 
portfolio and include quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, 
including a backstop based on delinquency. The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to 
have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based on the Cooperative Bank’s internal 
credit assessment, the borrower or counterparty is determined to have well-defined credit 
weaknesses. These may include adverse trends or developments of financial, managerial, 
economic or political nature, or a significant weakness in collateral. Credit weakness may be 
manifested by unfavorable record or unsatisfactory characteristics or may only be potential that 
deserves management’s close attention and may lead to significant losses or may result in 
collection or liquidation of the outstanding loan amount to be highly improbable. For exposures 
without internal credit grades, if contractual payments are more than a specified day past due 
threshold, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition. Days 
past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in 
respect of which full payment has not been received. In subsequent reporting periods, if the 
credit risk of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risks since initial recognition, the Cooperative Bank shall revert to recognizing a 12-month 
ECL. 

Staging assessment 

For non-credit-impaired financial assets: 

 Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a
12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial assets.

 Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a lifetime
ECL for Stage 2 financial assets.

For credit-impaired financial assets: 

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of a financial asset or a portfolio of financial assets. 
The ECL model requires a lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets. 

Financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition are classified as purchased or 
originated credit-impaired assets. These are recorded at fair value at original recognition and 
interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit-adjusted effective interest rate 
(EIR). ECL is only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the 
ECLs.  

Assessment of ECL on a collective basis 

The Cooperative Bank calculates ECL either on an individual or a collective basis. The Cooperative 
Bank performs collective impairment by grouping exposures into smaller homogenous portfolios 
based on a combination of borrower and account characteristics. Accounts with similar risk 
attributes (i.e. facility, security, credit rating, and collateral type, etc.) are pooled together for 
calculating provisions based on the ECL models. 
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Significant increase in credit risk 

In order to determine whether an instrument is subject to 12-month or Lifetime ECL, the 
Cooperative Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition. The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by 
portfolio and include quantitative changes in probabilities of default and qualitative factors, 
including a backstop based on delinquency. The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to 
have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based on the Cooperative Bank’s internal 
credit assessment, the borrower or counterparty is determined to have well-defined credit 
weaknesses. These may include adverse trends or developments of financial, managerial, 
economic or political nature, or a significant weakness in collateral. Credit weakness may be 
manifested by unfavorable record or unsatisfactory characteristics or may only be potential that 
deserves management’s close attention and may lead to significant losses or may result in 
collection or liquidation of the outstanding loan amount to be highly improbable. For exposures 
without internal credit grades, if contractual payments are more than a specified day past due 
threshold, the credit risk is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition. Days 
past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in 
respect of which full payment has not been received. In subsequent reporting periods, if the 
credit risk of the financial asset improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in 
credit risks since initial recognition, the Cooperative Bank shall revert to recognizing a 12-month 
ECL. 

Staging assessment 

For non-credit-impaired financial assets: 

 Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have not experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a
12-month ECL for Stage 1 financial assets.

 Stage 2 is comprised of all non-impaired financial assets which have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The Cooperative Bank recognizes a lifetime
ECL for Stage 2 financial assets.

For credit-impaired financial assets: 

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more loss events that have occurred after initial recognition with a negative 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of a financial asset or a portfolio of financial assets. 
The ECL model requires a lifetime ECL for impaired financial assets. 

Financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition are classified as purchased or 
originated credit-impaired assets. These are recorded at fair value at original recognition and 
interest income is subsequently recognized based on a credit-adjusted effective interest rate 
(EIR). ECL is only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the 
ECLs.  

Assessment of ECL on a collective basis 

The Cooperative Bank calculates ECL either on an individual or a collective basis. The Cooperative 
Bank performs collective impairment by grouping exposures into smaller homogenous portfolios 
based on a combination of borrower and account characteristics. Accounts with similar risk 
attributes (i.e. facility, security, credit rating, and collateral type, etc.) are pooled together for 
calculating provisions based on the ECL models. 
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ECL parameters and methodologies 

ECL is a function of the probability of default (PD), exposure-at-default (EAD), and loss-given 
default (LGD), with the timing of the loss also considered, and is estimated by incorporating 
forward-looking economic information and through the use of experienced credit judgement. 

The PD represents the likelihood that a credit exposure will not be repaid and will go into default 
in either a 12-month horizon for Stage 1 or lifetime horizon for Stage 2. The PD for each individual 
financial asset is modelled based on historical data and is estimated based on current market 
conditions and reasonable and supportable information about future economic conditions. The 
Cooperative Bank segmented its credit exposures based on homogenous risk characteristics and 
developed a corresponding PD methodology for each portfolio. The PD methodology for each 
relevant portfolio is determined based on the underlying nature or characteristic of the portfolio, 
behavior of the accounts and materiality of the segment as compared to the total portfolio. 

EAD consists of the amortized cost and any accrued interest receivable. For off-balance sheet and 
undrawn committed amounts, EAD includes a credit conversion factor which is an estimate of any 
further amount to be drawn at the time of default. 

LGD is the amount that may not be recovered in the event of default and is modelled based on 
historical cash flow recovery and reasonable and supportable information about future economic 
conditions, where appropriate. LGD takes into consideration the amount and quality of any 
collateral held. The Cooperative Bank applies a simplified ECL approach for its accounts 
receivables wherein the Cooperative Bank uses a provisioning matrix that considers historical 
changes in the behavior of the portfolio to predict conditions over the span of a given observation 
period. 

Forward-looking information 

The Cooperative Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether 
the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its 
measurement of ECL. A broad range of forward-looking information are considered as economic 
inputs, such as growth of the gross domestic product, inflation rates, unemployment rates, interest 
rates and BSP statistical indicators. The inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always 
capture all characteristics of the market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, 
qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such 
differences are significantly material. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group 
of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:  

 the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
 the Cooperative Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has

assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; or

 the Cooperative Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset
and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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When the Cooperative Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset 
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Cooperative Bank’s 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Cooperative 
Bank could be required to repay. 

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. 

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new 
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest 
rate, is different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of 
the original liability. 

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows, 
discounted using the interest rate at which the Cooperative Bank could raise debt with similar 
terms and conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original 
liability and fair value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive 
income. 

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not 
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or 
fees paid or received in the restructuring. 

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the 
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position. 

Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity 

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to: 

 Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
 Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Cooperative Bank; or
 Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another

financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Cooperative Bank does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another 
financial asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a 
financial liability. 



127

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

*RCTISAFS0352*

When the Cooperative Bank has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset 
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred control 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of the Cooperative Bank’s 
continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Cooperative 
Bank could be required to repay. 

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another 
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income. 

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new 
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest 
rate, is different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of 
the original liability. 

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows, 
discounted using the interest rate at which the Cooperative Bank could raise debt with similar 
terms and conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original 
liability and fair value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive 
income. 

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not 
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or 
fees paid or received in the restructuring. 

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements 
of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognized amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the 
related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position. 

Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity 

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for a contractual obligation to: 

 Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
 Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Cooperative Bank; or
 Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another

financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Cooperative Bank does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another 
financial asset to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a 
financial liability. 
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, due from BSP and other banks that are highly 
liquid, readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or 
less from date of placements and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Investment Property 
Investment properties are composed of assets acquired from foreclosure or dacion en pago, and 
are initially measured at cost including transaction costs. An investment property acquired 
through an exchange transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair 
value of each asset cannot be measured, in which case the investment property acquired is 
measured at the carrying amount of the asset given up. Foreclosed properties are classified under 
investment properties from foreclosure date. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, depreciable investment properties are carried at cost less 
accumulated depreciation for the improvement and any impairment in value in the land or 
improvement. 

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is 
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment 
property are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income under “Profit from assets 
acquired or sold” account in the period of derecognition. 

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as 
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to income in the period in which the costs 
are incurred. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the investment 
properties of up to 10 years for buildings and improvements. 

The useful life and the depreciation and amortization methods are reviewed periodically to ensure 
that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of 
investment properties. 

Transfers are made to investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, 
evidenced by the end of owner-occupation or the start of an operating lease to another party. 
Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use, 
evidenced by the start of owner-occupation or of development with a view to sell. There were no 
transfers between investment property and owner-occupied property. 

Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 
Land is stated at cost less any impairment loss. As no finite useful life for land can be determined, 
related carrying amount is not depreciated. All other bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and 
any impairment in value. 

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the 
asset to working condition for its intended use. 

Expenditures for additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for 
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or 
otherwise disposed of, their cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization and 
impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in 
income for the period. 
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Depreciation and amortization commence once the assets are available for use and is calculated 
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the depreciable assets as follows:  

Building 10 - 25 years 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 10 years 
Transportation equipment 5 - 10 years 
IT Equipment 3 - 5 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the covering leases and 
the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

The depreciation and amortization method, residual values, and useful lives are reviewed 
periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation and amortization are consistent 
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Fully-depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. When assets are 
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment in value are removed from the financial statements and any resulting gain or loss is 
credited or charged to profit or loss. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in profit or loss. 

Leases 
At the inception of a contract, the Cooperative Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, 
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Cooperative Bank assesses 
whether: 

 the contract involves an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified;

 the Cooperative Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

 the Cooperative Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Cooperative Bank when
it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose
the asset is used. The Cooperative Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset of either:
- the Cooperative Bank has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Cooperative Bank designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what

purpose it will be used.

At the inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the 
Cooperative Bank allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of their relative stand-alone prices (or has not elected to separate non-lease components 
and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component). 
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Depreciation and amortization commence once the assets are available for use and is calculated 
on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the depreciable assets as follows:  

Building 10 - 25 years 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 10 years 
Transportation equipment 5 - 10 years 
IT Equipment 3 - 5 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the terms of the covering leases and 
the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

The depreciation and amortization method, residual values, and useful lives are reviewed 
periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation and amortization are consistent 
with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property and equipment. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Fully-depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. When assets are 
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment in value are removed from the financial statements and any resulting gain or loss is 
credited or charged to profit or loss. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing 
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in profit or loss. 

Leases 
At the inception of a contract, the Cooperative Bank assesses whether a contract is, or contains, 
a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Cooperative Bank assesses 
whether: 

 the contract involves an identified asset – this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not
identified;

 the Cooperative Bank has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

 the Cooperative Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Cooperative Bank when
it has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose
the asset is used. The Cooperative Bank has the right to direct the use of the asset of either:
- the Cooperative Bank has the right to operate the asset; or
- the Cooperative Bank designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what

purpose it will be used.

At the inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the 
Cooperative Bank allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the 
basis of their relative stand-alone prices (or has not elected to separate non-lease components 
and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component). 
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Cooperative Bank as a Lessee 

The Cooperative Bank applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. The Cooperative Bank recognizes 
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets and lease liabilities to make 
lease payments. 

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of lease 
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any 
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset 
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term. Estimated useful life is 2-5 years. 

In addition, the right-of-use is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not 
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if 
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Cooperative Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. 
Generally, the Cooperative Bank uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise of the following: 

 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
 variable lease payments that depend on an index rate, initially measured using the index or

rate as at the commencement date;
 amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantee; and
 the exercise price under a purchase option that the Cooperative Bank is reasonably certain

to exercise, lease payments option renewal period if the Cooperative Bank is reasonably to
exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
Cooperative Bank is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a 
constant rate on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments or rate, if there is a change in the 
Cooperative Bank’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value 
guarantee, or if the Cooperative Bank changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a 
purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the 
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recognized in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 

Cooperative Bank as a Lessor 

Leases where the Cooperative Bank does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases. Rent income from operating leases is 
recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  

Other assets 
Other assets include other funds and deposits, stationery and supplies, dividends receivable, 
documentary stamp/postage stamps, prepaid expenses, petty cash fund, refundable deposits and 
other investments which are initially and subsequently measured at historical cost at each 
reporting period.  
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Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are 
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are 
expensed to profit or loss as they are consumed in the operations or expire with the passage of 
time. 

Refundable deposits represent payments to supplier of services in cash. Deposits are recorded as 
assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. The amount is refundable upon termination of 
the service agreements. 

Other assets are derecognized when expensed or refunded by the Cooperative Bank. 

Impairment of Non-financial Assets 
The carrying amounts of investments, property and equipment, and right-of-use of assets are 
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from 
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less 
costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to 
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.  

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash 
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income in those 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since 
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statements of comprehensive 
income. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate 
the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life. 

Fair Value Measurements 
The Cooperative Bank measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: (a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
(b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Cooperative Bank.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best 
economic interest. 

The Cooperative Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Prepayments represent expenses not yet incurred but already paid in cash. Prepayments are 
initially recorded as assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. Subsequently, these are 
expensed to profit or loss as they are consumed in the operations or expire with the passage of 
time. 

Refundable deposits represent payments to supplier of services in cash. Deposits are recorded as 
assets and measured at the amount of cash paid. The amount is refundable upon termination of 
the service agreements. 

Other assets are derecognized when expensed or refunded by the Cooperative Bank. 

Impairment of Non-financial Assets 
The carrying amounts of investments, property and equipment, and right-of-use of assets are 
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of the asset is the greater of fair value 
less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from 
the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less 
costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to 
arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.  

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash 
inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income in those 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if 
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since 
the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is 
increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized 
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statements of comprehensive 
income. After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate 
the asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its 
remaining useful life. 

Fair Value Measurements 
The Cooperative Bank measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at 
fair value at each reporting date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: (a) in the principal market for the asset or liability; or 
(b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Cooperative Bank.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best 
economic interest. 

The Cooperative Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;
 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 
the Cooperative Bank determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing the categorization at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Cooperative Bank has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the 
level of the fair value hierarchy. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Cooperative Bank has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of past events; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and 
(c) a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where some or all of the
expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received. The amount recognized for the reimbursement shall not exceed
the amount of the provision. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. 

Members’ Equity 
Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. The share capital is 
presented as equity regardless of its features as prescribed by the Reporting Framework and the 
accounting requirements under the laws, rules, regulations, and principle promulgated by the 
CDA. This corresponds to the members’ contribution to the Cooperative Bank. All withdrawals of 
capital contributions are subject to the approval of the BOD. 

Dividends on equity are recognized when they are declared. 

Surplus free represents all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the profit 
or loss section of the statement of comprehensive income, reduced by the amounts of 
appropriated to surplus reserves and dividend declared, if any. 
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Surplus reserves/statutory reserves include all current and prior period results, net of interest on 
share capital and patronage refunds, as reported in the statement of comprehensive income. They 
are as follows:  

(a) General Reserve Fund – at least 10% of the Cooperative Bank’s net surplus is set aside
for the General Reserve Fund. This is to be used for the stability of the Cooperative
bank and to meet losses from its operations, if any. A corresponding fund should be
set up either in the form of time deposit with local banks or government securities.

(b) Education and Training Fund – An amount retained by the Cooperative Bank out of
the mandatory allocation as stipulated in the Cooperative Bank’s By-laws. It shall not
exceed 10% of the net surplus.

(c) Community Development Fund – This is computed at not less than 3% of Cooperative
Bank's net surplus. This is used for projects or activities that will benefit the
community where the Cooperative Bank operates.

(d) Optional Fund – Fund set aside from the net surplus for future use such as land and
building, community developments, etc. It shall not exceed 7% of the Cooperative
Bank’s net surplus.

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of services to the customer at 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Cooperative Bank expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those services. 

a) Interest on loans - Interest income on loans and discount with advanced interest and
service charges are recognized periodically using the effective interest method of
amortization. On the other hand, the Cooperative Bank recognizes interest income
and service charges on current loans not discounted with lump sum payment term and
other loan related income, only to the extent of cash collections received.

The Cooperative Bank shall only charge interest based on the outstanding balance of
a loan at the beginning of an interest period. For a loan where the principal is payable
in instalments, interest per instalment period shall be calculated based on the
outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each instalment period.

b) Other fees - Other fees deducted immediately from loan proceeds are immediately
recognized as income. On the other hand, other fees not automatically deducted from
loan proceeds are recognized as income when amortized using effective interest
method.

c) Interest income on bank deposits and held-to-maturity investments - Interest on bank
deposits and held-to-maturity investments are recognized using the accrual method.

d) Miscellaneous income - Miscellaneous income such as ID fees, membership fees, and
surcharges and penalties are recognized when received.
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Surplus reserves/statutory reserves include all current and prior period results, net of interest on 
share capital and patronage refunds, as reported in the statement of comprehensive income. They 
are as follows:  

(a) General Reserve Fund – at least 10% of the Cooperative Bank’s net surplus is set aside
for the General Reserve Fund. This is to be used for the stability of the Cooperative
bank and to meet losses from its operations, if any. A corresponding fund should be
set up either in the form of time deposit with local banks or government securities.

(b) Education and Training Fund – An amount retained by the Cooperative Bank out of
the mandatory allocation as stipulated in the Cooperative Bank’s By-laws. It shall not
exceed 10% of the net surplus.

(c) Community Development Fund – This is computed at not less than 3% of Cooperative
Bank's net surplus. This is used for projects or activities that will benefit the
community where the Cooperative Bank operates.

(d) Optional Fund – Fund set aside from the net surplus for future use such as land and
building, community developments, etc. It shall not exceed 7% of the Cooperative
Bank’s net surplus.

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized upon transfer of services to the customer at 
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Cooperative Bank expects to be entitled in 
exchange for those services. 

a) Interest on loans - Interest income on loans and discount with advanced interest and
service charges are recognized periodically using the effective interest method of
amortization. On the other hand, the Cooperative Bank recognizes interest income
and service charges on current loans not discounted with lump sum payment term and
other loan related income, only to the extent of cash collections received.

The Cooperative Bank shall only charge interest based on the outstanding balance of
a loan at the beginning of an interest period. For a loan where the principal is payable
in instalments, interest per instalment period shall be calculated based on the
outstanding balance of the loan at the beginning of each instalment period.

b) Other fees - Other fees deducted immediately from loan proceeds are immediately
recognized as income. On the other hand, other fees not automatically deducted from
loan proceeds are recognized as income when amortized using effective interest
method.

c) Interest income on bank deposits and held-to-maturity investments - Interest on bank
deposits and held-to-maturity investments are recognized using the accrual method.

d) Miscellaneous income - Miscellaneous income such as ID fees, membership fees, and
surcharges and penalties are recognized when received.
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Costs and Expenses 
Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss when a decrease in future economic benefit 
related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen that can be measured 
reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the following manner: 

 On the basis of a direct association between costs incurred and the earning of specific items
of income;

 On the basis of a systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are
expected to arise over several accounting periods and Bank with income can only be broadly
or indirectly determined; or

 Immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the
extent that, future economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in
the statement of financial position as an asset.

Employee Benefits 
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Cooperative Bank in exchange for 
services rendered by employees, including directors and management. 

Post-retirement Benefits Obligations 
The determination of the Cooperative Bank’s obligation and cost of post-employment defined 
benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such 
amounts. Those assumptions include, among other, discount rates, and expected salary rate 
increase. 

The retirement costs are determined on the basis of the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuarial 
cost method. This method reflects services rendered by employee to the date of valuation and 
incorporates assumptions concerning employees‟ projected salaries. Retirement costs include 
current service cost plus amortization of past service cost, experience adjustments, and changes 
in actuarial assumptions. 

The Cooperative Bank has made its own estimate of pension and other post-retirement benefits 
obligations as shown in Note 23. 

Short-term Employee Benefits 
The Cooperative Bank recognizes a liability, net of amounts already paid, and an expense for 
services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the 
Cooperative Bank to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, 
short-term compensated absences, bonuses, non-monetary benefits, and other short-term 
benefits. 

Income Tax 
The Cooperative Bank is a tax-exempt entity under Republic Act No. 9520, otherwise known as 
Philippine Cooperative Code of 2008. Under R.A. No. 9520 the Cooperative Bank is exempt from 
the payment of tax in respect to its registered operations. However, during the year, the 
Cooperative Bank has incurred transaction with non-members resulting to income subjected to 
tax as disclosed in Note 21. The Cooperative Bank identifies specific transaction with 
non-members and allocates its expenses in proportion to the ratio of income from non-members 
to total income. 

Tax is recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in OCI 
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is recognized in OCI or directly in equity, respectively. 

Current Income Tax. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the country where 
the Cooperative Bank operates and generates taxable income. 
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Related Parties 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control 
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and 
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common 
control and significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.  

Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements 
but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 

Events after the Reporting Date 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Cooperative Bank’s financial 
position at the reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post 
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements when material. 

4. Use of Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses reported in the financial statements
at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions
could result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the judgments and estimates
are revised and in any future period affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Cooperative Bank has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have an effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Determination whether an arrangement contains a lease. The Cooperative Bank assesses whether
an arrangement contains a lease based on PFRS 16, as disclosed in Note 3. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Cooperative Bank reassesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and
conditions of the contract are changed.

The details of these lease agreements are disclosed in Note 12.

Bank as lessee. The Cooperative Bank has entered into lease agreements as a lessee. Depreciation
of right-of-use of asset and interest expense on lease liability recognized in profit or loss are
disclosed in Note 12.

Classification of cost and expenses. The Cooperative Bank determines the classification of costs
and expenses as interest expense, impairment losses, and other operating expenses. Classification
of costs and expenses are determined on the basis of servicing activities of the Cooperative Bank.
All other costs and expenses are classified as other operating expenses.
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Related Parties 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control 
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and 
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common 
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at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these judgments, estimates and assumptions
could result in an outcome that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the affected asset or liability in the future.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Revisions are recognized in the period in which the judgments and estimates
are revised and in any future period affected.

Judgments
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Cooperative Bank has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have an effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Determination whether an arrangement contains a lease. The Cooperative Bank assesses whether
an arrangement contains a lease based on PFRS 16, as disclosed in Note 3. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Cooperative Bank reassesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and
conditions of the contract are changed.

The details of these lease agreements are disclosed in Note 12.

Bank as lessee. The Cooperative Bank has entered into lease agreements as a lessee. Depreciation
of right-of-use of asset and interest expense on lease liability recognized in profit or loss are
disclosed in Note 12.

Classification of cost and expenses. The Cooperative Bank determines the classification of costs
and expenses as interest expense, impairment losses, and other operating expenses. Classification
of costs and expenses are determined on the basis of servicing activities of the Cooperative Bank.
All other costs and expenses are classified as other operating expenses.
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Contingencies. The Cooperative Bank is currently involved in various pending claims and lawsuits 
which could be decided in favor of or against the Cooperative Bank. The Cooperative Bank’s 
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these pending claims and lawsuits has been 
developed in consultation with in-house as well as outside legal counsel handling the prosecution 
and defense of these matters and is based on an analysis of potential results. The Cooperative 
Bank currently does not believe that these pending claims and lawsuits will have a material 
adverse effect on its financial position and financial performance. It is possible, however, that 
future financial performance could be materially affected by the changes in the estimates or in 
the effectiveness of strategies relating to these proceedings. No accruals were made in relation 
to these proceedings (see Note 27). 

Estimates and Assumptions 
The key estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements are based upon the 
Cooperative Bank’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the date of the financial 
statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates. 

Fair value measurements. A number of the Cooperative Bank’s accounting policies and disclosures 
require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Cooperative Bank has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of 
fair values. This includes a valuation team that has the overall responsibility for overseeing all 
significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. The valuation team regularly 
reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is 
used to measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained to support 
the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of PFRS, including the level in the fair 
value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified. 

The Cooperative Bank uses market observable data when measuring the fair value of an asset or 
liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
inputs used in the valuation techniques (see Note 3). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability can be categorized in different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety 
in the same level of the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the entire measurement. 

The Cooperative Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end 
of the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values for both financial and 
non-financial assets and liabilities are discussed in Note 24. 

Allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost. The Cooperative Bank evaluates 
allowance on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors 
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Cooperative Bank’s relationship with the 
counterparties, the current credit status based on third party credit reports and known market 
forces, average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss experience. The amount 
and timing of the recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Cooperative Bank made 
different judgments or utilized different methodologies. An increase in the allowance for ECL 
would increase the recorded costs and expenses and decrease current assets. 

The allowance for ECL on loans and other receivables amounted to P=39.48 million and 
P=31.03 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 9). 

The carrying amounts of loans and other receivables amounted to P=412.07 million and 
P=353.23 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 9). 
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Estimated useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment 
property. The Cooperative Bank estimates the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures 
and equipment and investment property based on the period over which the assets are expected 
to be available for use. The estimated useful lives bank premises, furniture, fixtures and 
equipment and investment property are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations 
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial 
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. 

In addition, estimation of the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
and investment property is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical 
evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future financial 
performance could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in 
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be 
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives 
of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment would increase the recorded costs and 
expenses and decrease noncurrent assets. 

Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to 
P=13.56 million and P=17.59 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accumulated 
depreciation of property and equipment amounted to P=41.99 million and P=37.72 million as at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 11). 

Investment properties, net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to P=15.08 million and 
P=10.42 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accumulated depreciation of 
investment property amounted to P=0.27 million and P=0.09 million as at December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively (see Note 10). 

Impairment of non-financial assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed on 
investments, bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and right-of-use assets when 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
Determining the recoverable amounts of these assets requires the estimation of cash flows 
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. While 
it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial 
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may 
materially affect the assessment of recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment loss could 
have a material adverse impact on the financial performance. 

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The Cooperative Bank cannot readily 
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate 
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Cooperative Bank would 
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to 
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The 
IBR therefore reflects what the Cooperative Bank ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation 
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing 
transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease 
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Cooperative Bank 
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is 
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit 
rating). 

Retirement benefits. In determining the amount of obligation and cost of pension, certain 
assumptions are being considered. These assumptions include discount rates, and salary increase 
rates. Due to complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and long-term nature of 
these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed 
at each reporting date. 
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Estimated useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment and investment 
property. The Cooperative Bank estimates the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures 
and equipment and investment property based on the period over which the assets are expected 
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differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial 
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. 

In addition, estimation of the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 
and investment property is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical 
evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future financial 
performance could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in 
factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be 
affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives 
of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment would increase the recorded costs and 
expenses and decrease noncurrent assets. 

Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to 
P=13.56 million and P=17.59 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accumulated 
depreciation of property and equipment amounted to P=41.99 million and P=37.72 million as at 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 11). 

Investment properties, net of accumulated depreciation, amounted to P=15.08 million and 
P=10.42 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Accumulated depreciation of 
investment property amounted to P=0.27 million and P=0.09 million as at December 31, 2021 and 
2020, respectively (see Note 10). 

Impairment of non-financial assets. PFRS requires that an impairment review be performed on 
investments, bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment, and right-of-use assets when 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
Determining the recoverable amounts of these assets requires the estimation of cash flows 
expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets. While 
it is believed that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial 
statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may 
materially affect the assessment of recoverable amounts and any resulting impairment loss could 
have a material adverse impact on the financial performance. 

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate - The Cooperative Bank cannot readily 
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate 
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Cooperative Bank would 
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to 
obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The 
IBR therefore reflects what the Cooperative Bank ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation 
when no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing 
transactions) or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease 
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Cooperative Bank 
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is 
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit 
rating). 

Retirement benefits. In determining the amount of obligation and cost of pension, certain 
assumptions are being considered. These assumptions include discount rates, and salary increase 
rates. Due to complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and long-term nature of 
these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed 
at each reporting date. 
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While the Cooperative Bank believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, 
significant differences between actual experiences and assumptions may materially affect the 
cost of employee benefits and related obligations. 

The benefit expense and the present value of benefit obligation as at December31, 2021 and 2020 
are disclosed in Note 23. 

5. Cash on Hand

This account amounted to P=2.84 million and P=3.39 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Cash on hand represents the total amount of cash in the Cooperative Bank’s vault in the form of
Philippine currency notes and coins under the custody of the cashier including those in the
possession of the tellers.

6. Due from BSP

This account amounted to P=10.06 million and P=12.18 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

Due from BSP is a non-interest bearing deposit maintained with the BSP to meet reserve
requirements. As per BSP Circular No. 1092 Series of 2020, reserves against deposit liabilities for
cooperative banks shall be two percent (2%) for savings, time and demand deposits. On top of the
regular reserve requirements, legal reserves against peso demand deposits, savings, and time
deposit and deposit substitutes shall be zero percent (0%) for cooperative banks. As at
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank has satisfactorily complied with the reserve
requirements of the BSP.

7. Due from Other Banks

This account consists of:

2021 2020 
Demand deposit P=10,000 P=10,000 
Savings deposit 193,184,216 102,288,595 
Time deposit 81,670,988 66,637,694 

P=274,865,204 P=168,936,289 

Due from other banks represent deposits in various reputable local banks. These deposits earn 
interest with rates ranging from 0.25% to 5.50% in 2021 and 2020. 

Interest income amounted to P=5.73 million and P=4.99 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and 
is presented as part of interest income in the statement of comprehensive income. 
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8. Investments at Amortized Cost

This account consists of:

Note 2021 2020 
Land Bank of the Philippines 18 P=20,977,384 P=19,452,368 
Philippine National Bank 500,000 5,500,000 
Small Business Corporation - 589,449
Development Bank of the Philippines - 490,000

P=21,477,384 P=26,031,817 

The investments at amortized cost set account represents 100% risk free investment in treasury 
bonds and other floating rate treasury notes thru Land Bank of the Philippines. 

The interest rates range from 2.00% to 4.38% per annum with maturity of one (1) year to 10 years. 

Interest income recognized amounted to P=0.49 million and P=0.69 million in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively, and is presented as part of interest income in the statement of comprehensive 
income. 

The Cooperative Bank does not provide any allowance for credit losses as the management 
believes that these investments are reasonably collectible and their fair market values shall not 
be materially affected by the present economic behavior. 

The movement of investment at amortized cost is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balance P=26,031,817 P=40,208,562 
Availment 23,049,015 71,427,480 
Redemption (27,603,449) (85,604,225) 

P=21,477,384 P=26,031,817 

9. Loans and Other Receivables, Net

The account consists of the following:

2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 

Current loans P=381,423,548 P=339,748,409 
Past due loans 73,081,789 47,643,447 
Under litigation 5,043,365 4,807,183 
Total loans receivables 459,548,702 392,199,039 
Unamortized discounts (8,003,154) (7,940,808) 
Total loans receivables, net of discounts 451,545,548 384,258,231 
Other receivables: 

Accounts receivable 1,470,757 72,364 
Accrued interest receivable 732,925 1,202,056 

Total loans and other receivables, net of discounts 453,749,230 385,532,651 

Allowance for credit losses (39,478,790) (31,030,395) 

Total loans and other receivables, net P=414,270,440 P=354,502,256 

Past due ratio (gross) 17.00% 13.37%
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8. Investments at Amortized Cost
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Development Bank of the Philippines - 490,000

P=21,477,384 P=26,031,817 

The investments at amortized cost set account represents 100% risk free investment in treasury 
bonds and other floating rate treasury notes thru Land Bank of the Philippines. 
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Other receivables: 

Accounts receivable 1,470,757 72,364 
Accrued interest receivable 732,925 1,202,056 

Total loans and other receivables, net of discounts 453,749,230 385,532,651 
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Loans receivables earn interest income at interest rates ranging from 0% to 16% in 2021 and 
6% to 16% in2020. Total interest earned amounted to P=55.47 million and P=55.32 million in 2021 
and 2020, respectively. 

Accounts receivable represents various advances and payments subject to liquidation made by 
the Cooperative Bank to employees and receivables from Nation Link. 

BSP Memorandum 2020-061 states that BSP Supervised Financial Institutions (BSFIs) are expected 
to conduct a comprehensive assessment of the quality of its loan portfolio before applying for the 
relief to book the allowance for credit losses on a staggered basis. BSFIs should assess each loan 
account in determining allowance for credit losses. If assessment on an individual account basis 
is not feasible, the assessment should be done on a collective basis or at the portfolio level. 
Consistent with the provisions of the Guidelines on Credit Risk Management, the propriety and 
adequacy of allowance for credit losses should be independently reviewed. BSFIs may apply for 
approval of staggered booking of allowance credit losses until March 8, 2021. Upon receipt of BSP 
approval, BSFIs are expected to immediately book the amount of allowance for credit losses that 
should be recognized in the first year of the five-year period. 

On March 3, 2021, the Cooperative Bank submitted its application for staggered booking of 
allowance for credit losses. Details of the staggered booking are disclosed in Note 2. 

The changes in the allowance for credit losses for loans receivables are summarized below. 

2021 2020 
Balance at beginning of year P=31,030,395 P=27,183,842 
Provision for credit losses 13,568,333 8,661,753 
Write-off (2,839,471) (4,501,873) 
Reversal (2,280,467) (313,327) 

P=39,478,790 P=31,030,395 

Non-Performing Loans (NPLs) 
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, NPLs not fully covered by allowance for credit losses are as 
follows: 

2021 2020 
Total NPLs  P=60,292,777 P=51,876,616 
Less: NPLs covered by allowance for credit losses (36,756,993) (27,652,800) 

P=23,535,784 P=24,223,816 

BSP Circular 941 defined NPLs as follows: 

Loans, investments, receivables or any financial asset shall be considered non-performing, even 
without missed contractual payments, when it is considered impaired under existing accounting 
standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in litigation, and/or there is evidence that full repayment 
of principal and interest is unlikely without foreclosure of collateral. All other loans, even if not 
considered impaired, shall be considered non-performing if any principal and/or interest are 
unpaid for more than 90 days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more than 90 
days have been capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement. 

Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characteristics shall be considered non-
performing after contractual due date or after it has become past due. 

Restructured loans shall be considered non-performing. However, if prior to restructuring, the 
loans were categorized as performing, such classification shall be retained. 
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Information regarding the Cooperative Bank’s NPLs are as follows: 

2021 2020 
Ratio of gross NPLs to gross TLP 13.35% 13.50%
Ratio of net NPLs to gross TLP 5.21% 6.30%
Ratio of total allowance to gross NPLs 65.48% 59.82%
Ratio of specific allowance on the gross TLP to gross NPLs 60.96% 53.37%

Past Due Loans 
Past due loans of a bank shall, as a general rule, refer to all accounts in its loan portfolio, all 
receivable components of trading account securities and other receivables, which are not paid at 
maturity. 

BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks, Sec. 304, as amended by BSP Circular 941, defined the 
classification of past due loans as follows: 

As a general rule, loans, investments, receivables, or any financial asset, including restructured 
loans, shall be considered past due when any principal and/or interest or instalment due, or 
portions thereof, are not paid at their contractual date, in which case, the total outstanding 
balance thereof shall be considered past due. 

Instalment refers to principal and/or interest amortizations that are due on several dates as 
indicated in the loan documents. The allowance for loan losses is the estimated amount of losses 
in the Cooperative Bank’s loan portfolio, based on evaluation of the collectibility of loans and 
prior loss experiences. 

Any amounts set aside in respect of losses on loans and advances in addition to those losses that 
have been specifically identified or potential losses which experience indicates to be present in 
the portfolio of loans and advances are accounted for as appropriations from retained earnings. 
Any credits resulting from the reduction of such amounts result in an increase in retained earnings 
and are not included in the determination of net profit or loss for the period. 

The allowance is increased by provisions charged to expenses and reduced by write-offs and 
reversals. 
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Information regarding the Cooperative Bank’s NPLs are as follows: 
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10. Investment Properties, Net

This account consists of the following:

Note Land Building Total 

Cost 
At January 1, 2020, as previously reported P=7,024,399 P=371,731 P=7,396,130 
Prior period adjustments 28 5,870,001 128,982 5,998,983 
At January 1, 2020, as restated 12,894,400 500,713 13,395,113 
Disposal and other adjustments (947,950) 45,691 (902,259) 

At December 31, 2020 11,946,450 546,404 12,492,854 
Additions 3,395,570 2,915,589 6,311,159 
Disposal (1,015,866) (91,047) (1,106,913) 
At December 31, 2021 14,326,154 3,370,946 17,697,100 

Accumulated depreciation 

At January 1, 2020, as previously reported - 38,398 38,398 
Prior period adjustments 28 - 2,697 2,697 
At January 1, 2020, as restated 41,095 41,095 
Depreciation 20 - 45,660 45,660 

At December 31, 2020 - 86,755 86,755 
Depreciation 20 - 178,712 178,712 
At December 31, 2021 - 265,467 265,467 

Accumulated impairment 
At January 1, 2020, as previously reported - - - 
Prior period adjustments 28 41,700 - 41,700
At January 1, 2020, as restated 41,700 - 41,700
Impairment 20 1,945,674 - 1,945,674
At December 31, 2020 1,987,374 - 1,987,374
Impairment 20 359,500 - 359,500
At December 31, 2021 2,346,874 - 2,346,874

Carrying amount 

At December 31, 2021 P=11,979,280 P=3,105,479 P=15,084,759 

At December 31, 2020 P=9,959,076 P=459,649 P=10,418,725 

The Cooperative Bank sold several properties with carrying amounts of P=1.11 million and 
P=1.16 million recognizing gain on sale of P=2.46 million and P=2.04 million in 2021 and 2020, 
respectively (see Note 19). 

In 2021, the Cooperative Bank foreclosed properties amounting to P=6.31 million recognizing a 
non-cash unrealized gain on foreclosure of P=3.12 million (see Note 19). In addition, the 
Cooperative Bank recorded non-cash adjustments on investment properties to comply with the 
requirements of PFRS with expenses amounting to P=0.51 million and P=1.95 million in 2021 and 
2020 statements of comprehensive income, respectively. 

The Cooperative Bank carried out a review of the recoverable amounts of its investment properties. 
Fair values of the Cooperative Bank’s investment properties have been determined by the 
accredited or in-house appraisers on the basis of recent sales of similar property in the same area 
where the investment property is located, which have been adjusted for differences in key 
attributes such as property size, zoning, accessibility, etc., taking into account the economic 
conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made, and are therefore within Level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy. The fair value of investment properties amounted to P=19.57 million and 
P=16.66 million as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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11. Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Net

The composition and movement of this account are as follows:

2021 

Land Building 
Furniture, fixtures 

and equipment Transportation equipment Leasehold improvement Total 
Cost 

At January 1 P=4,150,000 P=16,700,758 P=21,430,550 P=10,426,232 P=2,600,759 P=55,308,299 
Addition – – 1,145,633 177,648 – 1,323,281
Disposal – – (948,524) (136,950) – (1,085,474)
At December 31 4,150,000 16,700,758 21,627,659 10,466,930 2,600,759 55,546,106 

Accumulated Depreciation 
At January 1 – 10,967,114 17,519,777 6,821,657 2,411,694 37,720,242 
Depreciation – 1,233,767 2,150,076 1,831,684 136,818 5,352,345 
Disposal – – (946,689) (136,948) – (1,083,637)
At December 31 – 12,200,881 18,723,164 8,516,393 2,548,512 41,988,950 

Net carrying amount P=4,150,000 P=4,499,877 P=2,904,495 P=1,950,537 P=52,247 P=13,557,156 

2020 

Land Building 
Furniture, fixtures 

and equipment Transportation equipment Leasehold improvement Total 
Cost 

At January 1 P=4,150,000 P=16,700,758 P=23,018,292 P=10,655,650 P=2,600,759 P=57,125,459 
Addition – – 717,065 301,300 – 1,018,365
Disposal – – (2,307,628) (380,050) – (2,687,678)
Adjustment – – 2,821 (150,668) – (147,847)
At December 31 4,150,000 16,700,758 21,430,550 10,426,232 2,600,759 55,308,299 

Accumulated Depreciation 
At January 1 – 9,733,347 17,508,905 5,473,728 2,166,320 34,882,300 
Depreciation – 1,233,767 2,313,495 1,878,640 245,374 5,671,276 
Disposal – – (2,275,293) (380,047) (2,655,340) 
Adjustment – – (27,330) (150,664) – (177,994)
At December 31 – 10,967,114 17,519,777 6,821,657 2,411,694 37,720,242 

Net carrying amount P=4,150,000 P=5,733,644 P=3,910,773 P=3,604,575 P=189,065 P=17,588,057 

The Cooperative Bank disposed property and equipment with carrying amounts of P=1,837 and P=32,338 resulting to recognition of gain on disposal 
amounting to P=52,974 and P=110,099 in 2021 and 2020, respectively (Note 19). 
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11. Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment, Net

The composition and movement of this account are as follows:

2021 

Land Building 
Furniture, fixtures 

and equipment Transportation equipment Leasehold improvement Total 
Cost 

At January 1 P=4,150,000 P=16,700,758 P=21,430,550 P=10,426,232 P=2,600,759 P=55,308,299 
Addition – – 1,145,633 177,648 – 1,323,281
Disposal – – (948,524) (136,950) – (1,085,474)
At December 31 4,150,000 16,700,758 21,627,659 10,466,930 2,600,759 55,546,106 

Accumulated Depreciation 
At January 1 – 10,967,114 17,519,777 6,821,657 2,411,694 37,720,242 
Depreciation – 1,233,767 2,150,076 1,831,684 136,818 5,352,345 
Disposal – – (946,689) (136,948) – (1,083,637)
At December 31 – 12,200,881 18,723,164 8,516,393 2,548,512 41,988,950 

Net carrying amount P=4,150,000 P=4,499,877 P=2,904,495 P=1,950,537 P=52,247 P=13,557,156 

2020 

Land Building 
Furniture, fixtures 

and equipment Transportation equipment Leasehold improvement Total 
Cost 

At January 1 P=4,150,000 P=16,700,758 P=23,018,292 P=10,655,650 P=2,600,759 P=57,125,459 
Addition – – 717,065 301,300 – 1,018,365
Disposal – – (2,307,628) (380,050) – (2,687,678)
Adjustment – – 2,821 (150,668) – (147,847)
At December 31 4,150,000 16,700,758 21,430,550 10,426,232 2,600,759 55,308,299 

Accumulated Depreciation 
At January 1 – 9,733,347 17,508,905 5,473,728 2,166,320 34,882,300 
Depreciation – 1,233,767 2,313,495 1,878,640 245,374 5,671,276 
Disposal – – (2,275,293) (380,047) (2,655,340) 
Adjustment – – (27,330) (150,664) – (177,994)
At December 31 – 10,967,114 17,519,777 6,821,657 2,411,694 37,720,242 

Net carrying amount P=4,150,000 P=5,733,644 P=3,910,773 P=3,604,575 P=189,065 P=17,588,057 

The Cooperative Bank disposed property and equipment with carrying amounts of P=1,837 and P=32,338 resulting to recognition of gain on disposal 
amounting to P=52,974 and P=110,099 in 2021 and 2020, respectively (Note 19). 
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As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the cost of fully-depreciated furniture, fixtures and equipment 
still in use by the Cooperative Bank amounted to P=16.62 million and P=12.93 million, respectively. 

Management believes that there are no indications of impairment in the value of its bank 
premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

As per Section 109 of the MORB, the total investment of the banks in real estate and 
improvements, thereon, including bank equipment, shall not exceed 50% of the bank’s net worth. 
The Cooperative Bank is compliant with aforementioned investment limit as at December 31, 2021 
and 2020. 

12. Leases

Bank as a Lessee
The Cooperative Bank entered into several lease agreements for the lease of land and building
for its branches. The lease obligation is subject to an IBR ranging from 2.38%- 6.99% in 2021 and
2020.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Beginning balance P=1,529,814 P=786,676 
Additions 3,027,703 1,490,180 
Accretion of interest 138,581 43,975 
Payments (947,028) (791,017) 

Ending Balance P=3,749,070 P=1,529,814 

Right-of-use assets 

Movements of right-of-use assets follow: 

2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Cost 
Beginning balance P=2,959,238 P=1,469,059 
Additions 3,027,703 1,490,179 
Ending balance 5,986,941 2,959,238 
Accumulated depreciation 
Beginning balance 1,420,133 699,897 
Depreciation 894,544 720,236 
Ending balance 2,314,677 1,420,133 

Carrying amount P=3,672,264 P=1,539,105 

The Cooperative Bank recorded non-cash adjustments on leases to comply with the requirements 
of PFRS with expenses amounting to P=0.02 million and income amounting to P=0.15 million in 2021 
and 2020 statements of comprehensive income, respectively. 
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The future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Not later than one year P=979,044 P=620,177 
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,121,145 1,134,886 

P=4,100,189 P=1,755,063 

13. Other Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Sinking fund P=14,119,751 P=12,496,934 
Other funds and deposit 13,292,949 13,093,094 
Stationery and supplies 516,979 721,745 
Prepaid expenses 277,873 259,518 
Dividends receivable 127,148 127,148 
Petty cash 5,000 5,000 
Documentary/postage stamps - 10,000
Miscellaneous assets 579,619 522,235

P=28,919,319 P=27,235,674 

Other funds and deposits refer to restricted funds set aside for funding of statutory and other 
reserves such as members' benefit and other funds. This maybe in the form of time deposit or 
other securities which may be convertible to cash when needed. 

Sinking fund pertains to fund set aside for settlement of retirement benefits of employees. 

14. Deposit Liabilities

This account consists of:

2021 2020 
Savings  P=210,874,210 P=141,905,854 
Time deposits 283,086,584 269,251,068 

P=493,960,794 P=411,156,922 

Savings deposits earn annual interest rates ranging from 0% to 0.50% in 2021 and 2020. Time 
deposits earn annual interest rates ranging from 0.0275% to 5.00% and have maturity dates ranging 
from 90 – 365 days in 2021 and 2020. 

Interest expense amounted to P=11.21 million and P=12.36 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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The future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Not later than one year P=979,044 P=620,177 
Later than one year and not later than five years 3,121,145 1,134,886 

P=4,100,189 P=1,755,063 

13. Other Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Sinking fund P=14,119,751 P=12,496,934 
Other funds and deposit 13,292,949 13,093,094 
Stationery and supplies 516,979 721,745 
Prepaid expenses 277,873 259,518 
Dividends receivable 127,148 127,148 
Petty cash 5,000 5,000 
Documentary/postage stamps - 10,000
Miscellaneous assets 579,619 522,235

P=28,919,319 P=27,235,674 

Other funds and deposits refer to restricted funds set aside for funding of statutory and other 
reserves such as members' benefit and other funds. This maybe in the form of time deposit or 
other securities which may be convertible to cash when needed. 

Sinking fund pertains to fund set aside for settlement of retirement benefits of employees. 

14. Deposit Liabilities

This account consists of:

2021 2020 
Savings  P=210,874,210 P=141,905,854 
Time deposits 283,086,584 269,251,068 

P=493,960,794 P=411,156,922 

Savings deposits earn annual interest rates ranging from 0% to 0.50% in 2021 and 2020. Time 
deposits earn annual interest rates ranging from 0.0275% to 5.00% and have maturity dates ranging 
from 90 – 365 days in 2021 and 2020. 

Interest expense amounted to P=11.21 million and P=12.36 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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15. Bills Payable

Movements of this account follow:

2021 2020 
Beginning P=51,272,512 P=11,555,477 
Availments 81,171,344 50,137,700 
Payments (8,119,033) (10,420,665) 

Ending P=124,324,823 P=51,272,512 

Interest rate on bills payable ranges from 0.00% to 2.00% and maturities ranging from 2 – 5 years 
in 2021 and 2020. Interest expense incurred amounted to P=0.06 million and P=0.18 million in 2021 
and 2020, respectively, and is presented as part of interest expense in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 

16. Accrued Interest, Taxes and Other Expenses Payable

This account consists of:

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated– 

Note 28 
Accrued interest payable P=4,149,684 P=4,207,533 
Accrued taxes and other expenses payable 909,465 881,106 

P=5,059,149 P=5,088,639 

Accrued interest payable represents interest due on deposits and bills payable of the Cooperative 
Bank. 

Accrued other expenses payable are period-end expenses payable on the following year. 

17. Other Liabilities

This account consists of:

Note 2021 2020 
Deposit for stock subscription 18 P=11,538,621 P=9,197 
Retirement benefits obligation 22 12,529,006 9,558,768 
Dividends payable 18 8,613,697 14,172,625 
Accounts payable 3,948,375 6,000,067 
Redeemable preferred share 3,130,300 3,130,300 
Due to Union/Federation (CETF) 1,370,951 1,215,731 
SSS, Medicare and Pag-ibig contribution 308,385 295,696 
Withholding tax payable 147,564 136,629 
Documentary stamps payable - 15,889
Miscellaneous payable 1,434,502 2,684,861

P=43,021,401 P=37,219,763 

Deposit for stock subscription amounting to P=11.54 million and P=9,197 as at December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively, did not meet all the requirements disclosed in Note 18 to be classified as 
equity, thus, classified as liability. 
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Retirement benefits obligation represents liability recognized by the Cooperative Bank for the 
benefit of its officers and employees upon reaching their retirement age, as disclosed in Note 22. 

Accounts payable are various non-interest bearing liabilities incurred by the Cooperative Bank for 
its own account arising from short term obligations 

Miscellaneous payable represents various banks liabilities and/or credit accounts, pending 
management resolution and/or settlement thereof. 

18. Members’ Equity

Preferred Shares
The preference share capital of the Cooperative Bank gives priority in the distribution of the
assets of the corporation in case in liquidation. As to dividend, preferred shares are entitled to
receive dividends on the said shares to the extent agreed upon before any others at all are paid
to ordinary shareholders. Preferred shares are non-cumulative and non-participating. As to voting
rights, preference shareholders are not entitled to vote in the normal course of business and
decision making of the Cooperative Bank.

Under Circular 854 dated October 29, 2014, Cooperative Banks with Head Office in all other areas
outside NCR and with not more than 10 branches are required to comply with the minimum capital
of P=30 million within five (5) years. A capital build up program is also required to be submitted
to the BSP within one (1) year from date of the circular's effectivity.

Shown below are the details on the movements of preferred shares.

2021 2020 
Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Authorized at P=1,000 par value 
Preferred A 500 P=500,000 500 P=500,000 
Preferred B 2,000 2,000,000 2,000 2,000,000 
Preferred C 1,000 1,000,000 1,000 1,000,000 
Preferred D 8,500 8,500,000 8,500 8,500,000 
Preferred E 10,000 10,000,000 10,000 10,000,000 

22,000 P=22,000,000 22,000 P=22,000,000 

Issued and fully paid at P=1,000 
par value 
Balance, January 1 12,058 P=12,058,000 9,751 P=9,751,000 
Issuances 343 343,000 2,306 2,305,750 
Transfer from deposit for stock 

subscription - - 1 1,250 

Balance, December 31 12,401 P=12,401,000 12,058 P=12,058,000 

Preferred Shares “A” 

(a) Issued only against investments of the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) in the
share capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over common shares in
the assets of the Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the DBP of its preferred shares to those qualified
to be members of the Cooperative Bank, such shares shall automatically become common
shares with voting rights, thereby reducing the number of outstanding preferred shares
“A” and increasing the number of outstanding common shares.
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Retirement benefits obligation represents liability recognized by the Cooperative Bank for the 
benefit of its officers and employees upon reaching their retirement age, as disclosed in Note 22. 

Accounts payable are various non-interest bearing liabilities incurred by the Cooperative Bank for 
its own account arising from short term obligations 

Miscellaneous payable represents various banks liabilities and/or credit accounts, pending 
management resolution and/or settlement thereof. 

18. Members’ Equity

Preferred Shares
The preference share capital of the Cooperative Bank gives priority in the distribution of the
assets of the corporation in case in liquidation. As to dividend, preferred shares are entitled to
receive dividends on the said shares to the extent agreed upon before any others at all are paid
to ordinary shareholders. Preferred shares are non-cumulative and non-participating. As to voting
rights, preference shareholders are not entitled to vote in the normal course of business and
decision making of the Cooperative Bank.

Under Circular 854 dated October 29, 2014, Cooperative Banks with Head Office in all other areas
outside NCR and with not more than 10 branches are required to comply with the minimum capital
of P=30 million within five (5) years. A capital build up program is also required to be submitted
to the BSP within one (1) year from date of the circular's effectivity.

Shown below are the details on the movements of preferred shares.

2021 2020 
Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Authorized at P=1,000 par value 
Preferred A 500 P=500,000 500 P=500,000 
Preferred B 2,000 2,000,000 2,000 2,000,000 
Preferred C 1,000 1,000,000 1,000 1,000,000 
Preferred D 8,500 8,500,000 8,500 8,500,000 
Preferred E 10,000 10,000,000 10,000 10,000,000 

22,000 P=22,000,000 22,000 P=22,000,000 

Issued and fully paid at P=1,000 
par value 
Balance, January 1 12,058 P=12,058,000 9,751 P=9,751,000 
Issuances 343 343,000 2,306 2,305,750 
Transfer from deposit for stock 

subscription - - 1 1,250 

Balance, December 31 12,401 P=12,401,000 12,058 P=12,058,000 

Preferred Shares “A” 

(a) Issued only against investments of the Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP) in the
share capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over common shares in
the assets of the Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the DBP of its preferred shares to those qualified
to be members of the Cooperative Bank, such shares shall automatically become common
shares with voting rights, thereby reducing the number of outstanding preferred shares
“A” and increasing the number of outstanding common shares.
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(c) When the preferred shares “A” of the Cooperative Bank have been sold to
member-cooperatives, the Articles of Cooperation of the Cooperative Bank shall be
amended to reflect the conversion of preferred shares “A” and increasing the number of
outstanding common shares.

(d) Shall be entitled to dividend distribution at two percent (2%) without preference. The
amount of any dividends payable to any holder of share may be applied to the repayment
of the shareholder indebtedness to the Cooperative Bank.

Preferred Shares “B” 

(a) Issued only against investments of the Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) in the share
capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over common shares in the
assets of the Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the LBP to those qualified to be members of the
Cooperative Bank, such shares shall automatically become common shares with voting
rights, thereby reducing the number of outstanding preferred shares “B” and increasing
the number of outstanding common shares.

(c) Entitled to preference as to profits before any cash/stock dividends are declared and paid
out to holders or owners of the common prior to approval of the BSP fixed at the rate as
stipulated in a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) executed by LBP and Cooperative Bank.

(d) Convertible into common shares after the tenth year at the same par value as before
conversion. The Articles of Cooperation of Cooperative Bank shall be amended to reflect
the conversion of said preferred shares into common shares.

(e) Maybe sold at par value to: (1) existing members in proportion of their shareholdings;
(2) any interested party qualified to be a member of the Cooperative Bank if the shares
are not redeemed and/or purchased by the Cooperative Bank members after the tenth
year.

(f) Redeemable in part or in full at any time within the ten (10) year period, provided that
at said redemption shall not diminish the paid-up capital level or the required minimum
capital whichever is higher.

(g) No retirement or purchase by the Cooperative Bank of the shares subscribed by its
members shall be made unless equal amount of preferred shares is retired or purchased
as long as the LBP holds such shares in the Cooperative Bank.

Preferred Shares “C” 

(a) Issued only against investments of any government lending institution/organization or
agencies in the share capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over
common shares in the assets of the Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the government lending institution/ organization
or agencies to those qualified to be members of the Cooperative Bank, such shares shall
automatically become common shares with voting rights, thereby reducing the number of
outstanding preferred shares “C” and increasing the number of outstanding common
shares.

(c) Shall be entitled to an interest on share capital as stipulated in the MOA, subject to the
declaration of interest on common shares.

(d) Redeemable in part or in full at any time provided that it shall not diminish the paid-up
capital level existing at the time of said redemption.
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Preferred Shares “D” 

(a) Issued only against investment of any natural persons in the share capital of the
Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over common shares in the assets of the
Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the natural person to qualified members of the
Cooperative Bank, such shares with voting rights shall reduce the number of outstanding
preferred shares and increase the number of outstanding commons shares, the Articles of
Cooperation of Cooperative Bank shall be amended to reflect the conversion of preferred
share “D” into common shares.

(c) Non-cumulative and shall be entitled to dividends on share capital, and shall have
preference over the common shares in the distribution of dividends, is may be declared
by the BOD, approved by the General Assembly and confirmed by the BSP.

(d) No retirement or purchases by the Cooperative Bank of the shares of the natural person
shall be made unless the equal amount of preferred shares “D” is retired or purchased,
as long as the natural persons holds such shares in the Cooperative Bank; provided such
preferred shares shall not be purchased by any of the Cooperative Bank ’s related party
which it has control or significantly influence to purchase preferred shares “D”.

(e) Shall be perpetual and non-redeemable.

Preferred Shares “E” 

(a) Issued only against investment of the member coops and Samahang Nayons (SNs) in the
share capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference in the assets of the
Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the member coops and SNs to qualified members
of the Cooperative Bank, such shares shall automatically become common shares with
voting rights, thereby reducing the number of outstanding preferred shares “D” and
increasing the number of outstanding common shares. The Articles of Cooperation of
Cooperative Bank shall be amended to reflect the conversion of preferred share “E” into
common shares.

(c) Non-cumulative and shall be entitled to dividends on share capital, and shall have
preference over the common shares in the distribution of dividends, is may be declared
by the BOD, approved by the General Assembly and confirmed by the BSP

(d) No retirement or purchases by the Cooperative Bank of the shares of the natural person
shall be made unless the equal amount of preferred shares ‘E’ is retired or purchased, as
long as the natural persons holds such shares in the CBNV; provided such preferred shares
shall not be purchased by any of the Cooperative Bank’s related party which has control
or significantly influence to purchase such preferred shares.

(e) Shall be perpetual and non-redeemable.

Ordinary Shares 
The ordinary shareholders of the Cooperative Bank are given less priority as to assets liquidation 
compared to outside creditors and preferred shareholders. Ordinary shares are given equal rights 
and preference as among ordinary shareholders. The availability of dividends shall be determined 
by the net income after deducting any restriction for reserve requirements and preferred 
dividends, if any. 
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Preferred Shares “D” 

(a) Issued only against investment of any natural persons in the share capital of the
Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference over common shares in the assets of the
Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the natural person to qualified members of the
Cooperative Bank, such shares with voting rights shall reduce the number of outstanding
preferred shares and increase the number of outstanding commons shares, the Articles of
Cooperation of Cooperative Bank shall be amended to reflect the conversion of preferred
share “D” into common shares.

(c) Non-cumulative and shall be entitled to dividends on share capital, and shall have
preference over the common shares in the distribution of dividends, is may be declared
by the BOD, approved by the General Assembly and confirmed by the BSP.

(d) No retirement or purchases by the Cooperative Bank of the shares of the natural person
shall be made unless the equal amount of preferred shares “D” is retired or purchased,
as long as the natural persons holds such shares in the Cooperative Bank; provided such
preferred shares shall not be purchased by any of the Cooperative Bank ’s related party
which it has control or significantly influence to purchase preferred shares “D”.

(e) Shall be perpetual and non-redeemable.

Preferred Shares “E” 

(a) Issued only against investment of the member coops and Samahang Nayons (SNs) in the
share capital of the Cooperative Bank, and shall have preference in the assets of the
Cooperative Bank in the event of liquidation.

(b) Non-voting. However, in case of sale by the member coops and SNs to qualified members
of the Cooperative Bank, such shares shall automatically become common shares with
voting rights, thereby reducing the number of outstanding preferred shares “D” and
increasing the number of outstanding common shares. The Articles of Cooperation of
Cooperative Bank shall be amended to reflect the conversion of preferred share “E” into
common shares.

(c) Non-cumulative and shall be entitled to dividends on share capital, and shall have
preference over the common shares in the distribution of dividends, is may be declared
by the BOD, approved by the General Assembly and confirmed by the BSP

(d) No retirement or purchases by the Cooperative Bank of the shares of the natural person
shall be made unless the equal amount of preferred shares ‘E’ is retired or purchased, as
long as the natural persons holds such shares in the CBNV; provided such preferred shares
shall not be purchased by any of the Cooperative Bank’s related party which has control
or significantly influence to purchase such preferred shares.

(e) Shall be perpetual and non-redeemable.

Ordinary Shares 
The ordinary shareholders of the Cooperative Bank are given less priority as to assets liquidation 
compared to outside creditors and preferred shareholders. Ordinary shares are given equal rights 
and preference as among ordinary shareholders. The availability of dividends shall be determined 
by the net income after deducting any restriction for reserve requirements and preferred 
dividends, if any. 
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Shown below are the details on the movements of common shares. 

2021 2020 
Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Authorized at P=1,000 par value 38,000 P=38,000,000 38,000 P=38,000,000 

Issued and fully paid at P=1,000 par value 
Balance, January 1 36,034 P=36,034,000 34,207 P=34,207,000 
Transfer from deposit for stock 

subscription - - - - 
Issuances 222 222,000 1,827 1,827,000 

Balance, December 31 36,256 P=36,256,000 36,034 P=36,034,000 

Additional Paid-In Capital 
Additional paid-in capital amounted to P=2.00 million for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 
2020. 

Stock Dividends Distributable 
This account consists of: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balance P=8,610,771 P=– 
Patronage refund 518,557 8,513,008 
Reclassification to surplus free (236,496) – 
Adjustments - 97,763

P=8,892,832 P=8,610,771 

Deposit for Stock Subscription 
In 2020, the Cooperative Bank has complied with all the requirements in classifying the deposit 
for stock subscription as an equity as follows: 

(a) The deposit for stock subscription shall not be interest-bearing nor withdrawable by the
subscriber;

(b) The Cooperative Bank’s existing authorized capital is already fully subscribed;
(c) The Cooperative Bank’s members and board of directors have approved the proposed

increase in authorized capital;
(d) The Cooperative Bank has filed an application for the amendment of its articles of

cooperation for the increase in authorized capital with the appropriate department of
the Bangko Sentral, duly supported by complete documents as prescribed by the Bangko
Sentral. Applications for the amendment of articles of incorporation for the increase in
authorized capital, which have been returned due to insufficiency of supporting
documents, shall not qualify for recognition as an equity instrument; and

(e) The Cooperative Bank must have obtained approval of the Monetary Board on transactions
involving significant ownership of voting shares of stock by any person, natural or
juridical, or by one group of persons as provided in Sec. 122 of MORB (Transactions
involving voting shares of stocks, Item “b”), if applicable.

In 2021, the Cooperative Bank’s application for the increase in authorized capital stock was 
returned due to the new template issued by the BSP. Deposit for stock subscription amounting to 
P=8.99 million was reclassified as part of ‘Other Liabilities’ (see Note 17). 
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The movement of deposit for stock subscription follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balances P=8,988,470 P=18,720 
Additional subscription - 8,971,000
Reclassification (8,988,470) (1,250) 

P=- P=8,988,470 

Surplus Free 
Movements of this account follow: 

2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Beginning balance P=32,653,033 P=51,234,578 
Net income for the year 8,270,553 776,738 
Appropriations during the year (1,704,302) (771,048) 
Patronage refund (518,557) (8,513,008) 
Dividends declared (475,619) (10,074,227) 
Adjustments 450,903 - 

P=38,676,011 P=32,653,033 

Surplus Reserves/Statutory Funds 
Details and movements of this account follow: 

2021 

Beginning Appropriations 
Expenditures 

and reclass Ending 
General reserve fund P=8,121,452 P=568,101 P=644 P=8,690,197 
Optional fund 3,209,332 397,670 451 3,607,453 
Reserved for retirement of preferred 

shares 3,130,300 - - 3,130,300 
Reserved for CETF 639,193 568,101 (408,709) 798,585 
Reserved for corporate social 

responsibility 77,295 170,430 (68,282) 179,443 

P=15,177,572 P=1,704,302 (P=475,896) P=16,405,978 

2020 

Beginning Appropriations 
Expenditures 

and reclass Ending 
General reserve fund P=7,864,436 P=257,016 P=- P=8,121,452 
Optional fund 3,666,321 179,911 (636,900) 3,209,332 
Reserved for retirement of preferred 

shares 3,130,300 - - 3,130,300 
Reserved for CETF 660,165 257,016 (277,988) 639,193 
Reserved for corporate social 

responsibility 600,853 77,105 (600,663) 77,295 
Reserved for stock dividends 98,100 - (98,100) - 

P=16,020,175 P=771,048 (P=1,613,651) P=15,177,572 
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The movement of deposit for stock subscription follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balances P=8,988,470 P=18,720 
Additional subscription - 8,971,000
Reclassification (8,988,470) (1,250) 

P=- P=8,988,470 

Surplus Free 
Movements of this account follow: 

2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Beginning balance P=32,653,033 P=51,234,578 
Net income for the year 8,270,553 776,738 
Appropriations during the year (1,704,302) (771,048) 
Patronage refund (518,557) (8,513,008) 
Dividends declared (475,619) (10,074,227) 
Adjustments 450,903 - 

P=38,676,011 P=32,653,033 

Surplus Reserves/Statutory Funds 
Details and movements of this account follow: 

2021 

Beginning Appropriations 
Expenditures 

and reclass Ending 
General reserve fund P=8,121,452 P=568,101 P=644 P=8,690,197 
Optional fund 3,209,332 397,670 451 3,607,453 
Reserved for retirement of preferred 

shares 3,130,300 - - 3,130,300 
Reserved for CETF 639,193 568,101 (408,709) 798,585 
Reserved for corporate social 

responsibility 77,295 170,430 (68,282) 179,443 

P=15,177,572 P=1,704,302 (P=475,896) P=16,405,978 

2020 

Beginning Appropriations 
Expenditures 

and reclass Ending 
General reserve fund P=7,864,436 P=257,016 P=- P=8,121,452 
Optional fund 3,666,321 179,911 (636,900) 3,209,332 
Reserved for retirement of preferred 

shares 3,130,300 - - 3,130,300 
Reserved for CETF 660,165 257,016 (277,988) 639,193 
Reserved for corporate social 

responsibility 600,853 77,105 (600,663) 77,295 
Reserved for stock dividends 98,100 - (98,100) - 

P=16,020,175 P=771,048 (P=1,613,651) P=15,177,572 
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Capital Risk Management 
The primary objective of the Cooperative Bank’s capital management is to ensure that it complies 
with externally imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy 
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholder’s value. 

The Cooperative Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of 
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain 
or adjust the capital structure, the Cooperative Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment 
to shareholders, return capital, or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the 
objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. 

The following table shows the required regulatory capital analysis (in millions): 

2021 2020 
Tier 1 capital  P=99.103 P=102.767 
Tier 2 capital 5.852 6.472 
Total qualifying capital P=104.955 P=109.239 

Risk-weighted assets P=682.189 P=587.065 

Tier 1 capital ratio 14.53% 17.51% 

Total capital ratio 15.39% 18.61% 

Under existing BSP regulations, the determination of the Cooperative Bank’s compliance with 
regulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the Cooperative Bank’s unimpaired 
capital (regulatory net worth) as reported to the BSP, which is determined on the basis of 
regulatory accounting policies which differ from PFRS in some aspects. 

Under existing banking regulations, the combined capital accounts of each bank should not be 
less than an amount equal to 10% of its risk assets. Risk-weighted assets are defined as total assets 
less cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out on or assignment of deposits, loans 
or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by margin deposits and other non-
risk items determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP. 

19. Other Operating Income

This account consists of the following:

Note 2021 2020 
Penalty charges P=8,310,557 P=6,029,922 
Bank commission 2,663,700 2,303,157 
Gain from sale/derecognition of assets 10,11 2,512,544 2,152,625 
Gain on foreclosure of investment properties 10 3,122,749 - 
Inspection fees 1,632,563 1,628,217 
Recovery on charged-off assets 2,699,960 618,925 
Rental income 245,688 193,569 
Miscellaneous income 4,287,330 2,164,347 

P=25,475,091 P=15,090,762 

Recovery on charged-off assets pertains to income collected from previously written-off assets or 
those accounts provided with allowance. 
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Gain from sale/derecognition of assets consists of the following: 

Note 2021 2020 
Investment properties 10 P=2,459,570 P=2,042,526 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 11 52,974 110,099 

P=2,512,544 P=2,152,625 

Miscellaneous income composed of other income related to loans. 

20. Other Operating Expenses

This account consists of the following:

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Personnel costs P=33,655,705 P=32,208,749 
Depreciation 10,11,12 6,425,601 6,437,172 
Security, messenger and janitor services 1,953,768 1,935,873 
Management and other professional fees 1,406,619 629,595 
Insurance expenses 1,343,294 1,522,077 
Fuel, oil and lubricants 1,261,324 1,073,877 
Taxes and licenses 1,119,334 1,550,263 
Representation and entertainment 921,579 985,385 
Repairs and maintenance 775,539 960,784 
Power, light and water 756,008 818,544 
Stationeries and supplies used 647,023 440,207 
Postage, telephone and telegram 525,369 479,855 
Litigation/assets acquired expenses 465,891 271,513 
Travelling 415,250 432,319 
Impairment loss on investment properties 10 359,500 1,945,674 
Information technology expenses 325,190 870,689 
Supervision fees 104,698 104,318 
Donations and charitable contributions 60,545 88,347 
Fines, Penalties and Other Charges 38,996 - 
Membership fees and dues 22,560 17,100 
Advertising and publicity 18,500 197,348 
Periodicals and magazines 8,391 7,271 
Miscellaneous 1,319,471 1,014,128 

P=53,930,155 P=53,991,088 

Personnel cost consist of: 

Note 2021 2020 
Salaries and wages P=16,767,844 P=17,235,394 
Fringe benefits-officers and employees 9,185,981 10,171,636 
Contribution and provision for pensions and other 

post- for retirement benefit 23 3,523,740 1,466,668 
SSS, Pag-ibig, Philhealth contribution 2,102,767 1,914,480 
Directors compensation and committee member's fee 1,273,000 1,255,000 
Medical, dental and hospitalization 802,373 165,571 

P=33,655,705 P=32,208,749 
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Gain from sale/derecognition of assets consists of the following: 

Note 2021 2020 
Investment properties 10 P=2,459,570 P=2,042,526 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 11 52,974 110,099 

P=2,512,544 P=2,152,625 

Miscellaneous income composed of other income related to loans. 

20. Other Operating Expenses

This account consists of the following:

Note 2021 

2020 
(As restated – 

Note 28) 
Personnel costs P=33,655,705 P=32,208,749 
Depreciation 10,11,12 6,425,601 6,437,172 
Security, messenger and janitor services 1,953,768 1,935,873 
Management and other professional fees 1,406,619 629,595 
Insurance expenses 1,343,294 1,522,077 
Fuel, oil and lubricants 1,261,324 1,073,877 
Taxes and licenses 1,119,334 1,550,263 
Representation and entertainment 921,579 985,385 
Repairs and maintenance 775,539 960,784 
Power, light and water 756,008 818,544 
Stationeries and supplies used 647,023 440,207 
Postage, telephone and telegram 525,369 479,855 
Litigation/assets acquired expenses 465,891 271,513 
Travelling 415,250 432,319 
Impairment loss on investment properties 10 359,500 1,945,674 
Information technology expenses 325,190 870,689 
Supervision fees 104,698 104,318 
Donations and charitable contributions 60,545 88,347 
Fines, Penalties and Other Charges 38,996 - 
Membership fees and dues 22,560 17,100 
Advertising and publicity 18,500 197,348 
Periodicals and magazines 8,391 7,271 
Miscellaneous 1,319,471 1,014,128 

P=53,930,155 P=53,991,088 

Personnel cost consist of: 

Note 2021 2020 
Salaries and wages P=16,767,844 P=17,235,394 
Fringe benefits-officers and employees 9,185,981 10,171,636 
Contribution and provision for pensions and other 

post- for retirement benefit 23 3,523,740 1,466,668 
SSS, Pag-ibig, Philhealth contribution 2,102,767 1,914,480 
Directors compensation and committee member's fee 1,273,000 1,255,000 
Medical, dental and hospitalization 802,373 165,571 

P=33,655,705 P=32,208,749 
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Depreciation expenses consist of: 

Note 2021 2020 
Bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment 11 P=5,352,345 P=5,671,276 
Right-of-use asset 12 894,544 720,236 
Investment properties 10 178,712 45,660 

P=6,425,601 P=6,437,172 

Litigation expenses pertain to attorney fees, filing fees for document in court for the foreclosure of 
mortgage properties and other legal related expenses. 

21. Income Taxes

The Cooperative Bank transacts with members and non-members.

a. Business transactions with members - Business activities engaged in by such cooperatives
with its members where said cooperative generates revenues shall be exempt from all
nation al internal revenue taxes for which it is liable as enumerated in Section 7 of Joint
Rules and Regulations.

b. Business transactions with non-members - Cooperatives with accumulated reserves and
undivided net savings of more than  P=10,000,000.00 which transact with non-members shall
pay the following taxes at the full rate:

1. Income Tax - On the amount allocated for interest on capitals: Provided, that the same
tax is not consequently imposed on interest individually received by the members. The
tax base for all cooperatives liable to income tax shall be the net surplus arising from the
business transactions with non-members after deducting the amounts for the statutory
reserve funds as provided for in the Cooperative Code and other laws.

2. Value Added Tax (VAT) - On transactions with non- members: Provided, however, that
cooperatives, pursuant to Section 109 of the NIRC, as amended by RA9337, shall be
exempt from the imposition of VAT, namely the following:

i. Sales by agricultural cooperatives duly registered and in good standing with the
CDA to their members

ii. Gross receipts from lending activities by credit or multi- purpose cooperatives
duly registered with the CDA

iii. Sales by non-agricultural, non-electric and non-credit cooperatives duly
registered with the CDA.

iv. Transactions of cooperatives as may be deemed VAT- exempt under the NIRC.

3. Percentage Tax- all sales of goods and/or services rendered to non-members shall be
subject to the applicable percentage taxes imposed by Title V of the NIRC.

4. All other Internal Revenue Taxes unless otherwise provided by the law.

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises or “CREATE” Act 
On March 26, 2021, the President signed into law Republic Act No. 11534 or the CREATE Act. The 
law, which became effective on April 11, 2021, introduces reforms to corporate income taxes and 
incentive systems in the country by implementing certain changes to the current tax regulations. 

The CREATE Act resulted to the reduction of the Cooperative Bank’s tax rate from 30% to 25% 
(or 20%) (if Bank is subject to MCIT, from 2% to 1% of gross income for 3 years) effective 
July 1, 2020. 

*RCTISAFS0352*

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council, in its Philippine Interpretations Committee 
Q&A No. 2020-07, clarified that the CREATE Act was not considered substantively enacted as of 
December 31, 2020, despite that some of its provisions have retroactive effect. Accordingly, for 
financial reporting purposes, the effect of changes in the income tax rates will only be recognized 
in the 2021 financial statements. 

(a) The amount of income tax expense (benefit) recognized are shown below:

2021 2020 
Current (P=3,320) P=82,420 

Current provision for income tax in 2021 includes adjustment for current tax of prior periods 
amounted to P=21,442 representing the effect of change in the effective tax rate due to the 
effectivity of CREATE Act. 

(b) The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate on income before income tax and
the Cooperative Bank’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020 
Income before income tax P=8,267,233 P=859,158 

Income tax at statutory income tax rate of 25% in 2021 
and 30% in 2020 P=2,066,808 P=257,747 

Add (deduct) tax effect of: 
Interest income exempted from tax (1,432,249) (1,498,275) 
Income exempted from tax (1,118,381) (547,842) 
Unrecognized deferred taxes 666,197 1,795,345 
Interest income subjected to lower tax rate (122,751) (205,974) 
Statutory reserves (90,312) (74,379) 
Limitation on interest expense 30,688 84,964 
Effect of change in the effective tax rate (21,442) - 
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 18,122 82,420 
Limitation on representation expense  - 23,574

(P=3,320) P=82,420 

Minimum Corporate Income tax 
Section 27(E) of the National Internal Revenue Code provides that an MCIT of two percent (2%) of 
the gross income as of the end of the taxable year is imposed on a taxable corporation beginning 
on the fourth taxable year immediately following the year in which such corporation commenced 
its business operation, when the MCIT is greater than RCIT for the taxable year. 

Details of the Cooperative Bank’s MCIT are as follows: 

Year 
incurred Amount 

Applied in 
Prior Year 

Applied in 
Current Year Expired Balance 

Date of 
expiry 

2018 P=100,861 P=– P=– P=100,861 P=- 2021 
2019 109,588 – – - 109,588 2022 
2020 60,978 – – - 60,978 2025 
2021 18,122 - - - 18,122 2026 

Total P=289,549 P=– P=– P=100,861 P=188,688 



155

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

*RCTISAFS0352*

The Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council, in its Philippine Interpretations Committee 
Q&A No. 2020-07, clarified that the CREATE Act was not considered substantively enacted as of 
December 31, 2020, despite that some of its provisions have retroactive effect. Accordingly, for 
financial reporting purposes, the effect of changes in the income tax rates will only be recognized 
in the 2021 financial statements. 

(a) The amount of income tax expense (benefit) recognized are shown below:

2021 2020 
Current (P=3,320) P=82,420 

Current provision for income tax in 2021 includes adjustment for current tax of prior periods 
amounted to P=21,442 representing the effect of change in the effective tax rate due to the 
effectivity of CREATE Act. 

(b) The reconciliation between the statutory income tax rate on income before income tax and
the Cooperative Bank’s effective income tax rate is as follows:

2021 2020 
Income before income tax P=8,267,233 P=859,158 

Income tax at statutory income tax rate of 25% in 2021 
and 30% in 2020 P=2,066,808 P=257,747 

Add (deduct) tax effect of: 
Interest income exempted from tax (1,432,249) (1,498,275) 
Income exempted from tax (1,118,381) (547,842) 
Unrecognized deferred taxes 666,197 1,795,345 
Interest income subjected to lower tax rate (122,751) (205,974) 
Statutory reserves (90,312) (74,379) 
Limitation on interest expense 30,688 84,964 
Effect of change in the effective tax rate (21,442) - 
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 18,122 82,420 
Limitation on representation expense  - 23,574

(P=3,320) P=82,420 

Minimum Corporate Income tax 
Section 27(E) of the National Internal Revenue Code provides that an MCIT of two percent (2%) of 
the gross income as of the end of the taxable year is imposed on a taxable corporation beginning 
on the fourth taxable year immediately following the year in which such corporation commenced 
its business operation, when the MCIT is greater than RCIT for the taxable year. 

Details of the Cooperative Bank’s MCIT are as follows: 

Year 
incurred Amount 

Applied in 
Prior Year 

Applied in 
Current Year Expired Balance 

Date of 
expiry 

2018 P=100,861 P=– P=– P=100,861 P=- 2021 
2019 109,588 – – - 109,588 2022 
2020 60,978 – – - 60,978 2025 
2021 18,122 - - - 18,122 2026 

Total P=289,549 P=– P=– P=100,861 P=188,688 
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Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO) 
Under Section 34(D) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, the net operating loss of the 
business or enterprise for any taxable year immediately preceding the current taxable year which 
had not been previously offset as deduction from gross income shall be carried over as a deduction 
from gross income for the next three consecutive taxable years immediately following the year 
of such loss. 

In 2020, to address the impact of COVID-19, the Senate and the House of Representatives enacted 
Republic Act (RA) No. 11494 or the Bayanihan to Recover as One Act (Bayanihan II) effective 
September 15, 2020 with an original expiry date of December 19, which has since been extended 
to mid-2021. Bayanihan II provides for COVID-19 response and recovery interventions and 
mechanisms to accelerate the recovery and to bolster the resiliency of the economy. 

Among the response and recovery interventions provided under Bayanihan II are the carry-over of 
net operating losses incurred by the business or enterprise for taxable years 2020 and 2021 as 
deductions from gross income (for purposes of computing net taxable income subject to regular 
corporate income tax) over the next five consecutive taxable years immediately following the 
year of such loss Section 4 (bbbb) of the Bayanihan II). 

Under Bayanihan II, NOLCO would remain in effect even after the expiration of the Act, provided 
that the deductions are claimed within the next five consecutive taxable years. 

December 22, 2020, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) clarified, through Revenue Memorandum 
Circular (RMC) No. 138-2020, that the net operating loss carry-over (NOLCO) may be availed of 
under RR No. 25-2020 for taxpayers operating on fiscal-year reporting. The RMC enumerated fiscal 
years ending between July 31 and November 30, 2020 and January 31 to June 30, 2021 as falling 
within the taxable year 2020. Meanwhile, fiscal years ending between July 31 to 
November 30, 2021 and January 31 to June 30, 2022 fall within the taxable year 2021. Thus, net 
losses incurred by businesses or taxpayers during these fiscal years can be carried over as 
deductions from gross income for the next five consecutive taxable years. 

It should be noted that generally, under existing rules (Section 34 of the Tax Code and 
RR No. 14-01), the accumulated net operating loss of a business by individuals engaged in trade 
or business or practice of profession and domestic and resident foreign corporations can be carried 
over as a deduction from gross income only for the next three consecutive taxable years. 

Details of the Cooperative Bank’s NOLCO are as follows: 

Year 
incurred Amount 

Applied in 
prior year 

Applied in 
current year Expired Balance 

Date of 
expiry 

2018 P=1,550,048 P=– P= P=1,550,048 P=- 2021 
2019 1,901,725 – – - 1,901,725 2022 
2020 3,500,260 – – - 3,500,260 2025 
2021 2,390,202 - - - 2,390,202 2026 

Total P=9,342,235 P=– P=– P=1,550,048 P=7,792,187 
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The Bank did not recognize the deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences since it 
does not expect to have sufficient taxable profit against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. The breakdown of the unrecognized deferred tax as at December 31 are as follows: 

2021 2020 
Amount Tax effect Amount Tax effect 

Allowance for probable losses P=39,478,790 P=9,869,698 P=31,030,395 P=9,309,119 
Retirement benefit obligation 12,529,006 3,132,252 9,558,768 2,867,630 
NOLCO 7,792,187 1,948,047 6,896,249 2,068,875 
MCIT 188,688 188,688 292,869 292,869 

P=59,988,671 P=15,138,685 P=47,778,281 P=14,538,493 

22. Related Party Disclosures

The Cooperative Bank and certain subsidiaries purchase products and services from one another
in the normal course of business. Transactions with related parties are made at normal market
prices and terms. Amounts owed by/owed to related parties are collectible/will be settled in
cash. An assessment is undertaken at each financial year by examining the financial position of
the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The following are the transactions with related parties and the outstanding balances as at
December 31:

2021 

Category 
Amount of 

Transactions 
Outstanding 

Balances Terms Conditions 

DOSRI loans - –

Payable on installment, 
interest-bearing,  

cash-settled Unsecured 

2020 

Category 
Amount of 

Transactions 
Outstanding 

Balances Terms Conditions 

DOSRI loans (P=63,198) – 

Payable on installment, 
interest-bearing 6-9%,

1-5 years, cash-settled Unsecured 

No provision was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Total allowance 
for credit losses related to DOSRI loans amounted to nil as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

The General Banking Act and BSP regulations limit the amount of loans to each director, officer, 
shareholder and related interest (DOSRI).  

a) The individual ceiling for credit accommodation of a rural bank to each of its DOSRI shall
be equivalent to his outstanding deposits and book value of his paid-in capital in the
lending bank. The unsecured credit accommodation to each of the Cooperative Bank’s
DOSRI shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of his total credit accommodations.

b) The aggregate ceiling for credit accommodation whether direct or indirect, to DOSRI of a
cooperative bank shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total loan portfolio of the
Cooperative Bank or tis combined capital accounts met of deferred income tax, unbooked
valuation reserves and other capital adjustments required by the BSP, whichever is lower.
The total unsecured direct and indirect borrowings of DOSRI shall not exceed thirty
percent (30%) of the aggregate ceiling or outstanding direct/indirect credit
accommodation thereto, whichever is lower.
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The Bank did not recognize the deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences since it 
does not expect to have sufficient taxable profit against which the deferred tax assets can be 
utilized. The breakdown of the unrecognized deferred tax as at December 31 are as follows: 

2021 2020 
Amount Tax effect Amount Tax effect 

Allowance for probable losses P=39,478,790 P=9,869,698 P=31,030,395 P=9,309,119 
Retirement benefit obligation 12,529,006 3,132,252 9,558,768 2,867,630 
NOLCO 7,792,187 1,948,047 6,896,249 2,068,875 
MCIT 188,688 188,688 292,869 292,869 

P=59,988,671 P=15,138,685 P=47,778,281 P=14,538,493 

22. Related Party Disclosures

The Cooperative Bank and certain subsidiaries purchase products and services from one another
in the normal course of business. Transactions with related parties are made at normal market
prices and terms. Amounts owed by/owed to related parties are collectible/will be settled in
cash. An assessment is undertaken at each financial year by examining the financial position of
the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

The following are the transactions with related parties and the outstanding balances as at
December 31:

2021 

Category 
Amount of 

Transactions 
Outstanding 

Balances Terms Conditions 

DOSRI loans - –

Payable on installment, 
interest-bearing,  

cash-settled Unsecured 

2020 

Category 
Amount of 

Transactions 
Outstanding 

Balances Terms Conditions 

DOSRI loans (P=63,198) – 

Payable on installment, 
interest-bearing 6-9%,

1-5 years, cash-settled Unsecured 

No provision was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020. Total allowance 
for credit losses related to DOSRI loans amounted to nil as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

The General Banking Act and BSP regulations limit the amount of loans to each director, officer, 
shareholder and related interest (DOSRI).  

a) The individual ceiling for credit accommodation of a rural bank to each of its DOSRI shall
be equivalent to his outstanding deposits and book value of his paid-in capital in the
lending bank. The unsecured credit accommodation to each of the Cooperative Bank’s
DOSRI shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of his total credit accommodations.

b) The aggregate ceiling for credit accommodation whether direct or indirect, to DOSRI of a
cooperative bank shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total loan portfolio of the
Cooperative Bank or tis combined capital accounts met of deferred income tax, unbooked
valuation reserves and other capital adjustments required by the BSP, whichever is lower.
The total unsecured direct and indirect borrowings of DOSRI shall not exceed thirty
percent (30%) of the aggregate ceiling or outstanding direct/indirect credit
accommodation thereto, whichever is lower.
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Details of the Cooperative Bank’s DOSRI as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 

DOSRI Loans 

Related Party 
Loans (Inclusive 
of DOSRI Loans) 

Total outstanding DOSRI Loans - - 
Percent of DOSRI accounts to total loans 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI accounts to DOSRI 

accounts 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of past due DOSRI accounts to total DOSRI 

accounts 0.00% 0.00%
Percent of nonperforming DOSRI accounts to total 

DOSRI accounts 0.00% 0.00%

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 

2021 2020 
Short-term employee benefits P=3,477,398 P=4,830,283 
Post-employment benefits 173,341 293,334 

P=3,650,739 P=5,123,617 

The key management compensation is shown as part of personnel cost under other operating 
expenses account in the statement of comprehensive income.  

23. Employee Benefits

Under Article 287 of the Labor Code, in the absence of a retirement plan or agreement, an
employee, upon reaching the age of sixty (60) or more, but not beyond sixty-five (65) years, which
is declared as the compulsory retirement age, who has rendered at least five (5) years of service,
may retire and shall be entitled to receive retirement benefits equivalent to at least one-half
(1/2) month salary for every year of service, a fraction of at least six months being considered as
one whole year.

Unless provided for broader inclusions, the term one-half (1/2) month salary shall mean fifteen
(15) days plus one-twelfth (1/12) of the 13th month pay and cash equivalent of not more than
five (5) days of service incentive leave.

In compliance with this mandate, the Cooperative Bank is adopting Republic Act No. 7641 as its 
arrangement to provide retirement benefits to all regular employees. As at December 31,2021 
and 2020, the accumulated balance of retirement benefit obligation amounted to P=12.53 million 
and P=9.56 million, respectively, and is presented under other liabilities which is funded under 
other asset account as sinking fund deposited in Land Bank of the Philippines amounting to 
P=14.12 million and P=12.50 million (Notes 13 and 17). 

Movement of retirement benefit obligation is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balance P=9,558,768 P=8,734,158 
Retirement expense 3,523,740 1,466,668 
Payments (553,502) (642,058) 

Ending balance P=12,529,006 P=9,558,768 
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Movement of retirement fund is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balance P=12,496,934 P=9,013,751 
Contributions 2,176,319 4,125,241 
Payments (553,502) (642,058) 

Ending balance P=14,119,751 P=12,496,934 

24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Objectives and Policies
The Cooperative Bank has significant exposure to the following financial risks primarily from its
use of financial instruments:

 Liquidity Risk
 Credit Risk
 Interest Rate Risk

This note presents information about the exposure to each of the foregoing risks, 
the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks, and for 
management of capital. 

The principal non-trade related financial instruments of the Cooperative Bank include cash and 
cash equivalents. These financial instruments are used mainly for working capital management 
purposes. The trade-related financial assets and financial liabilities of the Cooperative Bank such 
as receivables and accounts payable and other current liabilities, excluding statutory liabilities, 
arise directly from and are used to facilitate its daily operations. 

The BOD has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management 
framework of the Cooperative Bank.  

The risk management policies of the Cooperative Bank are established to identify and analyze the 
risks faced by the Cooperative Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and activities. The Cooperative Bank, through its training 
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

Liquidity Risk 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the 
Cooperative Bank’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. The Cooperative Bank manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, 
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual 
cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The Cooperative Bank seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its capital 
expenditures and cover its operating costs. The Cooperative Bank’s objective is to maintain a 
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through valuation of projected and actual 
cash flow information. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, minimum liquidity ratio of the Cooperative Bank is 58.26% and 
51.50%, respectively.  
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Movement of retirement fund is as follows: 

2021 2020 
Beginning balance P=12,496,934 P=9,013,751 
Contributions 2,176,319 4,125,241 
Payments (553,502) (642,058) 

Ending balance P=14,119,751 P=12,496,934 

24. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Objectives and Policies
The Cooperative Bank has significant exposure to the following financial risks primarily from its
use of financial instruments:

 Liquidity Risk
 Credit Risk
 Interest Rate Risk

This note presents information about the exposure to each of the foregoing risks, 
the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing these risks, and for 
management of capital. 

The principal non-trade related financial instruments of the Cooperative Bank include cash and 
cash equivalents. These financial instruments are used mainly for working capital management 
purposes. The trade-related financial assets and financial liabilities of the Cooperative Bank such 
as receivables and accounts payable and other current liabilities, excluding statutory liabilities, 
arise directly from and are used to facilitate its daily operations. 

The BOD has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management 
framework of the Cooperative Bank.  

The risk management policies of the Cooperative Bank are established to identify and analyze the 
risks faced by the Cooperative Bank, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor 
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and activities. The Cooperative Bank, through its training 
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive 
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. 

Liquidity Risk 
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has 
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the 
Cooperative Bank’s short-, medium- and long-term funding and liquidity management 
requirements. The Cooperative Bank manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, 
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual 
cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The Cooperative Bank seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its capital 
expenditures and cover its operating costs. The Cooperative Bank’s objective is to maintain a 
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through valuation of projected and actual 
cash flow information. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, minimum liquidity ratio of the Cooperative Bank is 58.26% and 
51.50%, respectively.  
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The table below summarizes maturity profile of the Cooperative Bank’s financial assets and 
liabilities as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 based on undiscounted contractual cash flows. 

2021 

On Demand 
Due within 1 

year 
Due beyond 1 

year Total 
Financial Assets 
Cash on hand P=2,841,696 P=- P=- P=2,841,696 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 – – 10,058,837 
Due from other banks 193,194,216 81,670,988 274,865,204 
Investments at amortized cost 2,485,586 6,001,798 12,990,000 21,477,383 
Loans and other receivables* 65,421,939 96,865,796 291,461,495 453,749,230 
Other assets** 132,776 13,299,705 14,689,086 28,121,567 

P=274,135,049 P=197,838,287 P=319,140,581 P=791,113,917 

Financial Liabilities 
Deposit liabilities P=214,915,208 P=279,045,586 P=- P=493,960,794 
Bills payable - 3,153,479 121,171,344 124,324,823 
Accrued interest, taxes and other 

expenses payable 1,073,081 3,986,068 - 5,059,149
Other liabilities*** 5,530,230 2,917,284 22,579,317 31,026,831

P=221,518,519 P=289,102,417 P=143,750,661 P=654,371,597 
*gross of allowance for credit losses and net unamortized discounts
**excluding non-financial assets of P=797,752
***excludes dues to government and deposit for stock subscription amounting to P=11,994,570

2020 

On Demand 
Due within 1 

year 
Due beyond 1 

year Total 
Financial Assets 
Cash on hand P=3,392,298 P=- P=- P=3,392,298 
Due from BSP 12,178,535 – – 12,178,535 
Due from other banks 102,298,595 26,535,616 40,102,078 168,936,289 
Investments at amortized cost 16,412,897 6,628,920 2,990,000 26,031,817 
Loans and other receivables* 22,738,599 30,412,437 332,381,615 385,532,651 
Other assets** 127,148 8,093,094 18,016,269 26,236,511 

P=157,148,072 P=71,670,067 P=393,489,962 P=622,308,101 

Financial Liabilities 
Deposit liabilities P=141,905,854 P=269,251,068 P=- P=411,156,922 
Bills payable – – 51,272,512 51,272,512 
Accrued interest, taxes and other 

expenses payable 5,214,577 – - 5,214,577 
Other liabilities*** 22,857,553 1,215,731 12,689,068 36,762,352 

P=169,977,984 P=270,466,799 P=63,961,580 P=504,406,363 
*gross of allowance for credit losses and net unamortized discounts
**excluding non-financial assets of P=999,163
***excludes dues to government and deposit for stock subscription amounting to P=457,411

Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Cooperative Bank. The Cooperative Bank has adopted a policy of only 
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, 
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.  

The Cooperative Bank enforces credit risk management fundamentally via its Credit Policy Manual 
(CPM), the provisions of which are regularly reviewed and updated to reflect changing risk 
conditions. The CPM defined, among others, the following: 

a) the Cooperative Bank’s credit structure
b) target market;
c) credit evaluation, administration, monitoring, and collection guidelines; and
d) remedial management.
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The Cooperative Bank likewise manages risk by setting limits such as: 

a) approving authority limits;
b) individuals and borrower group limits; and
c) concentration limits as to facility and industry segments.

Moreover, the Cooperative Bank monitors credit exposures, and continually assesses the 
creditworthiness of counterparties. It also obtains security where appropriate, enters into 
collateral arrangement with counterparties, and limits the duration of exposures. 

The Cooperative Bank has and internal credit risk rating system for the purpose of measuring, in 
a consistent manner, credit risk for every exposure. The risk information derived is then used for 
business and financial decision making. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the financial statements, which is net of 
impairment losses, represents the Cooperative Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk, without 
taking into account collateral or other credit enhancements held. 

Credit risk exposure 
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Cooperative Bank without 
considering the effects of credit risk mitigation techniques. 

Notes 2021 2020 
Due from BSP 6 P=10,058,837 P=12,178,535 
Due from other banks 7 274,865,204 168,936,289 
Investment at amortized cost 8 21,477,383 26,031,817 
Loans and other receivables* 9 453,749,230 385,532,651 
Other assets** 28,121,567 26,236,511 

P=788,272,221 P=618,915,803 
*loans and other receivables at gross amount of allowance for credit losses and net of unamortized discount
**excluding non-financial assets of P=797,752 and P=999,163 in 2021 and 2020, respectively

Credit Quality of Financial Assets 
The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 
2020. 

2021 
Neither past due nor impaired 

Past due but 
not impaired Impaired Total High Grade 

Standard 
Grade 

Substandard 
Grade 

Cash on hand P=2,841,696 P=- P=- P=- P=- P=2,841,696 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 - - - - 10,058,837 
Due from other banks 274,865,204 - - - - 274,865,204 
Investments at 

amortized cost 21,477,383 - - - - 21,477,383 
Loans and other 

receivables* 373,734,172 - 1,973,777 55,974,252 22,067,029 453,749,230 
Other assets** 28,121,567 - - - - 28,121,567 

P=711,098,859 P=- P=1,973,777 P=55,974,252 P=22,067,029 P=791,113,917 
*gross of allowance for credit losses and net unamortized discounts
**excluding non-financial assets amounting to P=797,752



161

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

*RCTISAFS0352*

The Cooperative Bank likewise manages risk by setting limits such as: 

a) approving authority limits;
b) individuals and borrower group limits; and
c) concentration limits as to facility and industry segments.

Moreover, the Cooperative Bank monitors credit exposures, and continually assesses the 
creditworthiness of counterparties. It also obtains security where appropriate, enters into 
collateral arrangement with counterparties, and limits the duration of exposures. 

The Cooperative Bank has and internal credit risk rating system for the purpose of measuring, in 
a consistent manner, credit risk for every exposure. The risk information derived is then used for 
business and financial decision making. 

The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the financial statements, which is net of 
impairment losses, represents the Cooperative Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk, without 
taking into account collateral or other credit enhancements held. 

Credit risk exposure 
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Cooperative Bank without 
considering the effects of credit risk mitigation techniques. 

Notes 2021 2020 
Due from BSP 6 P=10,058,837 P=12,178,535 
Due from other banks 7 274,865,204 168,936,289 
Investment at amortized cost 8 21,477,383 26,031,817 
Loans and other receivables* 9 453,749,230 385,532,651 
Other assets** 28,121,567 26,236,511 

P=788,272,221 P=618,915,803 
*loans and other receivables at gross amount of allowance for credit losses and net of unamortized discount
**excluding non-financial assets of P=797,752 and P=999,163 in 2021 and 2020, respectively

Credit Quality of Financial Assets 
The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets as of December 31, 2021 and 
2020. 

2021 
Neither past due nor impaired 

Past due but 
not impaired Impaired Total High Grade 

Standard 
Grade 

Substandard 
Grade 

Cash on hand P=2,841,696 P=- P=- P=- P=- P=2,841,696 
Due from BSP 10,058,837 - - - - 10,058,837 
Due from other banks 274,865,204 - - - - 274,865,204 
Investments at 

amortized cost 21,477,383 - - - - 21,477,383 
Loans and other 

receivables* 373,734,172 - 1,973,777 55,974,252 22,067,029 453,749,230 
Other assets** 28,121,567 - - - - 28,121,567 

P=711,098,859 P=- P=1,973,777 P=55,974,252 P=22,067,029 P=791,113,917 
*gross of allowance for credit losses and net unamortized discounts
**excluding non-financial assets amounting to P=797,752
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2020 
Neither past due nor impaired 

Past due but 
not impaired Impaired Total High Grade 

Standard 
Grade 

Substandard 
Grade 

Cash on hand P=3,392,298 P=- P=- P=- P=- P=3,392,298 
Due from BSP 12,178,535 - - - - 12,178,535 
Due from other banks 168,936,289 - - - - 168,936,289 
Investments at 

amortized cost 26,031,817 - - - - 26,031,817 
Loans and other 

receivables* 333,114,591 - 4,808,929 24,206,732 23,402,399 385,532,651 
Other assets** 26,236,511 - - - - 26,236,511 

P=569,890,041 P=- P=4,808,929 P=24,206,732 P=23,402,399 P=622,308,101 
*gross of allowance for credit losses and net unamortized discounts
**excluding non-financial assets totalling P=999,163

Aging analysis  
Aging analysis of the Cooperative Bank’s loans and other receivables are as follows: 

2021 2020 
Outstanding receivables: 
Current accounts P=375,707,949 P=337,923,520 
Past due accounts: 

1 – 30 days past due 5,487,900 243,280 
31 – 90 days past due 2,785,086 127,647 
91 – 180 days past due 10,695,116 484,906 
over 180 days past due 59,073,179 46,753,298 

P=453,749,230 P=385,532,651 
*gross of allowance for credit losses but net of unamortized discount

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk to the earning or capital resulting from adverse movements in the 
interest rates. The Cooperative Bank closely monitors the movements of interest rates in the 
market and reviews its asset and liability structure to ensure that exposures to fluctuations in 
interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. The Cooperative Bank’s exposures to interest 
rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management 
section of this note. 

Sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is not readily estimable as interests are unpredictable. 

Market risk 
Market risk is risk that movements of market prices will adversely affect the Cooperative Bank’s 
financial condition. In managing its market risk exposure, the Cooperative Bank focuses on 
managing price which is the risk of loss arising from any change in the value of any asset or trading 
instrument. These risks apply to both the Cooperative Bank’s trading and accrual positions. 

Interest rate risk 
The Cooperative Bank follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and liabilities so as to ensure 
that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. The Cooperative 
Bank is exposed to interest rate risk since its financial assets and financial liabilities have fixed 
and variable rates. 

Operational risks 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated 
with the Cooperative Bank’s involvement with financial instruments, including processes, 
personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour. 

*RCTISAFS0352*

The Cooperative Bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of 
financial losses and damage to the Cooperative Bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness 
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. 

The primary responsibility of the development and implementation of controls to address 
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is 
supported by the development of overall Bank standards for the management of operational risk 
in the following areas: 

a) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation
of transactions;

b) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
c) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
d) Documentation of controls and procedures;
e) Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of

controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
f) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
g) Development of contingency plans;
h) Training and professional development;
i) Ethical and business standards; and
j) Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with Bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by 
Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the 
business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior 
management of the Cooperative Bank. 

25. Fair Value Measurement

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used by the Cooperative Bank to
determine the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Cash on hand, due from BSP, due from other banks, investments at amortized cost, accounts
receivable, accrued interest receivable. Carrying value approximates fair value given the
short-term nature of these financial assets.

Loans and other receivables. Fair values of loans and receivables are estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology, using the Cooperative Bank’s current incremental lending
rates.

Deposit liabilities. For savings and time deposits, carrying amounts approximate fair values
considering that these are currently due and demandable or due within a period of not more than
one (1) year.

Bills payable, accrued interest and other expenses and other financial liabilities. Fair values of
these liabilities approximate their carrying values given the short-term maturities of these
liabilities.



163

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

*RCTISAFS0352*

The Cooperative Bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of 
financial losses and damage to the Cooperative Bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness 
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. 

The primary responsibility of the development and implementation of controls to address 
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is 
supported by the development of overall Bank standards for the management of operational risk 
in the following areas: 

a) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation
of transactions;

b) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;
c) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;
d) Documentation of controls and procedures;
e) Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of

controls and procedures to address the risks identified;
f) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action;
g) Development of contingency plans;
h) Training and professional development;
i) Ethical and business standards; and
j) Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with Bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by 
Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the 
business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior 
management of the Cooperative Bank. 

25. Fair Value Measurement

The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used by the Cooperative Bank to
determine the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Cash on hand, due from BSP, due from other banks, investments at amortized cost, accounts
receivable, accrued interest receivable. Carrying value approximates fair value given the
short-term nature of these financial assets.

Loans and other receivables. Fair values of loans and receivables are estimated using the
discounted cash flow methodology, using the Cooperative Bank’s current incremental lending
rates.

Deposit liabilities. For savings and time deposits, carrying amounts approximate fair values
considering that these are currently due and demandable or due within a period of not more than
one (1) year.

Bills payable, accrued interest and other expenses and other financial liabilities. Fair values of
these liabilities approximate their carrying values given the short-term maturities of these
liabilities.
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Fair Value Hierarchy 
The following tables summarize the carrying amount and fair values of the assets and liabilities, 
analyzed based on the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the 
assets and liabilities by valuation technique: 

• Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly
(derived from prices);

• Level 3 - Valuation techniques involving inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair Value 
2021 Carrying Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
ASSETS 
Assets for which fair value is 

disclosed: 
Financial Assets 
Loans and other receivables P=414,270,440 P=358,803,933 P=- P=- P=358,803,933 
Non-financial Assets 
Investment properties 15,084,759 19,574,908 - - 19,574,908 

P=429,355,199 P=378,378,841 P=- P=- P=378,378,841 

Fair Value 
2020 Carrying Value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
ASSETS 
Assets for which fair value is 

disclosed: 
Financial Assets 
Loans and other receivables P=354,502,256 P=336,265,206 P=- P=- P=336,265,206 
Non-financial Assets 
Investment properties 10,418,725 16,656,625 - - 16,656,625 

P=364,920,981 P=352,921,831 P=- P=- P=352,921,831 

There have been no changes in determining the fair value of financial instruments in 2021 and 
2020. There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no 
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements in 2021 and 2020. 

The fair values of the Cooperative Bank’s investment properties have been determined by the 
appraisal method by independent accredited external valuers and in-house appraisers based on 
highest and best use of property being appraised. Valuations were derived on the basis of recent 
sales of similar properties in the same areas as the investment properties and taking into account 
the economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made and comparability of 
similar properties sold with the property being valued. 
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26. Supplemental Disclosure to Cash Flow Statements

The following table shows the reconciliation analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

2021 Bills payable 

Deposit for future  
stock subscription 

Total As equity As liability 
January 1, 2021 P=51,272,512 P=8,988,470 P=9,197 P=60,270,179 
Cash flows from availment 81,171,344 - - 81,171,344 
Cash flows from settlement (8,119,033) - - (8,119,033) 
Cash flows from stock 

subscription - - 2,540,954 2,540,954 
Non-cash transfers - (8,988,470) 8,988,470 - 

December 31, 2021 P=124,324,823 P=- P=11,538,621 P=135,863,444 

2020 Bills payable 
Deposit for future 
stock subscription Total 

January 1, 2020 P=11,555,477 P=18,720 P=11,574,197 
Cash flows from availment 50,137,700 - 50,137,700
Cash flows from settlement (10,420,665) - (10,420,665)
Cash flows from stock 

subscription - 8,971,000 8,971,000
Non-cash transfers - (1,250) (1,250) 

December 31, 2020 P=51,272,512 P=8,988,470 P=60,260,982 

Reclassifications between accounts considered in the preparation of cashflow statement for the 
year ended December 31, 2021 includes the deposit for future stock subscription from equity to 
liability under ‘Other liabilities’ account amounting to P=8.99 million (Note 18). 

27. Other Matters

(a) Contingencies

The Cooperative Bank is a party to certain lawsuits or claims filed by third parties which are
either pending decision by the courts or are subject to settlement agreements. The outcome
of these lawsuits or claims cannot be presently determined. In the opinion of management
and its legal counsel, the eventual liability from these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank.

The Cooperative Bank has contingent liabilities particularly items held in trust as collateral
amounting to P=3,132 and P=3,085 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(b) Commitments

There were no outstanding purchase commitments as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.



165

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

*RCTISAFS0352*

26. Supplemental Disclosure to Cash Flow Statements

The following table shows the reconciliation analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities
for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

2021 Bills payable 

Deposit for future  
stock subscription 

Total As equity As liability 
January 1, 2021 P=51,272,512 P=8,988,470 P=9,197 P=60,270,179 
Cash flows from availment 81,171,344 - - 81,171,344 
Cash flows from settlement (8,119,033) - - (8,119,033) 
Cash flows from stock 

subscription - - 2,540,954 2,540,954 
Non-cash transfers - (8,988,470) 8,988,470 - 

December 31, 2021 P=124,324,823 P=- P=11,538,621 P=135,863,444 

2020 Bills payable 
Deposit for future 
stock subscription Total 

January 1, 2020 P=11,555,477 P=18,720 P=11,574,197 
Cash flows from availment 50,137,700 - 50,137,700
Cash flows from settlement (10,420,665) - (10,420,665)
Cash flows from stock 

subscription - 8,971,000 8,971,000
Non-cash transfers - (1,250) (1,250) 

December 31, 2020 P=51,272,512 P=8,988,470 P=60,260,982 

Reclassifications between accounts considered in the preparation of cashflow statement for the 
year ended December 31, 2021 includes the deposit for future stock subscription from equity to 
liability under ‘Other liabilities’ account amounting to P=8.99 million (Note 18). 

27. Other Matters

(a) Contingencies

The Cooperative Bank is a party to certain lawsuits or claims filed by third parties which are
either pending decision by the courts or are subject to settlement agreements. The outcome
of these lawsuits or claims cannot be presently determined. In the opinion of management
and its legal counsel, the eventual liability from these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have
a material effect on the financial statements of the Cooperative Bank.

The Cooperative Bank has contingent liabilities particularly items held in trust as collateral
amounting to P=3,132 and P=3,085 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(b) Commitments

There were no outstanding purchase commitments as at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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28. Prior Period Adjustments

The January 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020 financial statements have been restated and
reclassified to reflect the following:

 Recognize unrealized gain on foreclosure on investment properties following the initial
measurement requirements of PAS 40, Investment Property;

 Recognize right-of use assets depreciated over the lease term and lease liability accreted
for interest in accordance with PFRS 16, Leases; and

 Reclassification adjustments on financial asset presentation in accordance with PFRS 9,
Financial Instruments.

Details of the adjustments are as follows: 

December 31, 2020 
As previously 

reported Adjustment As restated 
Statement of financial position 
Assets 
Held-to-maturity investments P=26,031,817 (P=26,031,817) P=- 
Investments at amortized cost - 26,031,817 26,031,817 
Loans and other receivables 353,227,836 1,274,420 354,502,256 
Assets held for sale 6,410,305 (6,410,305) - 
Investment properties - 10,418,725 10,418,725 
Right-of-use assets - 1,539,105 1,539,105 
Other assets 28,510,094 (1,274,420) 27,235,674 

Liabilities 
Accrued interest, taxes and other expenses 

payable 5,214,577 (125,938) 5,088,639 
Lease liabilities - 1,529,814 1,529,814 

Equity 
Surplus free 28,509,384 4,143,649 32,653,033 

Statement of comprehensive income 
Interest on lease liabilities - 43,975 43,975 
Other operating expense 52,241,641 1,749,447 53,991,088 

January 1, 2020 
As previously 

reported Adjustment As restated 
Statement of financial position 
Assets 
Held-to-maturity investments P=40,208,562 (P=40,208,562) P=- 
Investments at amortized cost - 40,208,562 40,208,562 
Loans and other receivables 312,256,972 1,337,599 313,594,571 
Assets held for sale 7,357,732 (7,357,732) - 
Investment properties - 13,312,318 13,312,318 
Right-of-use assets - 769,161 769,161 
Other assets 19,623,005 (1,337,599) 18,285,406 

Liabilities 
Lease liabilities - 786,676 786,676 

Equity 

Surplus free 45,297,507 5,937,071 51,234,578 
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29. Supplementary Information Required Under BSP Circular No. 1074

Basic Quantitative Indicators of Financial Performance
The following basic ratios measure the financial performance of the Cooperative Bank:

2020 2019 

Return on average equity 5.19% 2.35%
Return on average assets 0.82% 0.44%
Net interest margin on average earning assets 8.03% 9.18%
Leverage ratio 12.80% 16.59%
Exposure measure 774,435,828 619,617,000 
Debt-to-equity ratio 6.17:1 4.53:1

Description of Capital Instruments Issued 
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank has issued common and preferred stock. 
The Cooperative Bank’s preferred stock has the following features: (1) nonvoting, except in cases 
expressly provided for by laws; and (2) entitled to noncumulative and nonparticipating dividends. 

Significant Credit Exposures as to Industry Sector 
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, information on the concentration of credit as to industry 
before taking into account the allowance for credit losses follow: 

2021 2020 

Tier 1 Capital P=99,103,330 P=102,773,540 

2021 2020 

Amount 
% to 
total 

% to 
Tier 1 Amount 

% to 
total 

% to 
Tier 1 

Agriculture, forestry 
and fishing P=206,140,300 45.65 208.01 P=166,612,828 43.26 162.12 

Wholesale and retail 
trade, repair of 
motor vehicles, 
motorcycles 70,436,772 15.60 71.07 56,816,505 14.79 55.28 

Real estate activities 45,266,393 10.02 45.68 50,005,755 13.01 48.66 
Other service activities 129,702,083 28.73 130.88 111,223,143 28.94 108.22 

P=451,545,548 100.00 P=384,658,231 100.00 

BSP considers that concentration of credit risk exists when the total loan exposure to a particular 
industry or economic sector exceeds 30.00% of total loan portfolio or 10% of the Tier 1 capital. 
The Cooperative Bank has applied controls to manage the risk of credit concentration. The 
Cooperative Bank analyzes the credit risk concentration to an individual borrower, related group 
of accounts, industry, geographic, internal rating buckets, currency, term and security. 
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29. Supplementary Information Required Under BSP Circular No. 1074
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Leverage ratio 12.80% 16.59%
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Debt-to-equity ratio 6.17:1 4.53:1

Description of Capital Instruments Issued 
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Cooperative Bank has issued common and preferred stock. 
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Significant Credit Exposures as to Industry Sector 
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BSP considers that concentration of credit risk exists when the total loan exposure to a particular 
industry or economic sector exceeds 30.00% of total loan portfolio or 10% of the Tier 1 capital. 
The Cooperative Bank has applied controls to manage the risk of credit concentration. The 
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Breakdown of Total Loans as to Security 
The table below shows information relating to receivables from customers as to secured and 
unsecured and as to collateral: 

2021 2020 
Amount % Amount % 

Loans secured by: 
Real estate P=217,048,531 48.06 P=226,152,668 58.85 
Other collateral 21,202,869 4.70 19,193,516 5.00 

Unsecured 213,294,148 47.24 138,912,047 36.15 

P=451,545,548 100.00 P=384,258,231 100.00 

Breakdown of Total Loans as to Status 
Under banking regulations, loan accounts shall be considered non-performing when they are 
considered impaired under existing accounting standards, classified as doubtful or loss, in 
litigation, and/or there is evidence that full repayment of principal or interest is unlikely without 
foreclosure of collateral, if any. All other loans, even if not considered impaired, shall be 
considered non-performing if any principal and/or interest are unpaid for more than ninety (90) 
days from contractual due date, or accrued interests for more than ninety (90) days have been 
capitalized, refinanced, or delayed by agreement. Restructured loans shall be considered 
non-performing. However, if prior restructuring, the loans were categorized as performing, such 
classification shall be retained. Moreover, NPLs shall remain classified as such until (a) there is 
sufficient evidence to support that full collection of principal and interests is probable and 
payments of interest and/or principal are received for at least six (6) months; or (b) written-off. 
Microfinance and other small loans with similar credit characteristics shall be considered non-
performing after contractual due date or after they have become past due. 

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, performing and NPLs of the Cooperative Bank, classified per 
product type, are as follows: 

2021 2020 
Performing loans 

Agrarian and agricultural reform loans P=189,210,134 P=149,861,023 
Consumer loans 54,325,008 78,139,359 
Commercial loans 93,030,725 64,610,373 
Others 54,686,904 39,770,860 

391,252,771 332,381,615 
NPL 

Agrarian and agricultural reform loans 18,827,006 20,051,806 
Consumer loans 13,903,007 11,636,853 
Commercial loans 22,486,847 12,812,474 
Others 5,075,917 7,375,483 

60,292,777 51,876,616 

P=451,545,548 P=384,258,231 
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Information on Related Party Loans 
In the ordinary course of business, the Cooperative Bank transacts with certain directors, officers, 
stockholders and other related interests (DOSRI). Under the Cooperative Bank’s existing policies, 
these transactions are made substantially on the same terms and conditions as transactions with 
other individuals and businesses of comparable risks. The amount of individual loans to DOSRI, 
70.00% of which must be secured, should not exceed the amount of their respective deposits and 
book value of their investments in the Cooperative Bank. These limits do not apply to loans 
secured by assets considered nonrisk as defined in the regulations. In the aggregate, loans to 
DOSRI should not exceed the total capital funds or 15.00% of the total loan portfolio of the 
Cooperative Bank, whichever is lower. 

The following table shows information relating to DOSRI loans: 

2021 2020 
Total outstanding DOSRI loans - 63,198
Percent DOSRI accounts to total loans 0.00% 0.02%
Percent of unsecured DOSRI accounts to total DOSRI - 100.00%
Percent of past-due DOSRI accounts to total DOSRI NONE NONE
Percent of non-performing DOSRI accounts to total DOSRI NONE NONE

There were no other related party loans other than DOSRI loans. 

Aggregate Amount of Secured Liabilities and Assets Pledged as Security 
As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, there were no assets pledged as security for liabilities. 

Contingencies and Commitments Arising from Off-Balance Sheet Items 
In the normal course of operations, the Cooperative Bank makes various commitments, such as 
guarantees, commitments to extend credit, etc., which are not reflected in the accompanying 
financial statements. The Cooperative Bank does not anticipate any material losses as a result of 
these transactions. 

The following is a summary of contingencies at their peso equivalent contractual amounts arising 
from off-books accounts as at December 31, 2021 and 2020: 

2021 2020 
Items held for safekeeping P=3,132 P=3,085 

These obligations are not recognized in the statements of financial position, however, these 
contain credit risk and are therefore part of the overall risk of the Cooperative Bank. 
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Information on Related Party Loans 
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30. Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued Revenue Regulation (RR) No. 15-2010 to amend certain
provisions of RR No. 21-2002.  The regulations provide that starting 2010 the notes to financial
statements shall include information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the
taxable year.

The Cooperative Bank paid or accrued the following types of taxes for the tax period 2021:

Gross Receipts Tax
Section 8 of Articles 60,61 and 144 of Republic Act 9520, otherwise known as the Philippine
Cooperative Code of 2008 provides that Cooperatives with accumulated reserves and undivided
net savings of more than Ten Million (Php10,000,000.00) are subject to percentage tax on sales
of goods and/or services rendered to non-members using applicable percentage taxes imposed by
Title V of the NIRC, as amended, except sales made by producers, marketing or service
cooperatives;

Gross receipts taxes in relation to income from non-members for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 consist of:

2021 2020 

Gross receipts tax 721,385 772,401 

All other national and local taxes 
All other local and national taxes paid by the Bank and presented as part of other operating 
expenses for the two periods ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 consist of: 

2021 2020 
National taxes: 

Percentage tax - 772,401
Local taxes 

Business permit 214,413 200,880
Real property tax 54,411 54,411 
LTO registration 120,385 34,878 
Others 69,097 15,600 

458,306 1,078,170 

Withholding Taxes 
Withholding taxes paid and accrued during the year are as follows: 

Paid Payable 
Expanded withholding tax P=256,123 P=54,416 
Withholding tax on compensation 181,147 34,549 
Final withholding tax 323,335 58,599 

P=760,605 P=147,564 

Tax Assessments and Tax Cases 
The Bank has no outstanding tax cases in any other court or bodies outside BIR as at 
December 31, 2021. 

*RCTISAFS0352*

RR NO. 34-2020 

RR No. 34-2020, Prescribing the Guidelines and Procedures for the Submission of BIR Form 
No. 1709, Transfer Pricing Documentation (TPD) and other Supporting Documents, Amending for 
this Purpose the Pertinent Provisions of RR Nos. 19-2020 and 21-2002, as amended by 
RR No. 15-2010, to streamline the guidelines and procedures for the submission of BIR Form 
No. 1709, TPD and other supporting documents. Section 2 of the RR enumerated the taxpayers 
required to file and submit the RPT Form, together with the Annual Income Tax Return. 

The Cooperative Bank is not covered by the requirements and procedures for related party 
transactions provided under RR 34-2020 for the year ended December 31, 2021. 
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RR NO. 34-2020 

RR No. 34-2020, Prescribing the Guidelines and Procedures for the Submission of BIR Form 
No. 1709, Transfer Pricing Documentation (TPD) and other Supporting Documents, Amending for 
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